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SENATOR DEAN FLOREZ:  I would like to call this informational hearing on the proposed Tribal-State Compact between Lytton Rancheria and the State of California to order.  I’d like to thank all of the witnesses in advance for being here today.  I very much appreciate your testimony and your attendance here today.


As most of you know, last fall, we approved various tribal gaming compacts.  However, we did not approve the proposed gaming compact between the Lytton Rancheria and the State of California. 


The subject matter, obviously, of today’s informational hearing is indeed the contents of that proposed compact.  Today we hope to examine the history of the Lytton tribe as well as their eligibility for gaming under the Indian Gaming Regulatory Act.  Representatives of the tribe and the Governor’s Office will also present an overview of the compact and we are very much looking forward to that particular overview.

In the afternoon session, we will examine the environmental and regulatory issues surrounding this particular casino and obviously the mitigation aspects of that as well.  We will then finish the hearing with a number of witnesses who will discuss the economic impacts and aspects of this particular compact.


It’s my goal in this particular hearing to learn as much as possible regarding the contents and, if you will, the issues surrounding this particular compact.  This truly needs a hearing, and members of the Legislature need to be fully informed on this particular compact.  So we again thank you very much for coming from, it looks, as though all parts of California to this room today.  We very much look forward to hearing from you.


At the end of the hearing—or at least the formal part of the hearing—let me state that there is also a section for public comment.  So if you would like to comment, please sign up, if you will, with the sergeant of arms so we will be able to hear your particular opinion on this matter.


As we do at every hearing, I would like to tell you that this obviously is an important hearing.  I’d like to welcome in a few moments, I assume, the vice-chair of this committee who is a good friend of mine, and I think will be a great vice-chair this particular year, Jeff Denham, and, of course, the new members will be named later in the afternoon.


That being said, let’s go ahead and begin the hearing.  We’re going to hear from, number one, the history of the Lytton tribe, Margie Mejia, travel chair, and Cheryl Schmidt, Stand Up for California.  So if you could come up and please give us your testimony, we would appreciate it.


Let me also, as you’re walking up, acknowledge Senator Margett who brings experience to this new chair.  Thank you very much for being here.


Senator Soto, thank you for being here as well.


Ms. Mejia, thank you for joining us.


MS. MARGIE MEJIA:  Thank you for having me.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Do you have a statement?


MS. MEJIA:  Yes.  I do.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Great.  Go ahead.


MS. MEJIA:  Mr. Chairman and Members of the Committee, my name is Margie Mejia, and I am the tribal chairwoman of the Lytton Band of Pomo Indians.  Thank you for the opportunity to testify today on the Tribal State Compact negotiated between our tribe and Governor Schwarzenegger.


I’d like to tell you a little bit about our history—the federal government’s attempt to terminate us as a tribe and a people, its actions to redress that wrong, and our journey back towards establishing a sovereign tribal government and economic self-reliance.  I also want you to know about out tribe’s history of commitment to the wonderful people that work at our existing casino, to the City of San Pablo, and to other communities in the region, and to paying our fair share to the State of California.

Before I begin, however, I want to let you know, that since last fall, our tribe has embarked on a very comprehensive effort to listen and substantively respond to the concerns and issues raised by community leaders and the public.  Over the past several weeks, we have been embarked on an effort to listen to what people have to say about our project.  We have talked to more than 1,000 citizens and dozens of public officials.  We will be participating in public forums at senior centers, rotary clubs, or anywhere else that we’re invited.  We have also opened an 800 number to take calls from the public and answer their questions and will soon open a website to encourage further public input.


I also want you to know that we have reached out to and will be willing to sit down with our neighbors—the hospital district—to understand and then address the impacts they are concerned about.  This isn’t a public relations exercise on our part.  After this listening process, we will substantively respond with a new plan that is responsive to community concerns, architecturally appealing, and respectful of our neighbors.


You will hear testimony today from the City of San Pablo representatives about the relationship we have built with them.  One of the first steps we took in San Pablo was to negotiate a municipal services agreement with the city.  At that time, such an agreement was unprecedented in California and was the most protective arrangement between city and regional interests of an Indian tribe in California.  It is a significant example of how, through a corporation, the city, and the Lytton tribe will ensure the safety and quality of life for the local community.  We have developed a strong partnership with the City of San Pablo Police Department which enforces state and local laws at the current card club.  And in fact, the department reports that there is significantly less crime at and near the existing Casino San Pablo facility than before it was built.


This is the kind of commitment to the community the East Bay region and the state, that we carried into the Tribal-State Compact negotiations with Governor Schwarzenegger.  This compact agreement represents one of the strongest state and local partnerships in this country.  The Lytton tribe has agreed to pay state and local governments 25 percent of the casino’s net win on gaming which is estimated at more than $155 million a year.  This is a higher percentage of revenue sharing than any Tribal-State Compact anywhere in the country and more than triple the 8 percent state corporate tax rate.  All told, the economic benefits will be $618 million.

The compact also states that we will negotiate new agreements with the City of San Pablo as well as Contra Costa County and Caltrans to mitigate potential impacts from our new casino and fund our fair share of public services required by the facility.


We agree to strong state oversight and review of the gaming operations, including independent audits, background checks on employees, and prohibitions on gambling by anyone under the age of 21.  We agreed to two exhaustive Environmental Impact Reviews prior to anything being built.  Potential traffic and environmental problems will be identified and addressed.  We fully understand, just like everyone else in the East Bay, that I-80 is a colossal traffic problem.  Our project will make funds available to speed up construction of a new I-80 interchange at San Pablo Dam Road which would reduce the bottleneck in this area.  Mitigation and improvements to local streets and roads will also occur if our project moves forward.


The tribe also agreed to fund well-trained, private security teams, cameras, and other anti-crime safeguards at the casino.  We agree to implement programs to limit problem gaming, and we agree to cut in half the number of slot machines from the original 5,000 to 2,500.


You will hear from some other people who work for us at the existing casino.  We are proud of the union contract we currently honor at Casino San Pablo.  We provide good jobs with good wages, full family health benefits, and a retirement plan and a community with high unemployment.  The new casino will continue its local hiring preference and will create thousands of additional jobs.  Our new workers will also receive good jobs with good benefits.  The economic activity generated by the casino will include increased demand for goods and supplies, creating even more jobs, a total of 6,600 ongoing jobs.  In addition, there will be thousands of construction jobs created, and we’ve made a commitment that these jobs too will be done by union workers.  Finally, we’ve agreed in the Tribal-State Compact to participate in the State Workers Compensation unemployment and disability benefits program.


Now, I’d like to conclude with a few remarks about our tribe.  For us, this casino is a long-awaited opportunity to lift our members out of poverty and achieve economic self-reliance.  Revenues from the new casino will help us get our members off welfare and provide them basic healthcare, education, job training, and housing.  Our tribal members still live in very desperate conditions.  We have many families living together in tiny apartments.  Many have no or inadequate healthcare.  Alcoholism and substance abuse is a continuing problem.  All of these are symptoms of generations of poverty among my people that go back for more than 100 years.  Let me briefly summarize that history.


In the early part of the 20th Century, in response to public concern about the desperate economic situation of California Indians, Congress passed legislation authorizing the purchase of land for homeless Indians known as rancherias.  Some 54 rancherias were established as federal tribal reservations.  One of these rancherias was near Lytton Creek in what is now known as the Alexander Valley in Sonoma County.


My great grandfather, Bert Steele’s family, and other relatives from the Pomo Indian bands, qualified as landless Indians under the federal government’s criteria.  They were allowed to settle on the land by the Bureau of Indian Affairs and were recognized as a tribe by the federal government.  Our tribe lived on the rancheria until the 1950s.  At that time, as part of a failed federal experience to abolish reservations and forcibly assimilate Native Americans into urban areas, the United States government illegally terminated our tribe and we lost our tribal land.


After years of litigation, the government admitted that the determination was unlawful, and a court order restored our tribal status in 1991.  However, that settlement barred us from returning to our tribal lands in the Alexander Valley.


After restoration, we re-established our tribal government, passed the Constitution, and elected a tribal council.  We also began to look for a means out of the relentless poverty many of our members faced.  We found our road to economic self-reliance in the City of San Pablo where, with the help from private investors, we purchased the existing card club which had been approved by local voters in 1994.  Finally, in 2000, to compensate us for the illegal loss of our tribal lands, Congress, with the blessing of the City of San Pablo, ordered the federal government to turn the Casino San Pablo into a reservation for our landless tribes.  We have operated the casino ever since.


Mr. Chairman, for our tribe, this compact represents our past from poverty to self-reliance.  For us, self-reliance means an opportunity to provide housing for our people as part of our tribal community.  It means providing healthcare to our people.  It means providing help to our members who are struggling with alcohol and substance abuse problems.  It means providing educational opportunities to our children and to our grandchildren.


But as people who understand what it is to be poor, we are committed to providing our fair share to the people of the East Bay in California.  This compact is an opportunity for West Contra Costa County and the East Bay to benefit from thousands of good jobs with good wages and good benefits.  We are committed to being good neighbors and to addressing traffic and other impacts.  We are committed to paying our fair share to the State of California.


Thank you, Mr. Chairman.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you very much.  Let’s talk about that fair share for a moment.


How was this number agreed upon?  I mean you mentioned in your testimony of it being, if you will, one of the better compacts in the nation, I think maybe to quote you.  Who came up with that number?  Did you come up with that number?  Did the Governor’s Office come up with that number?  I mean who comes up with the 25 percent ultimately?


MS. MEJIA:  Well, there was a lot of discussion about the casino being in an urban area, the benefits that would come from it.  And being that we were going into an urban area, you know, there were going to be a lot of impact.  And I cannot recall who first came up with the 25 percent, but it was out there on the table.  I went back to my tribal council and let my tribal council know what was out there and what it all entailed, and then my tribal council agreed to it.  And they agreed to it because they want to be good neighbors in the community.


The City of San Pablo has always supported us; they welcomed us.  We’ve had some bad experiences going into other areas where, you know, they weren’t so friendly and they weren’t too accepting of our culture and who we were as Indian people.  So we felt that that was the right thing to do.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Let me just quiz you a little more than that.  So is that where you started, or is that where you ended up?  Did you start with 25 percent; did you start with 10 percent, 5 percent to the Governor’s Office or anyone ask you to do more?


MS. MEJIA:  It was always 25 percent.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  So it started at 25 percent?  And you’re not clear exactly where that 25 percent…


MS. MEJIA:  I don’t remember.  There were several people in the room at the time we were negotiating, and I don’t remember—quite frankly, I don’t remember exactly the point in time that it was thrown out there, but there was a lot of discussion about it.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And in that discussion, obviously, you mentioned the benefits to local government and to the state.  And when you think about those benefits beyond jobs in terms of pure dollars coming in, what’s your understanding of what the state would receive from this particular endeavor?


MS. MEJIA:  It’s my understanding that the state will receive $155 million annually.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And when you come to that conclusion, is that a number coming from the Governor’s Office, or is that something that you’ve calculated, or who comes up with that number?


MS. MEJIA:  Actually, we commissioned a study, and the economist is going to be speaking later throughout the day, and maybe they can give you a more detailed explanation of how that came about.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  We’ll wait for that.  The reason I asked that is obviously, today’s LA Times points out that what the governor considers as real dollars coming in, in many cases, aren’t real dollars.  They’re maybe a number and a compact on someone’s spreadsheet.  But in terms of the General Fund, the dollars that ultimately come in may not be, as you’ve mentioned, $150 million, whatever our share of that is.


How do you view that?  How do you look at that particular, if you will, what’s promised to the state and what ultimately comes in?  Is that based on…


MS. MEJIA:  Mr. Chairman, I might be a simple person, and I don’t pretend to speak for the Governor on what his thoughts were, but my thoughts were my tribe was seeking a compact to provide for its tribal members, and it also wanted to look out for the community in which we work, establishing ourselves, and we agreed to pay the 25 percent.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  So other than agreeing to 25 percent, you’re under no obligation to make sure that that gets to the General Fund?


MS. MEJIA:  Actually, in the compact, there will be three agreements that will be negotiated to address mitigation.  One will be with the City of San Pablo, one will be with Contra Costa County, and one will be with Caltrans.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Let me go back on some of the history aspects.  How was the tribe ultimately able to financially come to acquire the casino in San Pablo?  How did that occur?


MS. MEJIA:  The tribe received funding from a private investors.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  So private investors allowed for…


MS. MEJIA:  They put the money up, yes.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  In terms of that, when did that occur, that particular…

MS. MEJIA:  That occurred last October.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Last October.  Okay.  And in terms of Congress taking this particular casino into a federal trust, how did that—how did we arrive at that?  Can you take us through that a bit?


MS. MEJIA:   Once the tribe established the relationship with the City of San Pablo and had a mutual agreement for moving forward with the project, we put together a strong coalition of support.  We had HERE at the table, we had the City of San Pablo, we were going into an existing facility in a community that had passed a referendum in 1994 by 70 percent in favor of, and we approached the congressman in the district, which was Congressman Miller, and laid out our goals, and he saw the support, and he understood the history of the tribe not being allowed to go back to their ancestral lands, and he worked with us.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Now let me just follow up on that.  The existing support—and you mentioned the 74 percent—what was that?


MS. MEJIA:  The 70 percent?


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Seventy percent.


MS. MEJIA:  In 1994 when the original card club was built, a referendum was passed by the community, and it passed by 70 percent.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And the referendum referred to the…


MS. MEJIA:  The card club.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  The card club as you have it planned now or as the card club as it would have existed then?

MS. MEJIA:  As the card club when it was first built by the non-Indian owners.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And what is the difference in terms of what the 70 percent—what folks would have thought that they’re looking at and what you’re proposing?  What is the major, what are the differentiating factors between that particular 70 percent support and in terms of what you’re doing, structural-wise practices?


MS. MEJIA:  It will be the scope of gaming.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  So is the 70 percent—do you take that as a support for your particular project or as support for a past project?


MS. MEJIA:  It’s support for our past project that supports, that says the community is okay with gaming.  And we’ve been with the City of San Pablo working on this project since 1999—as early as late 1998.  And the support that we received from the community, you know, has not shown us that there’s any difference.  The community supports us.


We have a lot of people out there.  Like I said, we’ve embarked on this listening campaign.  We’ve talked to over 1,000 people, and we’re not hearing—and you’ll hear from the city representative later on in the hearing, and they can address what their constituency is telling them and if anything has changed.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  In terms of the size and the scope of the casino project as proposed, do you believe that there are—I mean some of the newspaper accounts that I’ve read, at least, say that people have problems with the mitigation aspects, given the size and scope.  How would you answer that?  What would you tell them?


MS. MEJIA:  I would answer that by saying, that since last fall, the tribe has made a strong effort to listen to the community.  We’ve been out there; we’ve been talking to people; we’ve been attending functions; we are continuing to talk to anyone that will give us a forum or that will talk to us.  And once we do that, then we will look at our plan and we will come forth with a proposal.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Let me ask you question on the financial structure you mentioned earlier, the private investors that allowed for this to take place.  Are you utilizing a management group?  Is this the same private investors, or are these a different group of folks?


MS. MEJIA:  We are using a management group, yes.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And how much does the management group receive in this particular endeavor?


MS. MEJIA:  The NIGC, the National Indian Gaming Commission, has sort of guidelines or parameters for that, and it’s a 70/30 split, 70 going to the tribes, and our management agreement has not been approved, has completed the approval process, so we are unsure of it’s five years or seven years.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  So let me get it right—70/30 split, 30 percent to the management company, and that is done already, or is that done after five years?


MS. MEJIA:  That’s been agreed to by the tribe and the manager, and it is going through the process as required by the Indian Gaming Regulatory Act.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  I gotcha.  So at the end of the day, in terms of the benefit to the 25 percent, if you will, to local government, the state, and also Caltrans, the three tiers you’ve mentioned, is that after management fees, or is that above the line?  What part of the line are we talking about when we talk and calculate ultimately what is, if you will, the dollars that will proceed to the state’s coffers, to the local government coffers, and to some mitigation efforts?  Is that after all of these types of items are completed—the management fees, et cetera?


MS. MEJIA:  I do not believe so.  I believe that the way—my understanding is, that when the casino is generating revenue, that the cost of doing business is deducted, and then there is a net.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  So it’s at the net?


MS. MEJIA:  It’s at the net.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And in terms of the actual agreement with the state, that would run till 2025?


MS. MEJIA:  Once the compact is ratified, the compact is for 20 years, yes.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  So five years from now, the 30 percent, the management group disappears, and I assume then you’ll be doing it yourselves or you hire another management group, or how would that work?  I’m trying to figure out five years, ten of whether or not the state…


MS. MEJIA:  And Mr. Chairman, I’d like to make it clear, it hasn’t been determined if that will be a five-year or seven-year agreement.  Because of the faith the tribe has in the management company that we have, we’re perfectly content and advocate for a seven-year contract.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  I understand.  Just a couple more questions.  Health benefits.  You mentioned visiting a different type of compact because of the health benefits.  Do the casino workers all receive—are they going to receive health benefits?


MS. MEJIA:  Yes.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  They will.  Okay.  And in terms of the issues of increased jobs—and I know you mentioned that at the beginning of your testimony, and I know there will be report given to us in a little bit as well—but what do you see in terms of potential of jobs increasing in that particular area?


MS. MEJIA:  From what it is now?


SENATOR FLOREZ:  From what it is now.


MS. MEJIA:  I see a significant increase.  Currently, we have a couple hundred employees.  When the new facility—we’re looking at 6,600 ongoing jobs.  And in addition to that, there will be thousands of construction jobs.  And as I pointed out in my testimony, that the tribe has agreed that the construction jobs will be by union workers.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Right.  Two other closing and going back on the historical, just so we’re clear for the record, the tribe was re-recognized in 1988; is that correct?


MS. MEJIA:  That’s when I guess it finally got to court, but it was published in the federal register February 12 of 1991.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And again, the original reason that members sold their land, their tribal land, was what, historically, as you kind of laid out that historic overlay?

MS. MEJIA:  It was part of an attempt by the federal government to terminate the status of the branch of the tribe and mainstream them back.  And in that legislation that allowed that, there were certain requirements that the federal government was supposed to do, and the federal government did not do those.  And when you’ve had people who’ve lived on land for decades of years and the land was in trust, then the land taken out of trust, one of the requirements in the legislation was teaching them about taxes, teaching them about being property owners.  There was a commitment for water; there was a commitment for sanitation.  None of that was complied with.  The government failed to live up to their promise.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you very much.

MS. MEJIA:  Thank you.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  We appreciate it.


Cheryl Schmidt, Stand Up for America.


MS. CHERYL SCHMIDT:  Stand Up for California.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  California.  I’m sorry.  What is Stand Up for California?


MS. SCHMIDT:  Stand Up for California is a grassroots organization, and we’ve been working statewide in California since late 1996 but officially organized in early 1997, and we assist community groups statewide, work as a resource of information to local, state, and federal policymakers by providing information.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Do you have a statement?


MS. SCHMIDT:  I have a statement, if I may.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Sure.


MS. SCHMIDT:  I’ll just start from the top, even after all that.


Good morning, Mr. Chairman and Members of the Committee.  My name is Cheryl Schmidt, and I’m founder and director of Stand Up for California.  I very much appreciate the opportunity to speak before you today on behalf of community groups across this great State of California.  Stand Up for California serves as an advocate and an information resource for community groups and policymakers at the local, state, and federal level trying to respond to the complexities surrounding the expansion of tribal gaming.


We support the efforts of citizens who want to make sure that there are adequate protections for all communities adversely impacted by unregulated gambling expansion.  We do not seek to impede the economic progress and advancement of California’s native people.  Rather, we seek regulatory reforms that we believe are in the best interests of all the inhabitants of this state.  We believe that it is possible to promote responsible growth at tribal gaming and at the same time address the legitimate concerns of the communities in the vicinity of casino operations.  But this possibility heavily depends upon all sides recognizing the duties and responsibilities that we all have to each other.


Tribal governments are federally recognized and have land in trust—excuse me.  Tribal governments that are federally recognized and have land in trust under the Indian Gaming and Regulatory Act legally obligate the governor of the state to enter into good-faith negotiations for a tribal gaming compact.  Lytton is a clear and indisputable exception under the Indian Gaming Regulatory Act.  In compliance with state and federal law, Governor Schwarzenegger has entered into a Tribal-State Compact with the Lytton Band of Pomo.


The Easy Bay also has tribes promoting off-reservation casinos that are outside of the legal authority to obligate the governor to concur with the Secretary of the Interior for a casino.  These are discretionary projects as opposed to a mandatory project such as Lytton.  Off-reservation Indian gaming policy is purely at the discretion of the governor, and the governor has stated in a strongly worded—the governor has stated a strongly worded off-reservation policy in a recent letter to the County of Contra Costa.  Moreover, the Governor’s Office has stated that they are skeptical of the claims of restored lands which some of the tribes are pursuing.


It is my view and the view of many that the claims of restored lands by Goodyville ??, Scott Valley, and Koi ?? Nation and many others in this state are simply phony-baloney claims being funded by gaming profiteers taking advantage of ambiguity and confusion surrounding the political aspects of the Indian Gaming Regulatory Act.


The Legislature, along with the governor, has an opportunity to act now, to request to be parties of interest in acknowledgement issues, to challenge the Secretary of the Interior on policy decisions regarding unique California and Indian law in history.  The time to act is now, not waiting until a compact is presented to you.  There must be active engagement of this Legislature to ensure control of California’s gaming policy.  Our organization is willing to assist legislative members.  Our organization is willing to address this compact issue.

Stand Up for California has long advocated the need for stringent regulations, environmental concerns, patron and employee protection, and judicially enforceable agreements negotiated with effective local governments addressing off-reservation impacts.  While there are many who are still very dissatisfied how Congress developed the trust land for the Lytton, the fact is, it is done.

The question that is now before us is the quality of the intergovernmental agreement.  Does this agreement protect the welfare of the public and the good working order of the state?  The Lytton Intergovernmental Agreement addresses the concerns of our organization.  The newly negotiated Lytton compact sets the bar on all future tribal-state compacts.  It sets the bar on community and local government involvement.  The compact requires three local agreements to be made, more than any other tribe, tribal-state in California or nationally—an agreement with the City of San Pablo, an agreement with the County of Contra Costa, and with the state agency of Caltrans.


The newly negotiated Tribal-State Compact has empowered local government and a state agency to address the mitigation of traffic patterns, sanitation, pollution, zoning, and basic health and safety laws and the size of the gaming facility.  These items are necessary in providing a secure relationship between the state, the state’s political subdivision, and sovereign tribal governments.  These agreements clarify critical jurisdictional and taxation issues.  The newly negotiated Lytton compact addresses patron and employee protections by allowing for an arbitration process and adherence to California’s tort and labor laws.  This restores the judicial process to citizens, unlike the 1999 Tribal-State Compact that this Legislature ratified.  The 1999 Tribal-State Compact allows tribes to ignore the injuries of their patrons and fails to adequately protect workers.  Moreover, the new Schwarzenegger compact provides citizens who believe they’ve been cheated to pursue an arbitration process.


There is greater oversight by the state on the Tribal Gaming Commission.  The state now has the right to remove through an arbitration process persons it believes to be unqualified for a regulator position.  The compact addresses the concerns of charitable bingo operations by not offering bingo games.  The compact provides significant funding for addressing the concerns of problem and compulsive gambling.  The tribe will be required to develop an ordinance which complies with the American Gaming Association Code of Conduct.  This allows for both voluntary and involuntary exclusion of problem gamblers from the casino.  This provides for training of casino personnel to identify these problems, and there are helpline numbers in the casino as well as to be attached to ATM machines.


There is language clarifying the authority of law enforcement on the tribal lands at the casino site.  Law enforcement is free to develop reactive as well as proactive law enforcement measures on tribal lands in San Pablo to protect the health and safety of the public.


And last, but far from least, the revenue the compact provides to the state is significant.  The tribe has agreed to pay for 25 percent of the revenue to the state, not only on the Class III games which IGRA requires compacts address, but the tribe has also agreed to pay the 25 percent on the Class II games. This will equate to approximately $150 million annually to the state from the tribe.  Margie had said $155 (million), and I’m sure her figures are going to be more accurate than mine.


Much has been stated about the size of the gaming facility, but the size will eventually become a negotiation between the city, the county, and Caltrans and the tribe.  These agencies have been empowered by the Tribal-State Compact and have a level playing field to work with the tribe in determining how to balance the size of the facility offset by mitigations and the revenue-generating ability of the casino project to pay for those mitigations.


Stand Up for California believes it’s counterproductive to rebuff the Lytton Band of Pomos which has worked cooperatively and collaboratively to address the many serious and critical-list issues associated with the metropolitan casino.  The intergovernmental agreement negotiated is both enforceable and comprehensive and protects all citizens of California today and into the future.  Thank you.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you very much.


Let’s end with something you mentioned in terms of the size being negotiated.  What did you mean by that?  You say that that’s to be negotiated, the size, and that seems to be one of the pertinent issues today.


MS. SCHMIDT:  Right, right.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  So explain the timing in that.  You’d like the Legislature to ratify a compact before the Legislature knows the size because you are confident that there are Members of the Legislature that aren’t worried about that, or how do you view which comes first?

MS. SCHMIDT:  I think, when you begin to deal with projects—and this Legislature doesn’t intervene with local government to determine the size of how big a Wal-Mart or a Kmart or a shopping mall is going to be in local government.  Local government abides by the California Environmental Quality Act and follows through a process.  And certainly the city and the county and Caltrans are going to be involved in a process and their review, their environmental impact statements, are going to be addressing these concerns.  And if the project is too big and mitigations are so great, how can the tribe possibly pay for those mitigations?  Or if you make the project too small, then there is not enough funding for mitigation.  So it will be a negotiation.  It will follow a California environmental quality-like process.  I believe in the compact it’s called a Tribal Environmental Impact Statement or process.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  But I think just political realities of some of the comments I’ve read in the East Bay newspapers, that there is some concern in the Legislature about the size.  And given that members of the Legislature have a vote on ratification or not, do you plan to take a chance on voting up or down on this prior to giving members of the Legislature some idea on the size issue?  Or do you think that will suffice by simply saying that’s a local government issue, and the Legislature is going to defer to whatever happens after ratification, if that indeed occurs?  Is that a concern?


MS. SCHMIDT:  I think indeed it is a local government issue, and local government, what we’re finding, has to abide by the California Environmental Quality Act.  Tribal governments are sovereign.  They do not need to abide by California law; but city governments, county governments must abide by California law.  And we now have three lawsuits that have rules in favor of community groups or other groups who have opposed local agreements that were made between cities and tribal governments for off-reservation facilities where cities or counties have failed to negotiate in accordance with California Environmental Quality Act.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And what’s the status of those three?


MS. SCHMIDT:  One in Palm Springs was a settlement.  The community group was able to get what they wanted.  The second was in the City of Hesperia where the community group—again, the judge had ruled that the agreement, for all practical purposes, was null and void, but it’s on appeal.  The judge in the last discussion—it was just in the paper the other day—is going to write a decision, and we believe it will be favorable to the city, to the community group.  And the last one was just recently here in Amador County where the citizens group of Plymouth and the Amador County got a favorable ruling against the Ione Band in the City of Plymouth.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  What are the perils of not negotiating a completed compact?


MS. SCHMIDT:  The perils of not negotiating?


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Yes.


MS. SCHMIDT:  They’re significant.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Why don’t you tell us what they are?


MS. SCHMIDT:  Those have been memorialized for the last five years throughout the State of California.  As I said, there’s traffic patterns, there’s pollution, there’s zoning, there’s water, there’s sewage.  All of these are things that tribes need as services.  And when there is no negotiation between the tribal government and a community, the tribe simply uses those services of a community.  Those services are paid for by the revenue of taxpayers and businesses into a city general fund, and that general fund pays for the services that a tribal government uses; and yet, a tribal government does not pay a local or state tax.  So there’s a cost shifting that occurs between the tribal government and the local government and the citizens, and when we provide comprehensive agreements, intergovernmental agreements that address these concerns, then tribes are paying their fair share, not only…

SENATOR FLOREZ:  I get that part of it.  I’m talking about the legal recourse if indeed—the Legislature went into session last year with no decision, right?  And given that…

MS. SCHMIDT:  You mean if the Legislature should choose not to ratify the compact.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Right.


MS. SCHMIDT:  Oh.  Okay.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  For the record, so we understand, there are some issues involved with that as well, correct?


MS. SCHMIDT:  Right.  There are a number of issues, and those are outlined in IGRA.


Well, if this Legislature should choose not to ratify the compact, the tribe would be able to move forward with a bad-faith challenge to the State of California.  And California has not only the federal law that says that the state must negotiate and ratify the compact, but California put in place constitutional language and state statutes that require the governor to negotiate an agreement and the Legislature to ratify the agreement.  I’m not suggesting that the Legislature should just rubber stamp any compact that comes before you.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Well, that’s why we’re here today.


MS. SCHMIDT:  Right. But there are consequences, and you need to be aware of them.  And those consequences could be, like in this situation.  Since the governor has gone forward with a negotiated agreement and if the tribe were to do a bad-faith lawsuit against the state—if I could just read.  It’s hard to keep these things in my mind sometimes:  A tribe could sue the state for bad faith.  The argument is failure of the Legislature to ratify the Tribal-State Compact in good faith.  The state’s waiver of the 11th Amendment, if this is the surviving component of Proposition 5.  A tribe could name the governor, the Legislature, and the attorney general.  The Legislature most likely would have to retain its own legal representation due to conflicting views with the governor and the attorney general.  The provision of IGRA outlines what the legitimate arguments are.


And just to go over those briefly, it’s to take into account the public interest, public safety, criminality, financial integrity, and adverse impacts on existing gaming facilities.  If this is a genuine intention of the state to advance and succeed in the court challenge, the above-mentioned, legitimate issues must be debated and documented on the floor of the Senate and the Assembly.  There must be—and it must be, a well thought-out strategy because this is going to be a long-term event.


Comment and speculation in newsprint is helpful, but only a real debate documented in public record will be meaningful to any state or federal court.  The Legislature will carry a burden of proof that their body has attempted to ratify the agreement in good faith or that the compact as written, does not protect legitimate interests of the state as outlined in IGRA.  The Legislature must assert the sovereignty of the state against the sovereignty of the tribe over those legitimate concerns.


Now if the Legislature were to get a favorable ruling, that would make this compact, for all practical purposes, null and void.  It would give hopefully the tribe—I believe this tribe would go back to the governor and potentially negotiate or renegotiate the concerns of this Legislature but…


SENATOR JEFF DENHAM:  It wouldn’t go to the Secretary of the Interior?

MS. SCHMIDT:  It would not go to the Secretary of Interior if you do not ratify it.


SENATOR DENHAM:  Okay.

MS. SCHMIDT:  Okay.  But it can go to court, and IGRA provides for that because states had failed to negotiate with tribes in good faith.  IGRA, unfortunately, doesn’t provide for negotiations.  It provides for litigation.  And litigation, as you know, usually only addresses very fine points, very fine questions, and it doesn’t provide comprehensive results that we need in this type of an intergovernmental agreement.  The unintended consequence of not ratifying an agreement would be that there would be no revenue sharing with the state, no state regulatory oversight, no clarification of police powers, no patron or employee protections, no environmental mitigation, or no conservation of natural resources—which is significant in some parts our state—no voice for local government, and no need to compact with the governor or seek ratification from the state Legislature.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And in all of those things that would not occur, you just mentioned, were those characteristic of the 1999 compacts that were passed?


MS. SCHMIDT:  Yes.  They were, a failed compact.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Gotcha.  Let me just ask a couple of more questions.  This Standup Up for California is a tribal casino watchdog?  Is that a good term?


MS. SCHMIDT:  Right.  And we’re more of a reform organization or a watchdog.  In the past, I think at times we’ve been characterized as anti-gambling, but we were anti-illegal gambling.  It would have been a more accurate statement.  And that was prior to 2000 when slot machines became legal in the state the first time.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Given that, how many additional Indian tribes are actually seeking to tap the East Bay market?  Do you have any idea?


MS. SCHMIDT:  Well, we have currently three additional proposals—Guidiville, Scotts Valley, and the Koi Nation.  I heard the other day that a tribe was again attempting to redo their petition for federal recognition.  They’ve been turned down once already.  Basically, any of the tribes that are restored tribes can make this attempt.  But again, restored-lands criteria is a very complicated criteria.  Tribes would have to prove some sort of Indian title to that property, they’d have to prove that they’ve lived on the side of the casino since, prior to 1900.  It has to be compelling evidence, and it has to be far more than just some gaming investor, a developer putting up the money for the land.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  So you’ve mentioned three or four.  Do we have an idea of what the market capacity is for gaming, given you’ve got three or four and then there’s obviously a natural capacity?  Do we have any idea what that is?


MS. SCHMIDT:  I have not read that.  I think that’s probably something an economist, somebody like Bill Eddington from the University of Nevada, at Reno could do.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Yes.  We’ll wait and ask that question.  Obviously, I think that’s probably part of the study in terms of trying to figure out what the overall market is.


Just one last question.  You mentioned somewhere in your testimony, I think, a letter sent by the governor.  Can you characterize that again one more time for the committee?


MS. SCHMIDT:  It was a letter sent to the County of Contra Costa.  In fact, I have a copy.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.


MS. SCHMIDT:  I hope I have it with me.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  If you can just give us a broad generalization of it, that would be fine.


MS. SCHMIDT:  The letter from the governor to Contra Costa County, two issues in it—well, actually, three are very important.  First, my favorite paragraph on the second page, where he makes his strongly stated policy on off-reservation gaming in the urban area.  He is opposed to the expansion of off-reservation gaming in urban areas.  And then he follows by saying, moreover, he will not be using his Section 20 concurrence for off—reservation gaming except in some very clear exceptions, and the exception that he gives is, if there were a situation where there was a significant environmental hazard where a tribe is proposing their casino on established Indian land and if they were able to work out a situation with a city or county to move that facility, they would agree with it.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Let me ask you a question.  Based on that criteria the governor has put forward, if that letter had come out a year ago and the Lytton project was now starting, would the Lytton project fit that criteria that the governor laid out himself?


MS. SCHMIDT:  Even a year ago, that wouldn’t have worked because…


SENATOR FLOREZ:  So the governor negotiated Lytton.  So is Lytton the exception to what the governor just put out in terms of urban?


MS. SCHMIDT:  Lytton doesn’t even come into Section 20 concurrence.  That is an exception for Section…


SENATOR FLOREZ:  How about the urban area?


MS. SCHMIDT:  Urban area.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  How about the urban area?


MS. SCHMIDT:  Well…


SENATOR FLOREZ:  We’re not for that, but is it except for Lytton or any more past Lytton?  I mean which one is it?  What’s your reading of it?


MS. SCHMIDT:  The Lytton exception is not a state exception.  It has nothing to do with what this governor or even a past governor did.  It has to do with what Congress has done.  Congress gave this tribe a clear and indisputable exception by granting them land in trust prior to ‘88.


Now the only thing you could do is hope for a statute to overturn that.  But at this point in time, I don’t believe that’s going to happen.  They’ve had this land.  They’ve had this original statute since 2000.  It would have to go through the Committee of Indian Affairs.  The Committee of Indian Affairs, it would be unlikely they would do anything of this nature.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Thank you.  Before I dismiss the panel, at least for this first segment, what is happening with the original land in Alexander Valley?  I mean what’s on it?

MS. MEJIA ??:  If I might, Mr. Chairman.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Please.

MS. MEJIA:  It’s prime wine country.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Prime wine country.  So that’s what happening to it.  I see.  Okay.  Thank you both very much.  We appreciate it and talk to you a little later as well.  Oh, I’m sorry.  I’m sorry, Members.  I’m so used to being so few participation at a hearing.


Let me start with the vice-chair, Mr. Denham and Mr. Margett.


SENATOR DENHAM:  Ms. Schmidt, what previous compacts has your group supported in the past?
MS. SCHMIDT:  We supported the Pala compact in 1998 that Governor Wilson negotiated.  The Pala compact addressed all of these environmental issues.  It addressed patrons’ and employees’ protections.  It addressed law enforcement issues and public health and safety.  It had stringent regulations.  And as such, it was unpopular with a great number of tribes in the state.  Agua Caliente placed that ratified compact on referendum in 1998 and Stand Up for California, along with the National Coalition Against Legalized Gambling—and I forget the third group’s name—it’s changed—supported and carried that referendum on the 2000 ballot, Proposition 29.  It also passed, and it’s also still remains on the statutes today.


SENATOR DENHAM:  Any others?


MS. SCHMIDT:  No.  I was not supportive of Governor Davis’s 1999 Compact because it failed to address the concerns of citizens in these communities that are directly affected by tribal gaming.  The language says in the environmental section that, “to make good-faith efforts to negotiate environmental agreements,” and we have found that we have two different definitions of what good faith is.  And so local government and these communities that are affected by tribal gaming have been significantly affected by the cost shifting and the environmental travesties that have occurred.


SENATOR DENHAM:  So in your opinion, prior to Lytton, Pala is the only tribe that has negotiated between tribe and community in a good-faith effort?


MS. SCHMIDT:  That’s correct, and 11 tribal governments did sign onto that compact at that time, and we were supportive of them.  We have supported the last nine compacts that were negotiated under Governor Schwarzenegger.  I believe that they addressed not only the serious jurisdictional issues but the taxation issues, and they provide a secure relationship between tribal governments and the state government which is good for all of us because it gives us a process and rules to abide by.


SENATOR DENHAM:  And in negotiating a complete compact, is it your opinion that each of the different areas of criteria that you laid out—traffic, sewage, water, environmental impacts, impacts the community—have all been worked out in this current situation?


MS. SCHMIDT:  Right, because what the compact does is, it empowers local government to address these concerns, and that is the job of local government.  And by empowering local government, you empower the citizens of the community to come forward and work with local government as we are used to doing to address the concerns, to raise our grievances or our conflicts, to present the information that we feel might be helpful to local government in addressing these issues.  And that’s how the process has been working.  That’s the best way to give citizens a voice today and into the future and the ongoing developments of any tribal development.


SENATOR DENHAM:  Thank you very much.


MS. SCHMIDT:  Sure.  Thank you.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Mr. Margett and then Ms. Soto.

SENATOR BOB MARGETT:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.


Just one or two questions for the panelists here.  I have not heard—and excuse my ignorance of your Stand Up for California.  Will you tell me or maybe you, in my absence, gave a little history of who you are.

MS. SCHMIDT:  Who the heck am I?  (Laughter)


SENATOR MARGETT:  Well, no, no.  You.  What is your group, I mean, Stand Up for California?  You’re in the flesh here.  Who is Stand Up for California?


MS. SCHMIDT:  Stand Up for California is a coalition-building group.  Right now, if you were to go to the internet and go to the website that we have, is standup.ca.org.  You’ll see a list of community groups that are off to the side on the left-hand column.  These are community groups that I work with on a daily basis providing them information, helping them develop strategies, drafting of letters, and…


SENATOR MARGETT:  Do you have a staff that you work with?


MS. SCHMIDT:  No.  There’s no staff.

SENATOR MARGETT:  Are you it?  Are you the person?

MR. SCHMIDT:  I am it.


SENATOR MARGETT:  Okay.


MS. SCHMIDT:  Other than the community group leaders and the community representatives in each and every community.


SENATOR MARGETT:  Okay.  Fine.  Where does your funding come from then?


MS. SCHMIDT:  My funding comes from these community groups.


SENATOR MARGETT:  The community groups grant you money to be able to…


MS. SCHMIDT:  Right.  They send me money.


SENATOR MARGETT:  Okay.  Can I get on the list?


MS. SCHMIDT:  Yes.  (Laughter)


SENATOR MARGETT:  No.  I’m just being facetious.


MS. SCHMIDT:  But I would be more than happy to put a member of your staff on the Daily Clips List that I send out so that you can become informed.


SENATOR MARGETT:  Fine.  I guess the next question goes to Ms. Mejia.  Can we go to a couple of the statements that you made when I was sitting here?  How many members are in your tribe, and what percentage of those members are in poverty?  You said that there is much of them or many were in poverty.  Can you quantify that?


MS. MEJIA:  There are 277 tribal members in the Lytton Band of Pomo Indians.  I would say the unemployment rate fluctuates between 60 and 70 percent, and that is due to the lack of job training, education opportunities.


SENATOR MARGETT:  In other words, they were never mainstreamed into our society that we have today?
MS. MEJIA:  That’s correct.

SENATOR MARGETT:  What is the structure of your new entity?  I believe you said last October there was investors that came in that wanted to back your tribe in this venture.  What type of entity?  Is that a partnership, corporation?  Do you know what that is?


MS. MEJIA:  It’s a partnership.  It’s partnership between a variety of different people.  It’s not just any one investor.  There is a major investor and they have taken…


SENATOR MARGETT:  Can you just tell us who some of those major investors are?


MS. MEJIA:  The Rumsey Indian tribe.


SENATOR MARGETT:  In other words, other tribes have participated in this?


MS. MEJIA:  The Rumsey Indian tribe, the Pala Indian tribe have invested in this, yes.


SENATOR MARGETT:  Okay.  Any money coming from other gambling interests, like out of Las Vegas or maybe Florida or New Jersey?  Any of that money—Reno, Las Vegas?

MS. MEJIA:  I haven’t made that list.  There is a partner that the Rumsey and Pala group that owns a small piece of their partnership.  I can’t speak to what that small piece is, but there is one that I know of.


SENATOR MARGETT:  Let’s go back to your tribe, the demographics of your tribe.  You say you have around 270 tribe members at this point?


MS. MEJIA:  I have 277, sir, unless somebody gave birth after I left the tribal office.  (Laughter)

SENATOR MARGETT:  Okay, 200.  all right.  Fine.  Where is the gene pool in this?


MS. MEJIA:  Excuse me?

SENATOR MARGETT:  The gene pool.  In other words, how many of your tribe members have that blood coming through that can be identified?


MS. MEJIA:  Our tribal membership is based on direct lineage from the original people that lived on the land before it was terminated, so part of the tribe, before it was terminated.


SENATOR MARGETT:  Okay.  Fine.  But probably like many Indian tribes, the gene pool in those particular tribes are probably dissipated by now.


MS. MEJIA:  I think we’re no different than other tribes.


SENATOR MARGETT:  Let’s go to your construction jobs.  You indicated that you’re going to have union construction jobs.  What’s wrong with the non-union job seeker working in your construction projects?  Is there something wrong with that?


MS. MEJIA:  No.  There’s not anything wrong, but we’re proud to work with the unions.  The unions have been supportive, and they’ve been good friends to the tribe, and the union wage is a good wage and we decided to do that.

SENATOR MARGETT:  Any of your 270 members, are they union members?


MS. MEJIA:  Well, they would love to be.  No, I don’t think…


SENATOR MARGETT:  Will the unions not let them in?


MS. MEJIA:  I don’t think that they’ve had the job training or the opportunity, the jobs skills, to do that.


UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  __________?


MS. MEJIA:  Pardon me?  Is it because they’re members of the union or they want to be or they will be union or whatever?  I think tribal members that are unemployed and living—multiple families in small apartments will take just about any kind of job that would provide a good wage and health benefits and so forth.

SENATOR MARGETT:  Maybe you’re wrong, and I’m not going to make a big deal out of it, but I’m just curious as to here is an entity, your tribe, that is in poverty; you said that they’re unemployed and that they have substance abuse.  And all of a sudden, you’re going to say only union members can work on that.  That would be rather exclusive to others.


MS. MEJIA:  Oh, I see.  You’re questioning why we wouldn’t let tribal members.


SENATOR MARGETT:  Well, tribal members or anybody else who is—I would say, that if you have poverty in the San Pablo area, why would you exclude other people wanting to work there in your project because they’re not union if they’re paying prevailing wages?


MS. MEJIA:  I’m not sure I understand.


SENATOR MARGETT:  That’s okay.  I don’t mean to put you on the spot.  I have nothing else.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you, Senator.


Senator Soto has a question.


SENATOR NELL SOTO:  I was curious about a statement that Ms. Schmidt made, environmental travesty.  That sounds pretty…


MS. SCHMIDT:  Pretty significant, isn’t it?


SENATOR SOTO:  Yes.  It is, to me, to me being a semi-environmentalist.  I don’t know what you meant by environmental travesty.  Describe it.


MS. SCHMIDT:  Well, probably the environmental travesty that comes to my mind is in Alexander Valley where the Lytton tribe was originally from.  We have the Dry Creek Rancheria.  And as you know, in Sonoma County, most folks can’t even grade their property during certain times of the year, or you need a permit to grade.  And the Dry Creek Band has graded off the top of a mountain and put in place a very large parking structure and gaming facility.  At the point of time that they were doing this in compliance with the 1999 Tribal-State Compact, there was supposed to have at least be some conversations between the tribe and the county, and there were.  But mitigations were never really addressed to the degree that the county wanted.  The governor and the attorney general even weighed in on this, and a meet-and-confer process began.


Still, if you can view this environmental travesty from Highway 101, it is not something that anyone else would be able to build in the state.  And so under, you know, the new conditions in the Tribal-State Compact when I talk about negotiations between counties and tribes and cities, it’s significant.  It would have prevented much of the problems that occur in that area from happening.

Did I address that well enough?


SENATOR SOTO:  A little bit.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Senator Denham and then Senator Margett.


SENATOR MARGETT:  I was not totally finished, and I hate to belabor this.  It’s just that we have a public hearing, and I think that that’s what public hearings are for.


You know, I guess maybe I had some recollection that the Maloofs, those who own the Kings, the wonderful Kings, are they part of these investors?


MS. MEJIA:  Yes.  Without question.


SENATOR MARGETT:  What percentage do you know that they’re investing in this?


MS. MEJIA:  Their agreement is not with me.  Their agreement is with the major partner of that partnership.  So the tribe has an agreement with the management company.  That management company has control over who their partnership is.


SENATOR MARGETT:  I get it.


MS. MEJIA:  And I wasn’t privy.  It’s not my concern.  My concern is to protect the tribe.  So when you have a 70/30 split, on the side that has the 30, divide it up however they want to, that’s their business, as long as they don’t infringe upon my 70 percent that I’ve agreed to on behalf of the tribe, that’s the way the chips fall.


SENATOR MARGETT:  Well, you’re into a huge enterprise.  I mean I would certainly want to know what the 70 percent side is going to say, especially if you have a small tribe when you’re coming out of poverty.


MS. MEJIA:  Critically, most important to the tribe is to make sure, that when we engage with the management company, that they have the qualifications and the background to handle our project.  And we are more than confident that the group that is involved in the management agreement possess those skills.


SENATOR MARGETT:  And the management company.  Are we aware of the management company?  You said you had partners.


MS. MEJIA:  It’s California Indian Gaming Management Company.


SENATOR MARGETT:  Okay.  And that’s not a corporation?


UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  It’s a partnership.

MS. MEJIA:  It’s a partnership incorporated.


SENATOR MARGETT: It’s a partnership that’s been incorporated?   A limited partnership?


SENATOR FLOREZ:  It’s an LLC, right?


MS. MEJIA:  There you go.  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  There you go.


Mr. Margett, do you have any more questions?


SENATOR MARGETT:  No, no, no, Mr. Chairman.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Let’s go to Senator Soto and then vice-chair, Denham and then we’re going to move on.


SENATOR SOTO:  What does someone have to do to get on your mailing list.  Someone said that you had a mailing list or you have some information or a newsletter that goes out or something?  Was it you, Ms. Schmidt?

MS. SCHMIDT:  Yes.  I send out a mailing clips list of news stories and letters that are written by counties or public works, transportation, governor’s letters, lawsuits.


SENATOR SOTO:  Are they anti-compact letters or pro or what?


MS. SCHMIDT:  They are what they are.  They are letters from counties who are opposing off-reservation casinos.  They are the governor’s letter that gives his strong position on off-reservation casinos.  They are stories written in environmental magazines, Terrain.  They are the daily news and lawsuits, usually the lawsuits that deal with gaming specifically.


SENATOR SOTO:  Well, I would like to get more information, but I want accurate information.  I want the truth.  So if you’re sending out a newsletter, please put me on your mailing list.

MS. SCHMIDT:  All right.


SENATOR SOTO:  And the Lytton people also.  I would like to know both sides.  Generally, I’m for gaming.  I really believe that that’s one way to do business with the Indian tribes, and I’m very supportive, but I would like a little bit more information on what it is, how can I help you and what can we do to help you.  Thank you.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Vice-Chair Denham.


SENATOR DENHAM:  Ms. Mejia, what are the assets you currently have in trust right now?


MS. MEJIA:  My big reservation, my nine acres in the City of San Pablo.


SENATOR DENHAM:  On that nine acres, it’s currently farmland right now?


MS. MEJIA:  Currently, there is an existing California card club that on October 9 at 1:50 p.m. was signed into trust for the tribe.


SENATOR DENHAM:  How large is the card club?


MS. MEJIA:  I would say about 20,000 square foot.

SENATOR DENHAM:  How many tables?

MS. MEJIA:  About 50 or 60.


SENATOR DENHAM:  And getting back to Senator Margett’s question, he was trying to understand your current unemployment rate.  And responding to his question, it seemed like you were defending the need for a compact based on the poverty level of your current tribe.  With a card room of 20,000 square feet, 50 to 60 tables, do not have the capacity to employ the—what do you have?  Your unemployment rate is about 75 people?  You can’t employ 75 people at this…


MS. MEJIA:  Currently, my tribal members, when the tribe was terminated, stayed in—the majority of them stayed in the local Santa Rosa area, okay?  They live in very desperate conditions.  I mean to get to the East Bay to work and training and everything, you know, we just haven’t been able to do that. 


SENATOR DENHAM:  Santa Rosa, that’s where Alexander is?


MS. MEJIA:  Correct, 12 miles north of Santa Rosa.


SENATOR DENHAM:  And how many acres were in the original lands?

MS. MEJIA:  There were 50 acres.


SENATOR DENHAM:  Fifty?


MS. MEJIA:  Yes, sir.


SENATOR DENHAM:  Which is in Alexander?


MS. MEJIA:  That’s correct, prime wine country now.


UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  It’s right off of 128.


SENATOR DENHAM:  Thank you.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  I don’t know.  Just to follow up with Mr. Margett, the reason you’ve used a management company is….


MS. MEJIA:  The reason that we use the management company?  Because we haven’t had the educational opportunity as a tribe to know how to do that.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Gotcha.  And the reason you use union labor is...


MS. MEJIA:  For jobs, to provide jobs in the area.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Great.  Thank you very much.  Appreciate it.

MS. SCHMIDT:  Mr. Chairman.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Yes.


MS. SCHMIDT:  If I can just add to that.  I think it’s much preferred in the state when tribes use management contracts, management companies, simply because that management contract is reviewed by the National Indian Gaming Commission and that triggers--

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Standards, right?


MS. SCHMIDT:  --standards, and that triggers the need for a national environmental impact study.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Right.  Great.  Thank you very much.


SENATOR SOTO:  Mr. Chairman.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  It was a closing question.


SENATOR SOTO:  What closing question?  On the Stand Up for California organization—I guess that’s what you call it.


MS. SCHMIDT:  Right.


SENATOR SOTO:  How many members do you have?


MS. SCHMIDT:  I don’t know.  We don’t keep a membership.  What we are is a coalition-building organization.  And so I have numerous community groups throughout the state.  They’re homeowners associations.  In Alexander Valley, it’s the Alexander Valley Association.  In Palm Springs, there is two or three different community groups.


SENATOR SOTO:  So if I wanted to hear from some of them, you wouldn’t even be able to tell me?

MS. SCHMIDT:  I can put you in contact with individuals, yes, group leaders in those various areas.


SENATOR SOTO:  And also for the support group, I’d like to see what their difference is and why is it that they’re opposing.  And if there’s not that many, then maybe they’re not as strong as they purport to be, and maybe it would be better to know more of the pros, people that are for it.


MS. SCHMIDT:  I tried very hard in 1998 to find citizens who are concerned about the proposed facility at the Lytton—at the San Pablo—location, and I could not find anyone who was opposed to this facility, so there was really no one for me to work with at that time.  I did work with the City Attorney of San Pablo because I was very concerned about what he thought might be important in a local agreement, and we had had some luck in our county, Placer County, in developing a model agreement.  In fact, our agreement was much better than the 1999 Tribal-State Compact, and the tribe that we worked with provided significant benefits to the county, so I corresponded with that city government.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Mr. Margett.


SENATOR MARGETT:  One more time here.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  You’ve got it.


SENATOR MARGETT:  I’ve got to get back here to where the seed money came from—the loan, the backers, whatever you want to identify the original investment that allows you to acquire the property that you are contemplating at your structure.  Who are they?  What were their amounts?  How much did you pay for all that?  Can you tell me about it?


MS. MEJIA:  Who put every dollar; is that correct?


SENATOR MARGETT:  I want to know who your investors are initially.


MS. MEJIA:  Initially they were two developers from Philadelphia—Sam Katz and Sam Greenblatt, originally.

SENATOR MARGETT:  Okay.  What do they pay you for that?  How did you come into an agreement with them?  What was their share to be able to buy into their agreement?


MS. MEJIA:  They were at the time considered the management company.  Their share would have been 30 percent.


SENATOR MARGETT:  What did they pay for it?


MS. MEJIA:  Pardon me?


SENATOR MARGETT:  What did they pay for it?

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  For the card club?


MS. MEJIA:  For the card club?
SENATOR MARGETT:  Money.  I’m looking for the money trail.


MS. MEJIA:  The total amount paid for the card club was $21 million.


SENATOR MARGETT:  Twenty-one million.  And how much did you come up with?  How much did the tribe come up with on that?


MS. MEJIA:  Sir, the tribe has nothing.


SENATOR MARGETT:  All right.  Then the $21 million came from the two Philadelphia investors?

MS. MEJIA:  It came from the management company.  You asked who initially was the very initial investors.  There has been a long history here.  We’ve been working on this project since 1996, okay?  In 1996, we began working with the two developers from Philadelphia.  They were not able to continue on.  They took on the partnership of the Rumsey tribe.  They’ve kind of taken a very neutral position, a very silent partner, if you will, a step back, and the group of investors that the primary shareholder or stakeholder in the partnership would be the Rumsey tribe and the Pala tribe.


SENATOR MARGETT:  Can you tell me about how much those dollar amounts are?


MS. MEJIA:  I don’t have those figures in front of me.


SENATOR MARGETT:  Okay.

MS. MEJIA:  But I will be happy to send you a letter addressing your concerns.


SENATOR MARGETT:  That’s nice.  That would be very nice of you.


I would like to know—the Committee would like to know--who—a little bit of the history of the money trail in this particular deal so that we’re out in the open; we know where the money has come from, who the investors are, what their amounts are.


MS. MEJIA:  Mr. Chairman, I will have a letter sent to the Committee on that.


SENATOR MARGETT:  Thank you.  That would be very valuable.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you, Mr. Margett.


Maybe with that chronology as well of not just the amounts but when and how, that would be very helpful to the Committee.


Any other closing comments?


Thank you very much for this particular panel.  Thank you very much.  If you could stick around, if possible, for the hearing.  I assume you will.  The vice chair’s asked, that maybe after hearing from local governments near the end of the hearing, we can also get some comments from you as well.  Okay.  Thank you very much.


Okay.  Let’s go on, if we could, to Section III of the hearing, Michael Cox, former general counsel, National Indian Gaming Commission.  And from a time perspective, just for everyone to understand, we’re going to probably try to do this—Mr. Cox, if possible—in about 15 minutes.  I hope that allows you enough time to give us an overview as to questions from members.  And from about, hopefully, 11:45 to 12:15, we’d like to then go over the details of the compact.  And at 12:15, our Republican colleagues have a caucus I’d like to accommodate, and then we will come back at probably about what time, Mr. Vice-Chair, about 1:00?  Then we’ll come back at 1:15 and continue the hearing, so that would be the schedule, if we can try to meet back.


I will say to my Republican colleagues, if we are not at a time at 12:15 going through the compacts that allows you to leave, I would ask if you would be just be a little late to your caucus, if possible, so we can at least get through some of that.


Okay.  I’m sorry, Mr. Cox.  Go ahead.


MR. MICHAEL COX:  Thank you Mr. Chairman, Members of the Committee.  My name is Michael Cox.  I just have sort of a short—not really a statement—because I view myself here as kind of a resource, if I can be, to deal with the basic requirements of the Indian Gaming Regulatory Act and what’s required of the tribe to go forward and to be able to lawfully conduct gaming.

I have 31 years of experience in Indian law.  I spent ten years in the Department of the Interior in the Office of the Solicitor, working on Indian land and land-claim matters.  In my last few years in the Interior Department, it was passage of the Indian Gaming and Regulatory Act in 1988, and I was asked by the Solicitor to be the point person on the legal issues for Indian gaming until such time as the National Indian Gaming Commission was established.


In 1990, I was selected by the Bush Administration to be the first general counsel of the National Indian Gaming Commission, and I served in that position until 1996.


SENATOR FLOREZ: Can I ask you three questions that might get to the heart of it?  Thanks.

MR. COX:  Certainly.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  The requirement and timeline for good-faith negotiations between the state and the tribe, how does that work?  Can you explain that to the Committee—the requirement and the timeline—for what is in terms good faith?  How does that work?  How are you to view that here from the Legislature’s point of view?


MR. COX:  The Indian Gaming Regulatory Act sets out a timeframe for the negotiations.  And from the time which the tribe makes the request of the state to negotiate, the tribe—the Gaming Act—provided that 180 days, before the tribe could bring any sort of action challenging the state or asserting that the state had failed to negotiate or failed to negotiate in good faith, there was a 180-day time period in which the tribe had to at least wait to see if the state were prepared to negotiate or once negotiations had taken place or gotten underway, whether they, you know, in fact, the negotiations had broken, had broken down.


Now the Committee should know that that particular part of the Gaming Act, which basically authorized the tribes to be able to bring a legal suit against the state for failing to negotiate, or failing to negotiate in good faith, was struck down by the Supreme Court.  And so that particular part of the Gaming Act, it doesn’t really work because the Supreme Court held that Congress did not have the authority to waive the sovereign immunity of the state under the 11th Amendment, and that has not been fixed, certainly by Congress, although the Interior Department did promulgate regulations that provide for an alternative process called Class III gaming procedures in the event that there’s a failure to negotiate or a failure to negotiate in good faith and the state invokes its 11th Amendment immunity from suit in a lawsuit; and the case gets dismissed, tribes can then petition the Secretary of the Interior for what’s called Class III gaming procedures.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And if indeed the state and the tribe do not come to agreement within these negotiations, again, what’s the recourse?


MR. COX:  Well, if they’re unsuccessful, either the tribe has to continue to try to see if there’s a way to accommodate the interest of the state, or it could bring a legal action.  Again, if the appropriate time has passed and an attempt to litigate the matter in court and if the state were to invoke its 11th Amendment immunity and the case gets dismissed on that ground, then the tribe could then petition the Secretary of the Interior.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.


MR. COX:  And that begins a fairly involved process that could or could not lead to procedures that would allow the tribe to go ahead and offer Class III gaming.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Members, do you have any other questions?


Was there anything you’d like to add?


MR. COX:  Just a few basic points for the Committee and based on things I’ve heard on the first panel.  You know, in order for a tribe to lawfully be able to engage in gaming, whether it’s Class II or Class III gaming, you have to have, of course, a federally recognized tribe, one that has been recognized by the Secretary of the Interior, as eligible for the federal program’s services that are only provided for tribes.  And the tribe also must have land that qualifies as Indian land as that term is defined in the Act.


For tribes that don’t have Indian lands held in federal trust, there are certain restrictions and requirements that apply, and those have been somewhat mentioned.  You know, a tribe has to—well, the Gaming Act provides that you cannot game on lands that are acquired in trust after the date of enactment of the Indian Gaming Regulatory Act, October of 1988.  But the Act does provide a number of exceptions to that general prohibition.  And one would be, if there’s a settlement of a land claim with a tribe and as part of that process land is acquired in trust as part of that process or that settlement, and that usually takes the form of legislation, whether there’s actually federal legislation that resolves the tribe’s claim and then land is acquired in trust for that purpose.  If that occurs, then the tribe would be—that land would qualify for gaming purposes.


The other that was mentioned that I think you’re seeing in California is the issue of the restoration of lands of a tribe that’s been restored to federal recognition, and that has been the subject of litigation both in Oregon and Michigan.  It’s been the subject of opinions by the National Indian Gaming Commission, and it’s not as wide open as some might believe.  One is you have to be a tribe that’s restored.  And I think a tribe must have had a federal relationship at one time.  That relationship was terminated by the federal government and then reestablished again.  That would make the tribe a restored tribe, and then the issue is, do the lands that they acquire after that become lands that are restored to the tribe as part of that process?  And that’s where the courts and both the Department of the Interior and the National Gaming Commission have given a fairly rigid view of what is required.  So it’s not just any lands that a tribe acquires after they’ve been restored would qualify.  There needs to be—you have to look at the specific factual situations as to how the lands are acquired, and it’s very important that there’s a connection between the lands historically and socially and that the tribe has to the property.  So it just can’t be any place they want to have them.

The mention of management contracts, if a tribe is going to have an outside contractor manage their facility, as was mentioned in the previous panel, that contract must be submitted to the National Indian Gaming Commission, and it must comply with both the statutory requirements, and there’s some fairly detailed requirements for management contracts as well as limits on the amounts that an outside contractor can receive as compensation for the services provided.  I mean this is very specific where Congress imposed specific numbers.  There’s a limit on the term, and there’s a limit on the percentage of net revenues.

And so as a general matter, these management contracts cannot exceed five years in length or 30 percent of net revenues.  But under certain circumstances, if, based on the capital investment that’s being made and the income projections, the contract can be for a term of no longer than seven years and up to 40 percent of net revenues that an outside contractor can receive.  As part of that review process by the National Indian Gaming Commission, they also look at the background of those who have a financial interest in that contract.  But that generally, in the case of Class III gaming, is also done by the state, if that’s part of the state compact that they’ve chosen to have an oversight role over who is going to be participating in that gaming operation.  So you have the commission also looking at the backgrounds of those individuals and entities that have a financial interest in the management contract.  And the commission chairman is authorized to disapprove a contract if he finds that any one of those individuals or entities is unsuitable.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Members, any questions?


SENATOR DENHAM:  What’s the trend for urban casinos nationwide?


MR. COX:  You don’t see very many of them—that’s for sure—in the sense that I’m only aware of a few.  In fact, since the passage of the Indian Gaming Regulatory Act in 1988, there are three off-reservation Indian, fee-to-trust acquisitions for gaming that have been both approved by the Department of Interior and also concurred in by the governor of the state.  And the first one that ever went through that particular process was the Forest County Potawatames, that they have a casino in Milwaukee.  You do not see many urban casinos.


The Secretary of the Interior, both in the Clinton Administration and this administration and the previous Bush Administration that I was part of took a very—I mean they were very careful about considering fee-to-trust applications for, you know, off-reservation casinos, especially in urban areas.  And I would say that the one threat that runs through any administration that I’d been associated with in the Department of Interior is there has to be local community support for any, really, off-reservation acquisition in which the Department is going to support it.  That’s just the bottom line.  They will not—they’ll process the application by the end of the day.  They will take a very hard line unless there is local community support for these projects.

SENATOR DENHAM:  Out of the few casinos that you’ve seen nationwide in urban areas, have there been any of them that have had exclusivity over the entire urban area?


MR. COX:  Again, you mentioned urban casinos.  There really aren’t many urban casinos, Indian casinos.  The first geographical exclusivity that I am aware of was just a few years ago that involved the Seneca nation of New York.  That was part of their compact with the State of New York in which the Senecas were given a geographical area around certain areas in which the state had approved their building casinos.  And the Department of the Interior—the Secretary of the Interior—in a letter to the governor and to the tribe, expressed the view that she had some concerns about the exclusivity provisions, primarily if they prevented other tribes from being able to engage in gaming, but she believed that the Gaming Act did not prohibit those.


SENATOR DENHAM:  Are there other issues that you see in this compact that are different from any others that you’ve seen across the—nationwide?  I mean what really stands out to you in this other than exclusivity and being an urban area that shows a great deal of difference than what you’ve seen in the past?

MR. COX:  Well, I think it’s a very comprehensive compact.  And as we’re seeing more and more of the more recent compacts in the early days of the Gaming Act, the compacts were pretty bare.  And I think, as the states saw the expansion of gambling and began to want to engage in more discussions about more than just the scope of gaming and who’s going to regulate it but to the, you know, the facility itself and health and safety issues and environmental issues.  And so I think that I don’t think the compact is unusual compared to other compacts that you’ve seen.  Revenue sharing is something that in the beginning the Department of Interior took a very thin view of, that is, revenue sharing, direct payments to the state, and a policy evolved in a department that began to take a hard look at their initial positions they took and eventually involved to a position where, if the tribe was getting a substantial benefit from the state, that that would justify a payment.  And I think in the case of California or some other states, it’s the fact that the state has given tribes the exclusive right to operate certain games that others cannot operate, and that’s a very valuable, valuable consideration.


SENATOR SOTO:  What kind of exclusive rights do you get, and what do you have to do for them?

SENATOR COX:  Well, obviously, it’s negotiated, and my understanding of this particular one—the state, of course, is looking—if the states are looking for a way to receive revenue sharing from the tribes through the Gaming Act, they’re aware of the Department of the Interior’s views.  They have to be able to convince the secretary that the tribe is getting a substantial benefit in exchange for that payment.  And so one way is through giving exclusive rights to operate certain games which has been done here.  The other way could be, or in combination with that, would be a geographical exclusivity.  Or, I think it’s really more like we will continue to make payment, that is, the tribe will make the payment to the state so long as we have this exclusive right.  If that exclusive right goes away, then we no longer are required to make the payment.

SENATOR SOTO:  So the big—I’m sorry—so the bigger the payment, the stronger the right?


MR. COX:  Well, the larger the payment to the state, it has to be sort of equal to the benefits that the tribe is getting, the substantial benefit.  You’re trying to balance that out.


Now I think the chairwoman of the Lytton Band mentioned that they would be paying 25 percent of the net win from all of the games that they operate.  And certainly 25 percent of net win is what the two Connecticut tribes pay the State of Connecticut with respect to the slot machine revenues that they make.  So the 25 percent is certainly something that has been done in the past in a compact.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Any other questions of members?


Thank you very much.


MR. COX:  Thank you.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay. Let’s go to the Overview of the Compact.  We have Anthony Hernandez of the Governor’s Office of Planning and Research; Jim Tilton, Program Budget Manager, Department of Finance; and Howard Dickstein, Dickstein & Zerbi.


MR. ANTHONY HERNANDEZ:  Good morning, Mr. Chair.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you.  Do you have a narrative, or would you like me to ask you questions?  You can pick either one.

MR. HERNANDEZ:  I’ll just be really, really brief and go over some points and probably touch on some questions that you had answered—or some questions that you had asked before—that I can maybe provide some enlightenment.  I will try to be brief, understanding the time constraints and the fact that there are two other people to my left.


Just real quickly, I want to thank Ms. Mejia for her work on the compact on behalf of the administration.  We obviously had to sit back and go through the negotiation process to make this work and bring forth the compact to you today that is hopefully supportable.  I know we’ve had witnesses that talked about if certain things don’t happen, but we’re hopefully here to present you with a compact that can go forward.


Just real quickly, part of the goals coming into negotiating a compact that the governor had outlined where the tribes must contribute a fair share to both local and state entities, the tribes must set aside a process or set up a process to mitigate environmental impacts on the surrounding communities; tribes must ensure that the facilities are safe; and the tribes also must ensure protection for employees.  I think, in the compact that I’m about to—the parts of the compact that you’ll see that hopefully we’ve accomplished each of those goals.  We think we have.  First, the compact allows for 2,500 Class III gaming machines.  It does prohibit Bingo, unlike some of the compacts discussed earlier.  The compact requires the Lytton Rancheria to contribute its fair share.  I think we’ve talked about the 25 percent net win.


I think just going back to one of the questions that you had asked earlier, Senator Florez, with regard to Net Win, that specifically is outlined in the compact, to describe it as a wagered amount, minus prizes, minus the payouts, and then minus participation fees which are defined in the compact itself.  It talked about rent on the machines that the tribe does not own.  So it’s not after.  I think a 30/70 split.  It’s not after that.  It’s actually before that amount, for the share.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Pre-profit, pre-profit line?


MR. HERNANDEZ:  Correct.  Did that answer your question fully?


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Perfect.


MR. HERNANDEZ:  Obviously, there’s an exclusivity clause of 35 miles.  We’re not aware of any other tribe with gaming eligible land that is within that zone at this time.  I think some mentioned—some earlier presenter had mentioned that the letter from the Governor’s Office with regard to urban gaming and I guess the dislike for urban gaming—obviously, this was a different situation because of the federal actions to give them gaming eligible land.  Then at that point, the administration had to negotiate in good faith with the tribe.


Obviously, there’s several different components of this compact—the approval and testing devices to ensure fair play.  Basically, if there’s disputes, it provides for binding arbitration which we see in the compact instead of—I think some of the earlier compacts that were discussed—dealt with the tribal process.  This actually has a tribal process plus; if there’s still a dispute between a patron, you go through binding arbitration which is a different feature.  The tribe is required to follow a CEQA-esque type of environmental review.  I think it was also mentioned earlier, the tribal environmental impact review process, which will go through state clearinghouse.  It actually opens up the process for public review.  Within that actual process, it does provide—and I think the way it was set up, it was sort of under the home rule principle that local governments know what’s best in their communities and can also hear from their communities.  It’s set up to allow the City of San Pablo, as well as the County of Contra Costa, to be involved in the negotiations.  It actually just sets the process up and allows them to negotiate some of the terms out to fit their needs.  Also, again, allowing for Caltrans, I think that was the other part of that.  It allows for the cost to provide ambulance, fire, and law enforcement services, the cost to provide to assist with the gaming problems.


Again, if any of these negotiations break down, there are provisions of the compact that allow any side to seek binding arbitration to go through their points.  It requires a $10 million insurance policy, and requires that the tribe waive their sovereign immunity up to that policy limit, requires that workers compensation and unemployment insurance for their employees.  It also has provisions in terms of tribal labor relations, ordinances, and requires that they allow for self-organization of the employees, if they so choose.  These terms are effective until December 2025, and those are the major points.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Great.  We have some questions, and then we’re going to proceed on and then I think maybe questions for all of you.  We can just kind of add in.


Public review.  You mentioned public review.  What kind of public review?


MR. HERNANDEZ:  I believe through the tribal environmental impact process…


SENATOR FLOREZ:  So you have standard EIR type of…


MR. HERNANDEZ:  I don’t want to say the standard EIR, but it’s definitely mirrored after or very similar, so, yes, through that process, yes.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  The process is mirrored…


MR. HERNANDEZ:  Correct.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  It’s not like a negative declaration and nobody…


MR. HERNANDEZ:  No, sir.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Gotcha.  You mentioned cities and counties being involved, was the word you used—

MR. HERNANDEZ:  Correct.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  --in negotiations.  What does that mean?


MR. HERNANDEZ:  Well, through the actual environmental impact process, there’s mitigation obviously for off-reservation impacts.  There’s things to be negotiated, like fire service, law enforcement service, ambulance service, things that local governments provide, obviously, to any business that would be in the area.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Then how do you reach—when you say 25 percent and the governor says, you know, this is kind of the appropriate, if you will, number, given that local governments are going to negotiate things that seem to, probably will get higher before they get lower, then where’s the state on it?  I mean there’s 25 percent—is it 25 percent to the state and 25 percent of the whole or how does it—I mean, how does the state know that ultimately these individual negotiations with counties and cities don’t ultimately erode which we’re giving, I assume, the percentage, we’re negotiating the compact for some benefit?  I mean how do we know it doesn’t erode what the state would take in terms of the General Fund?

MR. HERNANDEZ:  Well, I think the way the process was set up was to give some assurance on this is the maximum amount of payment from the tribal members.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.


MR. HERNANDEZ:  So we have that set up.  There are obviously provisions in the compact itself that provides for whatever the negotiations turn up.  That will impact that 25 percent net.  So obviously, if the cities and counties came back and said zero, which we obviously don’t believe will happen, then the state would obviously, minus the Caltrans part, minus the $3 million that’s set aside for non-gaming tribes, then the state would get the rest.  So you’re right in the fact that we haven’t set up the date.  The local governments will determine what their costs are, negotiate with the tribes their specific parts.  And at that point, the amount that’s left over would come to the state.

Now in terms of securing the state’s amount, I guess, I guess—I can’t recall off the top of my head if the state can seek just binding arbitration in terms of the terms.  I’d have to go back and look at my notes.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  That would pertain to today’s LA Times story, right?  So we did these pacts, and yet less dollars are coming in, at least according to the story that I read.  So are we going to binding arbitration there?  Or how do we assure that the state is going to get these dollars once the pact is put in place?


MR. HERNANDEZ:  Okay.  Well, the state is required to get 25 percent.  The question is, what the split is and take out for the other amounts.  The state will get what’s left of that.  Now the question is, if their amounts are higher than that, the tribal leaders obviously have a negotiating arm.  And I believe…


SENATOR FLOREZ:  The state will get what’s left after counties and cities negotiate what they deserve?


MR. HERNANDEZ:  Well, the state will get the money, and then they will distribute those funds based on the terms of the compact, is my understanding.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Well, we’ll get back to that in a second.  One other question.  The governor sent a letter, you mentioned, earlier about his viewpoints on urban casinos.  And you mentioned also part of this package is exclusive mileage radius.


Who asked for that?


MR. HERNANDEZ:  You know what?  I wasn’t party to the negotiations.  I think one of my…


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Howard, do you want to—this may be the time as we might want to skip around a little bit, but, Howard, you can answer that question then.


MR. HOWARD DICKSTEIN:  Yes, sure.  I think both sides wanted that—the state—the tribe wanted it as consideration for its very high revenue share which has been testified to.  It’s the highest in the nation.  It not only includes slots but also the Class III games, card games.  So it was in part a consideration for that high-revenue share.  It was in part justification to the Secretary of the Interior, as Michael Cox testified to earlier.  The Secretary has limits on what is considered a reasonable revenue share, and the fact that the tribe was receiving substantial consideration would and will probably help justify the compact and achieve its approval at the federal level.  It was also—the state is also in the compact.  It says that it may use these funds to securitize a bond.  If that’s the case, it’s important to protect the bond, the bond holders, the insurance companies, make it all marketable, and the tribe has exclusivity, so it will have the wherewithal to make the payments on the bonds as the years go by.

I think finally from the state’s point of view, it reflects the anti-urban casino perspective.  The state made it clear throughout the negotiations, they weren’t in love with having to do this.  But since it was unlike any of the other Bay Area projects mandated by Congress, they were going to make the best of it and fulfill their good-faith obligations.  But this is also an expression of an intent not to expand in that core market of the tribes.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Next.  The latter is what I was maybe getting to.  Is this another way going to get to the letter?

MR. DICKSTEIN:  Each party had an interest.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  I didn’t know whether—if everybody had the same interest. That’s one thing. But if you’re saying that, in essence, everybody kind of came…


MR. DICKSTEIN:  It was a confluence of interests.  They were different independent, but they were all consistent.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  A couple more questions and we’ll go on, and I do want each of you to have an opportunity to say a couple of things about this.


Later we’re going to hear from local government, and I think part of this is going to be their particular view, positive or negative, of this particular process.  But as you mentioned again, the public review type of analysis of this particular compact, it seems to be mirrored on the EIR type of model.  But is the governor’s office interested in doing similar types of, if you will, public forums, to ascertain the public’s view of this and the radius that starts, obviously, from San Pablo and reaches out to certain—maybe just do that zone, 35 miles, or whatever it is, you know, just see how people feel within that particular zone.  Is that something—or do you feel this is a completed compact that is going to be just to the Legislature for ratification?  And, obviously, part of this hearing is to make sure that every member is as informed as much as possible on this particular compact.


MR. HERNANDEZ:  I can say, the process was set up to provide that for a reason and to provide the public input, again, mirroring after the CEQA process.  So I think that that’s…


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Let’s go to Jim.  Do you want to go ahead and say a couple of things?


MR. JIM TILTON:  Please.  Jim Tilton.  Department of Finance.


One comment on that.  The contract as I’m reading—and I’m not a lawyer—requires an enforceable process between locals and the tribes.  So it reverses the prior contracts for this.  These contracts, in my belief, not exactly a CEQA, but provides a process for a binding, where there’s binding arbitration but a very restricted process so they’d have to come together to address the issues.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  So it kind of forces some discussion.


MR. TILTON:  Exactly.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Versus the other compacts.


In terms of your viewpoint of this particular compact—and obviously, in the gist of the budget, your Department of Finance, what would you say?  Today, the LA Times says we’re not getting what we should get, particularly from that vantage point.  Is that an accurate characterization or is it…


MR. TILTON:  Since I’m the author of the current budget estimates, let me talk about those first?


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Yes.


MR. TILTON:  What we’ve done in the budget this year has been very careful that we evaluate our forecast of estimates of dollars.  And those numbers in the governor’s budget reflect only existing compacts and their very conservative activation of new machines.  When we looked at the overall compacts, my sense is, the prior numbers were fair assessments of what was in the works in terms of compacts, their full implementation, as well as compacts in the works.  This is one that was probably in those original estimates.  So we did for the governor’s budget that says we’re going to wait until we have actual compacts with the very reasonable expectation of activation machines.  So my assumption is, that’s a very low number in the governor’s budget, but that was intentional to make sure that we’ve got it real solid.

So in addition to reassessing our process-building forecast, we’ve added resources to the Gaming Commission to monitor the contracts, monitor the activation of machines, so that we make sure that…


SENATOR FLOREZ:  That’s what I was going to ask.  I mean, obviously, once we do a compact and we’re relying upon it in terms of the state budget, I assume that we become a very supportive and active partner.  I’m wondering if the Governor’s Office is doing everything it can to be just that.


MR. TILTON:  Well, we’ve doubled the staff for the Gaming Commission to do just that.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  What does that mean?  Doubling the staff…


MR. TILTON:  We proposed to add, effective January, roughly 43 positions in the Gaming Commission to provide oversight.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Is there anything else that would help us meet those revenue forecasts beyond that?


MR. TILTON:  I don’t know that we have influence over there, the tribe’s activation machines.  But what we’re going to do is make sure, if they activate the machines, we get the appropriate revenue.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And given that, how do we keep track of how machines are being activated on a daily basis?


MR. TILTON:  We are establishing auditors from the Gaming Commission to do just that.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And then you mentioned the word auditor, are we going to have independent audits for the state to ensure that some sort of revenue sharing is actually accomplished?


MR. TILTON:  Yes.  That’s what those resources are for.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  So that comes out of the same pool of people, dollars?  One is auditing; one is getting these things up and running so we can actually meet the revenue projections, meaning that the compact folks are partners.  So which one is it?


MR. TILTON:  We have two things.  We’ve established last year, in the budget, we established resources to continue negotiations of future compacts.  And in addition to that, we’ve added resources to the Gaming Commission to provide oversight and audit of the activities of the gaming tribes to make sure we’re getting appropriate resources.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And given those particular resources, those we can find in the budget and we can see substantial increases?


MR. TILTON:  Yes.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  So what are the increases?


MR. TILTON:  Again, it’s 43 positions, roughly, I think $3 million in resources.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And it was prior to that?

MR. TILTON:  Well, the existing staff, they have other areas besides gaming.  It was about 40 positions.  So this is new activity for the Gaming Commission.  We’ve substantially added resources which we believe will handle the oversight over these…

SENATOR FLOREZ:  I’m sorry.  I’m not badgering.  I’m just trying to understand.  We had 40.  Now we have 43?
MR. TILTON:  We had 40.  We’ve added another 43.  We’ve doubled the size.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Additional 43.

MR. TILTON:  We’ve doubled the staff of the Gaming Commission.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  I’ve got it.  Okay.

MR. TILTON:  It’s more than double the resources here because those resources are not just for the gaming, Indian gaming activities.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  I’ve gotcha.  Okay.
I know there are members that have questions.  But if we can get through to…

MR. TILTON:  Maybe I can quickly give you a…

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Sure.  And then I want to go onto Mr. Dickstein, and then I know Senator Cox and others had some questions as well.

MR. TILTON:  We’re hopeful that the numbers we heard this morning come in.  But we’ve evaluated the existing tribes and the estimate of Net Wins based on gaming machines.  And we estimate, that for every 500 new machines for San Pablo, we would get $24 million of the—basically, the 25 percent would be $24 million.  If we get all the way up to the 2,500 machines, that’s roughly $122 million by our estimate.  We’re hopeful that’s a conservative estimate, based on the other gaming activities.

In addition, I think it’s important to mention, people always are aware, want to know the impact of these new compacts on the revenue-sharing trust fund, which are funds established, in terms of collections from gaming tribes that are reimbursed up to $1.1 million for non-gaming tribes.  The Lytton tribe currently receives up to $1.1 million out of the revenue trust fund.  With the signing of this compact, they will begin to pay $750,000 per quarter or $3 million a year into that fund.  And when they get above the 350 machines, they will no longer be a drawer.  So initially it will be 1.9 benefit to that fund.  And once they get passed the 350 machines, it will be a $4.1 million benefit to that revenue sharing trust.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Just one question.  Any strings attached that we may not have heard today in terms of the revenue-sharing funds the state could receive?  I mean we talked about meeting local government and counties negotiating, and there’s a set pool of dollars—I assume 25 percent.  I mean of the 25 percent, how much is the local piece going to be and the Caltrans’ piece, and then what ultimately comes to the state?

MR. TILTON:  I have no idea because, until those negotiations take place, we don’t know.

I think just a couple components of this contract that we tried to get, clearly, we’ve tried to get a revenue sharing for the state as well as to make sure there’s a process to mitigate local impacts of these gaming operations.  We’ve accomplished that in the compact.  You’re right. We don’t have the exact split of this, but we think the 25 percent, in terms of fair offer from the tribes to contribute money for those two activities.  In addition, we think that the enhancements of the overall process were adding machines, as clarified in these compacts, so there is a stronger role and stronger responsibilities on the gaming tribes with the state.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Great.  Thank you very much.

Mr. Dickstein.

MR. HOWARD DICKSTEIN:  Thank you.  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

As you know, I participated, as you just heard, participated in these negotiations.  On behalf of Lytton, and the chairperson asked me to come here and help summarize them.  But what I’ll do instead, I think, is just clarify a few points that the members seem to be interested in.

One, why this is a good estimate.  I think it’s a very solid estimate because the reasons that the ’04 budget examples.  One, most of the revenue is coming from a bond.  The bond hasn’t been issued yet.  The reason for the bond not being issued is there’s a piece of litigation that was filed by racetracks that is probably slowing it down.  Hopefully, that will be over quickly.  We’re working very vigorously to ensure that that’s the case, but it’s unlikely that it’s going to allow the issuance of the bond which was a billion dollars in this fiscal year.
Two, I think there was some speculation about how quickly tribes were going to add additional devices over the 2,000 that they already had, and tribes are being cautious and prudent with that.  So they’re not just putting them in or doubling the size.  They’re slowly adding them and gauging the market response.  I think those are the two reasons, whereas in this situation, these revenues would come from machine one.  There’s no question whether the tribes are going to put in the 2,500 machines.  This location obviously justifies that.  And as the original compacts made clear, could use more.  But the agreement was to 2,500 which also, incidentally, would have an impact on the scope of this facility that we’re now undergoing some revision for.
Secondly, we used in these calculations an extremely conservative, what we call Net Win power machine to come up with these numbers that the state would get 25 percent of.  So the number of the New Win assumption is probably lower than will actually be the case.  The number that was used, for example, is very, very close to the performance of the Thunder Valley Casino outside Sacramento which, while it has an excellent location, is not the equivalent location of the City of San Pablo in the East Bay.  And we use the number that’s almost identical to that to come up with these figures.  It could well be 20, 25, 30, 35 percent more than that.  So I think for those reasons, that’s a solid number.

The other points that I want to make that I think requires some clarification too is that the state will be at the table in those local mitigation talks.  So in terms of protecting the state’s interest and the amount of money that’s going to the state, the way we did think of that, as you probably have identified it as an issue, and the solution was to bring the state to the table.  So these are really three-party negotiations with the state looking after its interests.  And the way we’re really ensuring that a reasonable agreement will be reached is through the use of this so-called baseball arbitration, that if an agreement is not reached, then each party has to put forward essentially its last, best proposal, and an arbitrator just chooses among them.  The arbitrator doesn’t impose standards and say he likes this, that, and the other from any agreement.  So it really encourages and incentivizes the parties to put something in front of the arbitrator that’s pretty reasonable.

Now the compact itself, the 25 percent, or any of the provisions in the compact, are not subject to these negotiations.  The scheme is for the tribe to prepare a very comprehensive CEQA report.  All the substance of CEQA is in this process.  This is a full Environmental Impact Report.  After it’s prepared and during that preparation, there’s hearings, there’s circulation of it, there’s publication in the newspapers.  It goes to the state clearinghouse.  It goes to exactly the same process as outlined in CEQA.  After that, that document then forms and proposed mitigation, which includes the scope of the size of the facility and all the issues that I know this committee is interested in, that will be in there.  And then the discussions and the agreement that will be reached, which is kind of in the nature of a development agreement, will be on the table.  It will form the basis for those discussions and negotiations.  The tribe will propose a scope for this facility and a size for the facility and amenities for the facility which we’re undergoing right now, the tribe is undergoing, and by talking to the people in the community.  But even after that’s done, that will form a proposal that is then subject to scrutiny by all the parties in what will undoubtedly be some pretty comprehensive negotiations.  And not only does this include the CEQA issues, but it includes law enforcement, for example, which is not necessarily incorporated in a CEQA document.  It includes provisions for emergency medical services, or how is a fire going to be dealt with?  How is the tribe going to deal with gambling, problem gambling, and gambling addictions, and what are their programs for gambling and gambling addictions?  So all those things are on the table.
The idea is that the Legislature is not just sort of ratifying something when it doesn’t know where it’s going.  It set up a very comprehensive process in this compact with state participation to ensure that the particularities of this project, once it’s designed and the architect and the renderings and every detail of it are done that there is a process with the state at the table to ensure that all parties are protected.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Let me ask a question following up on that.  In your view and viewing the fact that the Legislature has got an up or down ratification of this compact, I guess the earlier question I asked seemed to center on which comes first, meaning size, scope, methodology, as you’ve mentioned, will be worked out and negotiated.  Yet, the Legislature will be asked to take an up or down vote on what?  The final product of that, a half, if you will, a half-baked product of that or a fully—or really just—this is a local government issue that they’re going to solve and we just have to have the trust that it will be worked out?  Because I know that there seems to be some hesitancy about size and scope.  And is that something that you see coming before and finalize before this Legislature is asked to do that, or do you think it’s going to somewhere fall somewhere in that spectrum?

MR. DICKSTEIN:  Well, I don’t think this is any different from any other project.  The Legislature has set up a process called CEQA, California Environmental Quality Act, to do exactly what’s going to happen here.  Obviously, the facility is not completely designed—and it’s not really the Legislature’s role—and it didn’t take on that roll under CEQA to look at every single, major project in the state, wait until it’s completely designed, and decide, irrespective of what the local government and developer worked out, what the state wants.  Instead, what we’ve done here, that’s new is to force an agreement to have the state at the table to ensure that there’s no gambling, that there’s no opening, that there’s nothing done until those parties all come to an agreement, and that’s something completely new and frankly it’s unique in the entire nation, let alone this state, for a tribe.  And it’s because of this metropolitan area that the tribe is willing to do it to engage in that process.  So this is really taking things a step further by incorporating state law, bringing the state to the table, and protecting the state more than I think any state’s been protected in the process of development of an Indian gaming facility.

That’s really all I have, and I’m happy to answer any questions.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Thank you.

Members, I believe that Senator Cox had some questions.
SENATOR DAVE COX:  Thank you.  I do have a couple of questions of either Mr. Hernandez or Mr. Tilton.

When is this casino going to be up and running from the standpoint of generating revenue for the State of California?

MR. DICKSTEIN:  It depends on how quickly you ratify it.  (Laughter)

SENATOR COX:  Well, Mr. Dickstein, thank you very much for the response.  Let me get into the questions that I have relative to—on Page 9 of this memorandum, you will find that it essentially says that you’re projecting somewhere in the neighborhood of $155 million based upon 25 percent of the net take.  But it also then goes on to point out that local government has the first slice of that pie, correct?
MR. DICKSTEIN?:  Technically, there’s three parties or four parties.  There’s city, county, and state through the Department of Transportation.

SENATOR COX:  Those are all local government with the exception of the Department of Transportation.  And so that 25 percent is in fact reduced by whatever the claim is by those other three parties of that 25 percent, correct?

MR. DICKSTEIN:  Yes.

SENATOR COX:  Now Mr. Tilton, you’re a budget guy.  You’re with the Department of Finance.  Tell me what your projections are that the splits are going to be between the state and the local entities of the $155 million.

MR. TILTON:  Right now, we have not made the split.  In fact, we have not included these estimates in the governor’s budget.

SENATOR COX:  But, sir, you’re not answering my question.  My question is that you must have in the negotiation of the contract, the 25 percent.  Did someone just pick 25 percent out of the air and say let’s do the net take, minus what goes to local government?

MR. TILTON:  I wasn’t part of the negotiations.  What I understand is they came up with a contribution that the—in the past, we had situations where the tribes contributed into the funds, both for distribution to non-gaming tribes as well as funds for mitigating issues at the local level.

SENATOR COX:  And you have no idea—you made no calculations—as to what the splits would be?

MR. TILTON:  So all that’s been done so far, on my understanding, ____ that I’ve seen, is we’ve identified what revenue, higher number than the past, a number that the Indian gaming tribes would contribute both towards, as a pot of money that would go towards the state in terms of revenue, as well as mitigating this local…
SENATOR COX:  The Net Win is somewhere in the neighborhood of $160 (million), $170 million to the State of California, and the other three entities are looking at dividing up to 25 percent.  Is there any way that you could forecast what you think the state is going to receive and what’s going to go to local government—fire district, city, county, special districts?

MR. TILTON:  I think, until we see what those mitigation issues or the issues being raised by the locals are, we wouldn’t be able to put a price tag on it.

SENATOR COX:  Okay.  Now you mentioned, by the way, that you have added additional auditors in order to audit the books of the casinos based upon the conflicts, correct?

MR. TILTON:  That’s correct.

SENATOR COX:  Are you currently auditing the books?

MR. TILTON:  Currently, you’ll find that there were no additional resources provided in the Gaming Commission for this activity prior to this recent compact.

SENATOR COX:  And so for all intents and purposes, you haven’t been auditing, even when we have compacts in place?

MR. TILTON:  Well, these most recent round of compacts, you’re correct.  Until January right now, we’re establishing—we’ve got a request from the Gaming Commission.  We’re going to be authorizing positions, as of January 1, or just right now to in fact audit these compacts.  It’s one of the issues that we’ve addressed with how we’re going to make sure we’re complying with those compacts.  We’ve added significant resources.  The commission will either hire staff or contract out to auditors to do that.  So we recognize that as a deficiency that in last year’s budget we did not add resources to increase auditing staff to monitor those compacts.

SENATOR COX:  The existing contracts provided for auditing?

MR. TILTON:  Yes.  They do.  We did not add the auditors…

SENATOR COX:  But you have not in fact been auditing them?

MR. TILTON:  We did not give the Gaming Commission additional auditing resources in last year’s governor’s budget, per last year’s budget; that’s correct.

SENATOR COX:  And therefore, no audits are being conducted relative to the compacts?

MR. TILTON:  Only what they can be able to handle in current resources.  That’s why we’ve made it a significant issue to authorize them with over 40 positions, effective January, to get those audits.

SENATOR COX:  Mr. Tilton, would you provide the Committee with an audit report of the last five audits that have been done relative to a compact?

MR. TILTON:  I will get you whatever audits have been done.  I couldn’t testify whether it’s been five or not.

SENATOR COX:  Okay.  All right.

Mr. Chairman, thank you.

SENATOR DENHAM:  Mr. Tilton, I think we’re all struggling here on what the state financial impact is going to be.  A lot of numbers have been thrown out here today--$155 million is what is estimated at 2,500 machines.  That would be 25 percent of the revenue which would be a takeaway, correct?
MR. TILTON:  That’s correct.

SENATOR DENHAM:  Okay.  Now out of that $155 million, $3 million of that goes back into the revenue sharing trust fund?

MR. TILTON:  That’s correct.

SENATOR DENHAM:  Okay.  So we’re down to $152 million, is our estimate now.  Caltrans, any estimates on what Caltrans will be?

MR. TILTON:  I don’t.  All I’ve been doing recently, as part of the governor’s budget, is to assess what Net Win is, and come up with estimates of Net Win.  We will have to evaluate project by project what issues come up as mitigation.  As has been discussed here, I think, is the state will want to be part of that to make sure that the assessments of what needs to be mitigated and the cost of those mitigations are evaluated by all parties.

SENATOR DENHAM:  You earlier stated a number of $122 million.  How did you come up with $122 million?

MR. TILTON:  One hundred and twenty-two is the Department of Finance’s estimate based on a conservative estimate of Net Win.  The $155 (million) is not our estimate.  So the $122 (million) is what we came up with as a conservative estimate of Net Win based on 2,500 machines.

SENATOR DENHAM:  The administration is using a different estimate?

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  No.  I did not say $150 million.

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  I believe that was the tribe that said…

MR. TILTON ??:  Okay.  I meant 155.

SENATOR DENHAM:  I think what we’re all trying to get here is what percentage—even if it’s, as you said earlier, evaluated and estimated like you’ve done with other tribes around the entire state, evaluated and estimated, what does that mean for local government and for Caltrans mitigation?  Before we look at a compact, I think we want to know—I think California wants to know—what the impact is going to be.  And we want to be able to compare apples to apples.  And right now, when you throw out other numbers of other compact contributions, you’re looking at 10, 12 percent.  But then we add on the revenue trust-sharing fund.  You know, it’s not taking into account in that 12 percent the fire stations they put in that is helping out the local community or the funds that they’re putting into a local committee to mitigate law enforcement funding, or so many other things—water, sewer, all of the other things that we’re now combining in this 25 percent.  So when we say 25 percent, that doesn’t necessarily match up to the 12 percent that other tribes have negotiated in previous compacts.  We’re trying to get an understanding of an apple-to-apple—are we really talking about 20 percent?  Are we really talking about 18?  How does this compare to other states and other tribes within the state?

MR. TILTON:  I apologize.  You’re raising the issue that I don’t have the data on in terms of those mitigating factors for this project.

MR. HERNANDEZ:  Let me step in right here.  You know, Senator, I can understand the—trying to get down to the bottom line of this and comparing it with other compacts.  I don’t know—let me be clear.  I don’t know what the other compacts have in terms of local mitigation and allowing them to do that.

The reason why you don’t have strong numbers but you do have a cap, sort of, at 25 percent, is so that there’s revenue that’s coming in and then split up to take care of the things that we don’t know about yet because the facility size is a deterrent.  I mean I think you have set up in the compact 2,500 Class III gaming machines, but that doesn’t set up the size of the facility per se.  Those things will get worked out as the projects go forward.  But they can’t go forward with the project, with the design, until they know that they have a compact to do so.  So this sets the process up, to get going, to start designing the project, to get the input from the local governments in terms of, is this going to take two cops, is this going to take a fire station, is this going to impact the current environment there in terms of their response and other things that they may need to do?  And the City of San Pablo is going to be different than the City of Sacramento or different than sort of—I guess the general estimate that we could come up with—so we will set up a process in the compact to allow them to come back with a number that fits their needs for that local community so that we’re not giving them a $10 million responsibility and only funding them with 8 million.  So I think that’s why it’s set up this way so that they can go ahead and get the revenue that they need.  And then what’s left goes to the state.  And again, we are party to the discussion that I think Howard mentioned, that we are party to the discussion in that negotiation.  So obviously, if the numbers just don’t make sense, then we can express that at that time.  Hopefully, that answers.
SENATOR DENHAM:  This is a new compact—

MR. HERNANDEZ:  Correct.

SENATOR DENHAM:  In an urban area, major one within an urban area, new things within this compact like exclusivity, would it not make sense, rather than estimating and evaluating, guessing what is happening around the state—now that you have auditors in place, wouldn’t it make more sense to actually see what’s happening true to life today in all of the different areas of the state before we go forward with fictitious numbers and trying to plan a compact for the future?  Shouldn’t we be doing this rather than putting in new auditors for a future compact?

MR. TILTON:  Well, let me try to get back to at least the focus of your question.  You’re right. We have not, in this project—because we don’t know the details of the project—come up with an estimate of the mitigating issues for the project. What the compacts, I believe, have done is, it says, okay, in exchange for that exclusivity for the tribe, we will give back 25 percent of your Net Win.  That money will be used to offset mitigating costs that we project at the local issues as well as the state.  So we set up a parameter, a fiscal parameter, of an exchange for that exclusivity for the gambling and adding these machines, then your contributions back for government basically, is that pot of money.
You’re right.  Until we get the project laid out, I don’t have a good estimate whether this requires an interchange, doesn’t require an interchange, those kinds of issues.  Our role, I believe, as the state, is to be part of that evaluation.  If we believe that there are funds coming out of the 122, for example, that exceed the reasonable expectations for mitigating the project, we will raise those concerns.  But we don’t have a track record on this project to be able to make that assessment.

SENATOR DENHAM:  We don’t have a track record on this project.  And what concerns me is that, as the administration continues to look at further compacts, they base the next compact on the previous compact, and we are setting new precedence on this area that are 25 percent revenue to the state is the same as a 12 percent revenue to the state when you have all of these other local governmental—you have all of these things included in the 25 percent over here, but you’ve got everything excluded in the 12 percent.  So now, as we continue to renegotiate new compacts, you’re not comparing apples to apples, and there are many tribes out there that are looking, possibly negotiating currently, for their compacts.  But the fire station, the school, the water—all of the different things that they’ve already put in place—are not considered into that percentage that they’re negotiating.
MR. DICKSTEIN:  Senator, I may be able to just help a little bit.  I don’t want to say that this is a model or make any predictions for this project.  But just responding to your concern, we do represent two tribes that have agreements that they’ve entered into for very large casinos, certainly among the largest three or four in the state.  And the mitigation at San Pablo may be quite different.  But still, they have the same scope of mitigation—law enforcement, fire, and CEQA and all the rest.  And the payments that those two tribes make, they have the cost-of-living allowances and all the rest.  But I would say, that between those two tribes, they range from a minimum of about $3.5 million to a maximum of about $7.5 million a year.  For what that’s worth, it does give you at least some basis of comparison.  This may be quantitatively different.  But for your background information, I think that’s relevant.
SENATOR DENHAM:  But are the tribes that you represent that have already had previous compacts, are they not concerned—let me approach this from a different way.  When we take a look at newspapers around the state and they’re comparing a 12 percent to a 25 percent—was this a good deal for the state or was it not a good deal for the state—the 12 percent and the 25 percent are not evaluated by the same criteria.  So are the tribes that you represent, are they not concerned, that when they negotiated something in the past but yet the traffic mitigation and sewer and all of the many hoops that they had to jump through are not considered in that, and now you’re not being compared fairly and obviously taking negative hits in the press, I would be concerned.

MR. DICKSTEIN:  No.  I understand.  I think that it’s our—those of us who have some experience on the ground in this don’t believe that the amount that would be eaten up in local mitigation is going to be at a level that is going to be a very high percentage, about $150 million or whatever it turns out to be.  And so that in the end, I think other tribes recognize, and some of them are not thrilled with this, certainly, that Lytton is paying a larger share overall than any other tribe in the state or any other tribe in the nation.  And that’s why I wanted to make clear in my earlier remarks that this should not be conceived of as a model for others but is really a metropolitan urban compact that just needs to be seen as unique for a lot of different reasons.
SENATOR DENHAM:  But my concern is that it changes the bar.  And now we’ve moved the bar to 25 percent, be it 25 percent does not equal what passed or future negotiations, I’m assuming we’ll be looking at.  So if somebody comes in, brand new, from a new compact to renegotiate and the number 25 percent is thrown out, the 25 percent is actually maybe 35 percent because they’ve still got to deal with fire and traffic.

MR. DICKSTEIN:  I think that from the 25 percent that that local mitigation comes, Senator, so I think it’s overall the tribe’s cap of sharing is 25 percent.  The state’s share will fall below 25 percent.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  That’s a bite among three parties—Caltrans, local governments, and the state at the table; is that correct?  That’s the way it’s supposed to work as arbitration style; is that right?

MR. DICKSTEIN:  Correct.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  But the cap is always going to be 25 percent?

MR. DICKSTEIN:  The tribe’s cap is 25 percent.  From that 25 percent, the local government needs and CEQA needs will be identified and satisfied in negotiations with three different parties.  One of them is state itself.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Gotcha.

SENATOR DENHAM:  I’ve just got one final question.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And then after that, Senator Murray.

SENATOR DENHAM:  You stated earlier you know of no other tribes petitioning in the area, correct?

MR. HERNANDEZ:  Correct.  No.  No other tribes with gaming-eligible land that have entered into negotiations, that’s correct.

SENATOR DENHAM:  Exactly, with gaming-eligible land.  But there are many different tribes that are shopping right now for urban areas.

MR. HERNANDEZ:  But Congress would be involved, and I think the previous speaker spoke to you, the process for that.

SENATOR DENHAM:  Congress would be involved after a compact is negotiated?

MR. HERNANDEZ:  No.  Before.  Congress would have to be involved to make them eligible—to give them gaming-eligible land for us to be involved in the negotiation of the compact.

SENATOR DENHAM:  As I understand, there are negotiations going on today that tribes do not have the land.  One in particular in my district…

MR. HERNANDEZ:  I’m sorry.  I’m speaking of San Pablo.  In terms of the negotiations for this…

SENATOR DENHAM:  So are you saying outside of this urban area, there are tribes that could be negotiating compacts prior to actually having land in trust?

MR. HERNANDEZ:  No.  I do believe we have tribes negotiating with the administration, but I can check on that and get back to you to make certain.
SENATOR KEVIN MURRAY:  There is at least one tribe which has been granted the right to buy property which will go into trust, the way I understand it, that when they buy some property, the Interior Department is directed to put that land in trust.  And that would then, I believe, make them gambling knowledgeable.

MR. HERNANDEZ:  In the San Pablo area?

SENATOR MURRAY:  Maybe not in the San Pablo area, but they can buy—the point I’m trying to make, and I think Mr. Denham was trying to make is that, they can buy land pretty much wherever they want to unless there is some act which says they can’t.  So they have an agreement to place land in the trust but haven’t purchased the land.  And they could buy it in an urban area.  And in fact, if I were them, as I’m sure if you were them, you’d be looking for land in an urban area.
MR. DICKSTEIN:  I think there is one.  I think the Senator’s correct.  There’s one tribe that’s the equivalent of the Lytton tribe that mandates the secretary to take land into trust for that tribe in either Sonoma or Marin Counties.  Other than that, there are no other acts of Congress.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  I imagine that’s a very closely watched item now.

MR. DICKSTEIN:  Apparently, by Senator Murray.

SENATOR MURRAY:  Clearly.  Mr. Dickstein, I think, was very open the last time he was here, and we went through most of the details of the various compacts.  I think he was open and honest in what they do, and I think, you now, he certainly negotiated good deals on behalf of the tribes.  I guess one of the reasons we’re kind of here is we question whether or not the state negotiated a good deal on behalf of us.
I think Mr. Dickstein makes an important point, is that this compact is not a model for all compacts.  It is different than the others in that it is an urban compact.  But I don’t get the impression from anything the administration has said—and again, I’m sorry if I missed some of this hearing—that we looked at it, that the state, our negotiators, looked at this negotiation as a different concept.  It seems like we took the model of all of the rural compacts.  We kind of negotiated the same thing for these guys, and we left unlimited slots, and the mitigation is going to be different.  But then again, we don’t know how much it’s going to be because it is different than every other one that we’ve done.  I guess I’m looking for you to point to me some things in the negotiation or some things in this compact where we recognize that this was a different situation.

MR. DICKSTEIN:  Well, I think—first, let me be clear.  There is a limit on the Class III gaming machines at 2,500…

SENATOR MURRAY:  Yes.  But that’s after we threw you out of here last year.  (Laughter)  Give me something, at least during the pendency of these negotiations, you guys said, hey, this is different.  This is not a rural place far from large population centers, but this is a place down the block from people’s neighborhoods and communities, not to diminish any of the local governments that have issues surrounding other casinos.  But I don’t get the impression that we looked at this different because frankly, it was the same template when we came in with this compact with the other four last year.  So I mean did we recognize in our discussions with Mr. Dickstein and his clients that this one was different?

MR. HERNANDEZ:  I’ll just point out a couple of things in the compact that maybe showed that there are some significant differences from previous compacts.  And as my speaker to my left—I’m sorry, Mr. Dickstein—I don’t have the name in front of me.

SENATOR MURRAY:  Dickstein.

MR. HERNANDEZ:  Dickstein.  I’m sorry.  I think he has already stated that this is very different in terms of the dollar amount differences.  And I’ll use his number—was it 12 percent?

MR. DICKSTEIN:  Well, the other compacts that this administration entered into really had some certain—they really didn’t have percentages for the first 2,000. There were just some _____ for each tribe that the compact said were based on no less than 10 percent of the Net Win in FY ’03.


SENATOR MURRAY:  I mean…


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Is the Class II and Class III characterization, is this different, Mr. Dickstein, or anyone?  I mean it distinguishes, as Senator Murray’s mentioned, in the other compacts, are we moving into Class II and allowing a share of those particular compacts, or is this different?


MR. DICKSTEIN:  I don’t think any of the compacts deal with Class II.  This one deals with Class III card games.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Right.


MR. DICKSTEIN:  Which are a significant card game, the banked card games.  The state gets a share for the first time in these compacts of banked car, 25 percent of the revenue from banked card games.  And I think the business plan for this casino will have more than 100 tables.  That could be a very significant amount of money.

MR. HERNANDEZ:  But just getting back, I think their overall percentage of 25 percent being higher than the remaining compacts or the other compacts, the CEQA-esqe-type provisions that weren’t in some of the other compacts, the provisions that allow local governments to be involved and negotiate the stuff that’s going to impact their communities, their local communities, they have involvement in this.  So I think there are some significant differences.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Any other questions from members?


Thank you, all.  Very much appreciate it.


Before we end this panel, I will say that we were on the section, Part I of the History of the Lytton Tribe and Compact Review.  We have two speakers, I think, touch on that.  We have Anthony Miranda with the Chonga ?? tribal chair, and Josh Pané, Morongo tribe advocate.


I’d like for you to talk, if you could, in this section about your perceptions.  And then we’re going to, after this break, till 1:15, so we’ll stay on schedule today.  We’re 15 minutes behind, but we’re pretty much on schedule.  Then we will convene the second part of the hearing which deal with the Environmental, Regulatory, and Economic Impacts, and then we will hear public testimony at that time.


Thank you for joining us this morning.


MR. ANTHONY MIRANDA:  I apologize.  Thank you, Chairman.


To set the record straight, I’m Anthony Miranda.  I’m the chairman of the California Nations Indian Gaming Association.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you very much.  You’ve got it.


MR. MIRANDA:  My chairman of my tribe, Mark Macarro…

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Yes.  __________.


MR. MIRANDA:  Yes.  He’d be happy that I set the record straight.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  No problem.


MR. MIRANDA:  Let me just say, we are an association of 61 gaming tribes.  
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Excuse me.  Can we just keep it down just a bit so we can get testimony.  Thank you.


Go ahead.


MR. MIRANDA:  Our organization represents tribes that are involved in gaming, large gaming tribes, medium gaming tribes, and some tribes that aren’t involved in gaming.  We are in rural areas, semi-rural, looking for a diverse association here in the state.   And I would just like to make mention that we are not here, and I’m not here today—I wasn’t prepared to speak.  But I’d like to set the record straight.  We’re not here to go against another tribe.  We support every single tribe in its ability to be economically feasible and self-sufficient and self-reliant.  We support that effort.  However, it was stated that some of the compacts, the 1999 compacts that were negotiated, a majority of the tribes, don’t work in the state, and that is actually inaccurate.  There are 61 tribes that had signed the 1999 compacts.  Currently in the state, you have the forms of five different compacts in play.  You have the ‘99 compacts; you have the renegotiated ’99 compacts, and I think there’s three of them.  That was under the Davis administration.  You also have the re-renegotiated compacts under the Schwarzenegger administration.  And then you have the Schwarzenegger negotiated compacts.  So there’s quite a diverse array of compacts within the state.


Now the 1999 compacts, they do provide for environmental protections, workers’ protections, and concerns for local governments.  But they provide for it in a far different way, and they provide for it in a respectful government-to-government fashion between the state government and the local governments and the tribes.  There’s a respect there between the different governmental entities and that’s what was negotiated.  In the 1999 compacts, we negotiated what’s called the Revenue Sharing Trust Fund.  Now that is a fund that the tribes pay into that we share monies with all of the tribes that aren’t involved in gaming, including tribes with less than 350 machines in the state.  We share monies with every single tribe in the state.

We also pay into what’s called a Special Distribution Fund, and that is to be used to mitigate local impacts of tribes that are involved in gaming prior to 1999.  Now after ’99, there is an environmental process that tribes have to follow if you sign a compact and you get into gaming after ’99.  There is an environmental process that you have to follow and negotiate mitigations with your local governments.  There is a process to be followed.  And in fact, several tribes had followed that process.  Morongo has followed the process; San Manuel has followed the process; Pachanga has followed the process; Fantasy Springs, the Cabazon tribe—they’ve all followed the process.  They signed the 1999 agreements, and they have actually done expansions.  So the 1999 agreements do work.  They are in play.  And in fact if you read in the local papers, there is a dispute between two tribes that just happen to be Pachanga and Morongo.  We had a dispute resolution mechanism within those compacts that both tribes followed and worked out with the state.  So they do work; they are in play.

Now under those compacts, the California and tribal government gaming industry has grown from an employment base of 19,000 to over 52,000 direct employees.  We’ve brought in new jobs, new growth, and construction jobs into the state.  So it is working.


Now there was a mention of bad faith, and what happens under bad faith?  Now I’d like to set the record straight.  Under a bad-faith lawsuit, there have not been any compacts negotiated with any tribes with any states under a bad-faith provision.  In fact, the Seminole tribe of Florida has been, 17 years, trying to negotiate a compact.


There has been only—and if you win a bad-faith lawsuit, supposedly the process goes to secretarial procedures where they’re outlined under the Department of Interior.  In the history of Indian gaming, there has only been one tribe that has actually obtained a compact through secretarial procedures, and that is, the Mashantucket Pequot tribe in Connecticut.  So I’d just like to set a few of those records straight under the 1999 compacts and what actually happens when you try to negotiate.

Now as an association, we do support every single tribe in its own individual negotiations with the state.  And we hopefully, on the state side, believe that each tribe can negotiate an agreement with the state and not really look at the model agreements because there are no model tribes within the State of California.  Every single tribe is different.  We are a totally different government.  We all run a different way, different elections, and we look to try to negotiate a compact individually with the state.  Thank you.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you very much.


MR. JOSH PANÉ:  Mr. Chairman, Members, thank you very much for the opportunity.  I’m Josh Pané representing the Morongo Band of Mission Indians’ tribal government.

The Morongo Band of Mission Indians submits the following statement of our principles with respect to the proposed Lytton Tribal Government Gaming Compact currently pending before you and its potential impact on the future of tribal government gaming in California.


One, we support the struggle of our brothers and sisters in Indian country, other tribal governments, to secure restoration of their recognized tribal status and to restore it to federal trust status, the lands that were unlawfully taken from them.

Two, we support the principle that the recognition of tribal governments is exclusively a matter of federal law.

Three, the manner and circumstances in which Congress and President Clinton enabled the Lytton Band to have its San Pablo land taken into trust for gaming were unique.  We do not comment on the terms of another tribe has found appropriate in its compact in its situation.  But we recognize the Lytton tribal government’s right under the law to conduct gaming on those lands and affirm the state’s obligation to negotiate in good faith with this tribal government for Class III gaming compacts that is fair and reasonable for Lytton’s unique situation.

Four, we believe, however, that restoration legislation should be handled in an open, deliberate manner that gives all interested parties, including other tribal governments, the state, and local communities the opportunity to be heard before any decisions are made.  This process, unfortunately, did not happen in the Lytton legislation.

Five, we are committed as well to the principle of federal law that tribal government gaming should be conducted on Indian land, a commitment we made to the people of California, with the passage of Proposition 5 in 1998 and Proposition 1A in 2000.

Six, consistent with our commitment under Proposition 5 and 1A, we reject the argument that tribes can or should be able buy land wherever they want for the purposes of establishing casinos.

Seven, we cannot support efforts in which tribes may team up with casino developers to acquire land in urban areas, far from their ancestral homeland, solely for the purpose of having the land taken into trust for casinos.  Such efforts are fundamentally unfair to the tribes that have worked long and hard to build economies on reservations located in rural areas.
Eight, we oppose the idea that the terms and conditions of one compact should be applied to other compacts.  The diversity of California’s tribal governments is simply too great to accommodate such a cookie-cutter approach to compacting.  The Lytton Band’s unique circumstances make its proposed compact a particularly inappropriate model to be imposed on any other tribe.  The terms and conditions that would apply to a tribe that seeks to establish an urban casino far from its traditional lands, for example, cannot be imposed fairly on a tribe such as Morongo that has governed a 33,000-acre reservation for more than 130 years, has a history of governance dating back several thousands of years, and applies revenues from gaming to fund the government services it provides to the reservation, community, and its people.
In conclusion, we believe these principles that I’ve just stated carry forward the promises that we made to the voters of California with the passage of Proposition 5 and 1A and of which promises we are determined to continue to honor.


Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you.


And that will be submitted for the record.


We’re going to adjourn or recess until 1:15 which is 20 minutes from now, and we’re going to start promptly at 1:15.


SENATOR EDWARD VINCENT:  Mr. Chair.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Yes.  I’m sorry.  Senator Vincent.  Senator Vincent.


SENATOR VINCENT:  I want to be real quick.


Would you repeat, please—you mentioned some of the principles—would you repeat Item 7 again?

MR. PANÉ:  Item 7.  Item 7:  We cannot support efforts in which tribes may team up with casino developers to acquire land in urban areas far from their ancestral homelands, solely for the purpose of having the land taken into trust for casinos.  Such efforts are fundamentally unfair to the tribes that have worked long and hard to build economies on reservations located in rural areas.

SENATOR VINCENT:  I’d like to get a copy of that, if I could.  Okay.  Thank you.


Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Great.  Thank you, Senator.


We’ll adjourn until 1:15, and we’ll start promptly at that time, and we’ll start with the Environmental and Regulatory Review Process.

--- BREAK ---


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  We’re going to begin.  And Members, if you’re within earshot distance of the hearing room, please come in.


Let’s open up this second half of this afternoon session by, number one, again, thanking the witnesses who have remained and particularly those in the public who would like to comment at the end of the hearing.  Let me also say that this morning we examined the history of the Lytton tribe, the rights of the tribe to legally conduct casino-style gaming in California, and the terms and conditions of the compact.  This afternoon, the committee is going to examine the environmental and regulatory aspects of the compact and also the economic impact of the compact as well.

Obviously, we’re going to be continuing to talk about, if you will, the stipulations in the compacts of those who would like to remain and enlighten the committee on aspects that come up during this portion of the hearing.  We very much welcome your participation.


With that, let me remind you also, that if you’d like to speak at the end of this hearing, the sergeants do have a list.  We’d like to have you on that list so we can hear what you have to say.


Let’s go ahead now and move to the environmental and regulatory review, the transportation and mitigation section of the hearing.  I do believe we had on the agenda Sunne McPeak, secretary of Business and Transportation & Housing Agency.  But I understand that we have Curt Augustine, the deputy secretary for legislation, will appear.  And you want to come up, if you could, please.  And let’s go ahead and also have, if we could, Jane Zerbi of Dickstein and Zerbi; Cathy Christensen [sic], special counsel to Contra Costa County; Mike McGowan, Yolo County supervisor and chair of CSAC’s Task Force on Indian Gaming; Irwin Hansen, CEO, Doctors Hospital; and Susan Ancel, RN, director, Emergency Department, Doctors Hospital.


If you can all come up, that would be great.  We’re going to start with Mr. Augustine, and then we’re going to proceed to Ms. Zerbi.


Okay.  Thank you for joining us.


MR. CURT AUGUSTINE:  Thank you very much, Senator and Members.


First off, I’d like to offer Secretary McPeak’s apologies that she couldn’t appear today.  There were some unfortunate conflicts in her schedule that she was unable to resolve.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  She’s not cut out of the budget, right?


MR. AUGUSTINE:  No.  She’s not.  Thank goodness.  We appreciate that.  (Laughter)

First off, I’d like to say, as you know, the administration supports the gaming compact and believes that there will be a successful mitigation plan regarding the traffic situation.  The way the compact is written, the Department of Transportation has a seat at the table through provisions in the compact, enforceable, written contracts with the tribe and the department and locals to make sure that these mitigation matters are resolved.


There was one thing that I would like to—so I can clear up a little bit as a result of this morning’s discussion regarding the 25 percent share.  There was some question about that.


The 25 percent is on table games and slots. That is the largest approved compact by the federal Department of Interior in the country.  It’s the first time that they’ve ever approved the take on the table games.  Typically, it is just slots.  So that was, again, it was just an open question that we wanted to make it clear.  And that’s why we believe that this money will be sufficient to help mitigate the traffic situation there.  The governor and the administration are obviously very concerned about the impact on Interstate 80 as well as the other roads and local streets in the San Pablo area.  Clearly, if the casino is as successful as everyone hopes to be, there’ll be additional traffic there, and that must be mitigated.  And, again, the tribe has been very forthcoming in agreeing to supply the money and how the process would work.

Very briefly, the traffic study would occur.  That has not occurred until after the compact is approved by the Legislature.  And it’s estimated that that traffic study would be then be completed three to four months after the approval of the compact.  That study is done in cooperation with the tribes, experts, local governments, Caltrans, and the MTC.  I’m not going to get into the whole analysis process.  But the traffic engineers use scientific assumptions to study the traffic patterns.  And that study does include, obviously, the traffic on the interstates and local streets but also transit and inner-city rails and any other modes of transportation that may be available to get to the casino. 


Again, the Department has been working with the tribe the last few months to get a better handle on the situation there, and we believe that a successfully funded mitigation program is possible and quite doable and look forward to getting that program underway once the compact is approved, and I’d be happy to answer any of your questions.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you.


In terms of Caltrans, you mentioned they have a place at the table as we start to negotiate.  You also mentioned, after the compact is approved, that process takes place.  And I’ll just ask you the question I’ve asked every single person, and that is, is that the viewpoint of the Governor’s Office then that this is a simple negotiation process at the local level that will occur after the Legislature ratifies, or is it something, that during these months that the compact had not been ratified, that we could have cleared up prior to that time, and so we would have a clear understanding, or is Caltrans not going spend any time on something that’s not approved?


MR. AUGUSTINE:  The structure would be after the compact has been approved.  Caltrans has done some work in consultation with the tribe, but it has been a minimal amount, and it is essentially waiting on the final details of the approved compact before they proceed with that work.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And in terms of the I-80 corridor, you mentioned that some of the impacts hopefully would be coming.  How do you view the I-80, from the Caltrans point of view at this point in time?  You say there’s been some minimal discussion.  But obviously, you wouldn’t approve that big of a casino if there was even a possibility for this to work; is that correct?


MR. AUGUSTINE:  Absolutely.  We firmly believe that a mitigation plan will be successfully worked out, but there is no doubt that the I-80 corridor is a very busy corridor.  And any impact is going to be negative in that aspect.  But the Department is confident that they’ll be able to do that.  Certainly, the interchange presently is at near capacity, and that’s an example of what the engineers will have to take a very hard look at offering a solution there.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And there’s an existing improvement plan, even before this casino; is that correct?


MR. AUGUSTINE:  That is correct, yes.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And does that include any improvements for San Pablo Dam Road Exchange?


MR. AUGUSTINE:  That is part of the possible mitigation plan, yes.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Well, you say it’s part of the possible mitigation plan.  Does that mean it’s not going to be improved?


MR. AUGUSTINE:  I don’t know specifically if that interchange is part of the plan.  We certainly can find out relatively quickly for you.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  That is a huge issue for people I’ve talked to, at least, within the Legislature itself.  So when would you be able to give us an idea about it?


MR. AUGUSTINE:  That answer is available.  I can step away from the stand and get that information for you.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Great.  In terms of the funding from the Lytton compact itself, is that going to actually help, if you will, accelerate the process, in terms of some of these Caltrans-related items?  Or is this something that the governor’s going to take into account within the regular General Fund of the state budget?


MR. AUGUSTINE:  Well, the mitigation of this is recommended to go hand in hand with the increased capacity.  So that will impact that interchange and the corridor, and it will in some measure speed up the process…


SENATOR FLOREZ:  So we’re not going to say this is a priority, you know, this highway, this exchange, and then—you know, we say that and then we take, like, $2 billion out of the state transportation account, so therefore we can’t back up what we say.  That’s not going to be the case?


MR. AUGUSTINE:  No.  This is a priority, and there is the stream of revenue that is available.  Annually, it’s estimated, as you’ve heard, to be $122 million.  And even in the case that this mitigation would cost more than that, the future revenue can be bonded against.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  I guess what I want to know is, in these negotiations and Mr. Dickstein’s talked about, you know, the baseball arbitration styles and everybody in essence getting to the table, and I’m wondering, let’s say that it is successful and money is being put, if you will, additional money, hand in hand, from this particular compact, to improve those roads, does this project get put into the CTC funnel, if you will, and everything that falls within the steps, everything falls within the process?  Or is this something special because we know that they have a special revenue source and it’s not going to be rated upon—and I hate to use the word rated, but that seems to be popular around her nowadays.  Is that going to be separate and a part and parcel of it?


MR. AUGUSTINE:  It is my understanding that it will be separate, but I want to confirm that, because obviously, I wouldn’t want to mislead you…


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  So for ten years from now, when the Legislature isn’t around and wasn’t around for this negotiation, they’ll have a clear understanding that this year that’s never been, if you will, bargained against.  It’s a project that has a direct tie to this particular casino?

MR. AUGUSTINE:  Yes, sir.  Absolutely.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Yes, Mr. Cox.


SENATOR COX:  What does that do to the local community?  Is that in addition to or is that then makes it, the total project would be adjusted based upon how much money was available from this 25 percent?


MR. AUGUSTINE:  As Senator Florez mentioned, the area is already programmed for some improvements, and so the difference between those estimated costs and the impact and the unknown impact at this point, there would have to be some presumably augmentation to that, and it would not, in our view—this is, again, a special project that doesn’t affect the local STIA plans or any of the other improvements of the state—excuse me—the local—have anticipated.  This is up and above any of those existing programs.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Thank you very much.  If you could remain, we might have some more questions.


If we could, Jane Zerbi, of Dickstein & Zerbi.  Thank you for joining us.  Appreciate it.


Just in terms of checks and balances, I think we just heard a moment ago in the negotiations, and particularly in this compact, is that your understanding, as just mentioned by the Caltrans perspective, that somehow this isn’t going to be lumped in with all the other road projects, that this has an improvement that is tied to a specific compact; and therefore, that funding source is going to be there to finish the work five, six, seven years from now; it isn’t going to be raided upon someday in the future?  Is that your understanding?


MS. JANE ZERBI:  Well, I can’t speak to an understanding of Caltrans administration, for the funds.  What I can speak to is that the compact provides for the environmental review process where this is a project that will undoubtedly be studied and discussed and then enforceable agreements for the implementation so that the tribe has agreed to a process where it would step up to the plate and ensure that the funds for the mitigation that are determined to be necessary and appropriate are available.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And I guess the question is, it’s clear that there’s 25 percent dollars going to put into some special fund or something of that sort that would allow for Caltrans to complete, if you will, the work.


MS. ZERBI:  Specifically, the compact provides for the state and Caltrans to enter into negotiations and an enforceable agreement with the tribe, and that agreement then would specify the type of mitigation and the type of funding made available.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  But do we have an understanding of where and how that language, in terms of mitigation, is going to be put forth?  I mean is it going to be put in the hands of CTC and Caltrans?  Is it going to be in a special fund that, in essence, could be raided upon ten years from now so things are complete?  I mean how do we view that as being completed?  How do the people, particularly who are worried about the transportation issues, know, that once we’re done with these, if you will, of ratifying this pack and things start to progress and the negotiations are complete and we get a number in terms of how much it’s going to cost for these improvements, how do we then know ten years from now or six years from now that those improvements, those dollars, are actually going to go to that specific improvement versus into the entire pot which, in many cases, never gets to the improvements that we had hoped for or we had negotiated?


MS. ZERBI:  The tribe will want to ensure that this is spelled out in the agreement because the tribe will be operating a casino and has as much interest as the people around the casino to ensure that these traffic improvements get implemented.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  If you could, the checks and balances that exist in the proposed compact, can you give us from your vantage point adequate oversight from the state’s perspective?


MS. ZERBI:  The Lytton compact provides for enhanced state oversight in quite a few areas, and I can briefly summarize those for you.


One of the very important areas is testing of gaming devices.  Before any gaming device is put into play, there are certain tests that will be done on that gaming device to ensure it plays fairly for the patron.  What that means in plain language is, essentially, when a patron puts in a dollar, a dollar credit comes up on the machine, that in fact that machine pays out the way it’s supposed to pay out.  The way that it is done is that the Tribal Gaming Agency must ensure that an independent gaming lab has certified that that game operates according to technical standards.  This compact gives the state a specific role and ability to come in quarterly to inspect, to ensure that the gaming devices have been tested to operate in accordance with technical standards.  And it also requires independent audits to ensure that that has occurred, and copies of those audits go to the State Gaming Agency.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  There’s been some, at least in some of the readings that I have looked at prior to the hearing, you know, some issues raised by Doctors Hospital.  I think we’re going to hear from them as well.


Do you have an idea of those concerns, and can you give us an indication how they’re solved or within the particular compact?


MS. ZERBI:  I think we heard tribal chairman, Margie Mejia, speak to a known pledge to Doctors Hospital this morning to understand what the issues are, acknowledge that it is a sensitive receptor, that there are traffic and crime concerns, and the tribe is certainly anticipating and ready to step up to the plate to talk with Doctors Hospital about those concerns directly as well as anticipate that that will be a topic and issue in the agreement entered into under the compact.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Members, questions.  Mr. Cox?

Okay.  If we can just hold you folks for a minute.  I think we have just some differing opinions here, and I just want to make sure it went to the table.


Cathy Christensen [sic], special counsel to Contra Costa County.  Thank you for joining us.


MS. CATHY CHRISTIAN:  Good afternoon, Mr. Chair.  Cathy Christian.


I’m representing Contra Costa County here on behalf of the Board of Supervisors to talk about some of the local government concerns with respect to both environmental and regulatory issues.  But I think it’s important to set that in a framework and just take a minute to do that.


Contra Costa County has no involvement in the decision to locate the tribe in the City of San Pablo on the lands that now is the card room, nor did it have any role to play in the decision that the governor makes to negotiate a Tribal-State Compact.  Those decisions were made at other levels of government, other than the county.  And yet when those decisions are made to locate a tribe in San Pablo or to have a Tribal-State Compact, the impact of that decision and the project of this site are, of course, much greater than most of the things that the county has ever had to confront.  And that puts the county in a somewhat unique position because, in a normal project, what we would do is require the developer to pay for and the county to certify an EIR that was, in the county’s view, adequate to address the impacts of the proposed development. This happens a little bit differently.  We haven’t seen the tribal EIR yet because obviously it hasn’t been completed.  The compact hasn’t been ratified.  And so some of what the committee has been talking about today, in terms of your confusion, is confusion that we share.  We don’t really know until we hear directly from the tribe in the form of an EIR what it is that they anticipate the impacts will be.


Then after that happens, the state, Caltrans, the tribe, and the county—and county, by the way, is responsible for addressing all impacts under the compact other than those that are the responsibility of the City of San Pablo—must try in a very short period of time, 55 days after the final EIR is done, negotiate a comprehensive mitigation agreement because this compact lasts until the year 2025.  The Bay Area will change a lot between now and 2025.  And so negotiating an agreement that is fair to all the parties that provide for some flexibility and provides for a way to anticipate unexpected impacts is a big challenge, and it does involve a tremendous amount of county resources.  It involves department heads from numerous departments, it involves the CAO’s office, it involves the time of the board of supervisors and whatever assistance the county thinks it needs.

So I can’t overstate at this point, especially given the fact that no one in California has ever negotiated a mitigation agreement for an urban casino, we are completely in unchartered waters here.  It’s not that we don’t have confidence that the tribe will be willing to negotiate in good faith, and we certainly very much appreciate the governor addressing local government concerns by providing in the compact a vehicle and a mechanism to begin to negotiate the mitigation of those impacts.  It’s just that we can’t tell you right now what those look like or how great they will be.

But just from our preliminary analysis, when you talk about the kind of traffic impact, for example, that Caltrans is going to have to address, it’s not just the number of cars on the freeway.  If it takes longer for people to get to work or if it makes Contra Costa less livable, there will be economic impacts that the county will experience and the residents of the county will experience and the businesses in the county will experience that we want to take a look at.  It will have a rippling effect throughout the criminal justice system—from the District Attorneys Office, the Sheriff, Probation, the jail, the Public Defender, and so on.  We expect, obviously, that the major entity responsible for the social service impacts, whether that be mental health, domestic violence, child abuse, whatever it is, gambling addiction, are going to be experienced countywide.  We expect this casino will be bring in a lot of people from other places, but their impacts will occur in Contra Costa County.


So that gives you an idea of the challenge that we face in addressing the situation.  And first and foremost, our position is, that on behalf of the county, is that out of the pot of money that becomes available as a result of the governor’s agreement with the tribe and the obligation the tribe has to prepare an EIR and negotiate with the county, that the EIR must be full and comprehensive.  It has to be.  If it’s not, then in a very few years, we’re going to be experiencing impacts for which there will be no compensation, so that the very beginning stage for us is to ensure that that’s the case.  If the tribal EIR were not adequate, it would be our position that that would be something, I guess subject to arbitration and the baseball style arbitration.  It’s sort of a high-stakes game.  Both sides present what they think is their case for what is an adequate EIR.  And again, this involves a tremendous amount of county resources, resources for which we don’t currently budget, we don’t currently have revenue.  And in the end, what the county gets, and this is also an important point, we don’t get a benefit.  There’s no revenue stream coming to Contra Costa County as a result of this agreement.  It is to make the county whole for the losses it will otherwise incur if this project goes forward, and that’s a very different kind of consideration than what the state, for example, is considering and the policy considerations that you and the Legislature and the governor must make.


For us, though, we’re trying to ensure that the residents of Contra Costa County don’t suffer a loss as a result of this project.  And I understand that some people think there are revenue generators in indirect ways of jobs and so on.  But we don’t know whether those people will live in the county.  We don’t know whether or not that will offset the losses that are going to occur because of the impacts, and it’s all part of the equation or the matrix that we have to consider.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Given the timing of this particular compact, has the county quantified what those “losses” are and how much they are?


MS. CHRISTIAN:  No.  The county has not.  We have not been presented with any description of any detail about the plan.  We don’t know what Caltrans is contemplating, so it would be impossible, other than in the broadest of strokes, to begin to quantify that.  This approach actually—the State Association of Counties, of which Contra Costa is obviously a part—has addressed this on a statewide level.  And we know other counties have attempted to quantify those impacts and reach an agreement.  And the governor again, to give him all due credit, has incorporated most of those policies into the compact, and that’s very important to us.  But we don’t have a model to look to.  Even in major urban counties, like San Diego, for example, the casinos are not in Downtown San Diego.  They’re not in an urban area.  So we are addressing something that no one else has had to address before.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Is that from your vantage point a bad thing?


MS. CHRISTIAN:  It’s only a bad thing if in the end…

SENATOR FLOREZ:  You’re the first, so it’s bad?  Or is it you’re first and you don’t have any way to, in essence, put together a plan that would allow for a win-win?


MS. CHRISTIAN:  Well, unfortunately, Mr. Chairman, I can’t answer that question because we just don’t know what we’re confronting.


For example, had some of these decisions—if the county had been involved at an earlier stage, it may have been that there were alternatives or suggestions or ways in which the county could have at the front end addressed some of its concerns.  I’m not blaming anybody, for that is the nature of the process.  But we’re now presented essentially with a fait accompli.  I mean it is going to be a casino with 2,500 slot machines in it and whatever other kinds of things are authorized under the compact.  And the governor has given us a method to try and address the impacts.  But we don’t know at this point whether that will be successful.  We don’t know what the tribe will do.  We don’t know what the state will do.  We don’t know whether the amount of money available will be sufficient to address all the impacts.  But I do want to stress, at least in the county’s view, preliminarily, the impacts are very large.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And what would you have done different then if indeed the Governor’s Office had called you and asked you to be involved?  Would you have structured this any differently?


MS. CHRISTIAN:  Well, I appreciate the role that the governor had to play.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  The 50 percent, right?


MS. CHRISTIAN:  Yes.  The federal government made the decision to put the tribe and the casino in San Pablo, not the governor.  The State of California had nothing to say about that.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Yes, I know.  But what would you have done differently?


MS. CHRISTIAN:  Well, I mean I think the only thing that might have been—there’s a little concern, I guess, on our part that this new method of all the parties sitting down and divvying up a certain amount of money, we don’t know exactly who’s going to align with who and whether all the interests are going to be fairly addressed.  I mean the county, the city, Caltrans, and the state all have a stake in the same pot of money.  And frankly, so does the tribe because it’s the tribe’s money, and the tribe wants there to be mitigation accomplished.  None of that was discussed with us ahead of time, so I don’t know that we have an alternative.  The other compact provides…

SENATOR FLOREZ:  But besides your partner in that particular type of arbitration, I mean would the tribes say, I really want to give 10 percent to California’s General Fund—I don’t know what they’d do with it—or I’d rather give a lot of money to fix these roads and the access to our casino?  I mean wouldn’t you feel that you would have more of a partner in that particular type of style of negotiation than, if you will, a foe?


MS. CHRISTIAN:  With the tribe?


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Yes.


MS. CHRISTIAN:  Well, we certainly have all the reason in the world—and we’re optimistic—that we will have that kind of relationship with the tribe.  I don’t know how Caltrans and the state will feel about that or the city, for example.  But we’re not looking for a confrontation with any of those levels of government.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Well, I’m not saying a confrontation, but you mentioned earlier that the revenue stream from your vantage point—and tell me if I’ve misquoted you—is really to cover your “losses”.  And I’m just wondering how you would reach that conclusion, given you haven’t yet sat at the table with all the parties to figure out, number one, what your losses are and, number two, whether or not you do better if you’re negotiating with partners in essence who want to help you help the area in terms of access to transportation and mitigation.  I mean how did you get to the conclusion they’re covering your losses?


MS. CHRISTIAN:  Well, the nature of the compact, the compact allowed the county to develop or requires the tribe actually and the county to develop an agreement that covers the losses which is the colloquial way of saying mitigates the impacts that are associated with the project and it sets that out.  It doesn’t give the county any authority to negotiate a revenue stream, independent of what mitigation is necessary.  So that is one way of saying it.  And that’s a little bit different perspective than the state will have obviously with respect to what it’s trying to accomplish.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  So if you had restructured it, as you mentioned earlier, you would have done mitigation plus?


MS. CHRISTIAN:  Well, I don’t actually have an opinion.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  You would said mitigate?


MS. CHRISTIAN:  The board of supervisors hasn’t taken a position on whether they should get a revenue stream from it or not because it’s not their decision to make.  It’s sort of an academic question.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And within the structure of this compact, do you foresee that there is not a way to get a revenue stream out of the 25 percent?


MS. CHRISTIAN:  I believe that there is not a way to get a revenue stream outside of what is necessary to mitigate the impacts that are identified in the tribal EIR and a process for mitigating those.  The role of the county under the compact is to identify impacts and to mitigate the impacts.  It doesn’t have any authority granted to it by the state to negotiate with the tribe for our revenue stream that exceeds what would be necessary to mitigate the impact.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Senator Cox, did you have a question?


SENATOR COX:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  If you’ve asked this question before, please don’t hesitate to…I want to get a better understanding, if I may, relative to Contra Costa County.  Do you know whether your board of supervisors is philosophically opposed to this casino in San Pablo?


MS. CHRISTIAN:  Former Supervisor Cox, that was a very loaded question.  (Laughter)  Excuse me for being flippant.


SENATOR COX:  I did, in fact, spend six years on the board of supervisors.


MS. CHRISTIAN:   I know.  The board of supervisors has not taken a position formally in support of the casino or in opposition to the casino.  They have taken a position adopting the CSAC guidelines which require that local governments be fully mitigated if there is going to be a project.


SENATOR COX:  Okay.  I heard what you said, but maybe I just didn’t understand the response relative to the revenue and cost recovery that’s provided in the 25 percent formula.  Have you done any analysis as to what—has Contra Costa County done any analysis as to what they think it’s going to cost them in order to mitigate the problems that arise?


MS. CHRISTIAN:  We are in the process of doing that.  But I’d like to say, without a project description and an EIR…


SENATOR COX:  Makes it more difficult.


MS. CHRISTIAN:  It makes it more difficult.  So we do have meetings scheduled with department heads.  We are trying to reach some understanding of how, at least the worst- and best-case scenarios might be, given what we think the project is going to look like.


SENATOR COX:  Have you had discussion with Caltrans and/or any other organization that talked about where there’s a cost-sharing formula in place in order to get some road, for example?  And is the cost-sharing agreement that the state puts in so much, the feds put in so much, and so much from the county, have you had discussions with Caltrans or anyone about those kinds of arrangements as to what’s going to happen using the mitigation funds from this project?


MS. CHRISTIAN:  No.  We have not to date.  We understand that there may have been one meeting with Caltrans and some of the consultants for the tribe.  Our transportation people are, though, reaching out to Caltrans who have expressed a willingness to find out what the county’s views about it are.  Again, we’re sort of speculating about how big this might be or what the impacts might be.  So it’s a chicken-and-egg sort of thing.  I think we’re going to have to do it together.


SENATOR COX:  Let me ask you.  Do you know whether the City of San Pablo is philosophically in favor of a casino, or do you know?


MS. CHRISTIAN:  I only, from the news report, I understand that they are.


SENATOR COX:  Hearsay is fine.


MS. CHRISTIAN:  That, yes, they are.


SENATOR COX:  Okay.  Let me just ask you, with respect to Contra Costa County now, do you have any idea as to what other—you know, this is a, in some respects, there’s a discussion going on between the racetracks and the casinos.  And obviously the racing industry believes that this will be detrimental to their enterprise.  Do you know what financial contribution, in terms of revenue to the county, that be received from the racetracks?


MS. CHRISTIAN:  The hostess racetrack is not in Contra Costa County; it’s in Alameda County.  And I believe that under the horseracing law that any mitigation—there is some traffic money that goes from the horseracing fund, goes to Alameda County.  I’m not aware of any contribution directly to Contra Costa.


SENATOR COX:  So you don’t have anything going to Contra Costa.  Okay.


Thank you, Mr. Chairman.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  You’re welcome.


SENATOR COX:  Card rooms?

MS. CHRISTIAN:  Pardon?

SENATOR COX:  Card rooms?

MS. CHRISTIAN:  Making a contribution?  Well, obviously, there is a card room in San Pablo now that was authorized by the residents of the City of San Pablo about ten years ago, I believe.  Again, I don’t think that there’s any direct contribution to the county, but they are a business like any other business in the county, so they would be subject to, you know, whatever taxes or other kinds of fees that would be imposed on other businesses at that type that they would be subject—the card room, that is.  But the card room is now, I believe, owned by the tribe.  And so I’m not sure whether that has changed the nature of all that or not.


SENATOR DENHAM:  We will hear testimony this afternoon.  But I’m assuming that other Bay Area card rooms feel that they will be impacted too, and this goes along with Senator Cox’s question, Would it adversely have less revenue for the local community as well?

MS. CHRISTIAN:  Just as to Contra Costa County alone, I don’t think that’s an issue.  I’m not aware of any other card room in the county, other than the one at San Pablo which is about to be turned into this other project.


SENATOR DENHAM:  Thank you.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Any other questions, members?


Okay.  Lets go on, if we could—thank you, Cathy, appreciate it—Mike McGowan, Yolo County supervisor and chair of the CSAC Task Force on Indian Gaming.


MS. CHRISTIAN:  Mr. Chairman, it’s my understanding, Supervisor McGowan called me yesterday to say that he would be running a little bit late.  So maybe if you could put him at the end of the panel, he will be here.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Sure.  We’ll go ahead and we’ll move on.


Irwin Hansen, CEO, Doctors Hospital.  Thank you for joining us.


MR. IRWIN HANSEN:  Is this on now?  Thank you, Chairman Florez and Committee Members.  We appreciate being here, invited to participate in this panel and discussion.


I’m Irwin Hansen.  I’m CEO of Doctors Medical Center of San Pablo.  Some people here may remember it as Brookside Medical Center in the past.  Joining me is Susan Ancel here, and Susan is the chief nurse in charge of the emergency room at Doctors Medical Center and here to discuss with you some of those impacts.


We’re here today to speak on behalf of the mission of the hospital, and we want to be clear that we’re not here in opposition in any fashion to the concept of the casino, to its development, and we need to take no position on urban gaming.  We have a relationship with the Lyttons currently in that they are—we and they are—one another’s most proximate neighbor.  We share boundary lines or lot lines, you might say.

And I want to thank Margie Mejia this morning for the comments that I heard her make regarding her commitment to healthcare and to the hospital and we recognize that, and we recognize that currently they are good neighbors.
Our conversations with the tribe have been few but cordial, and so we want to acknowledge that.  We are here today because, however, we do believe that there is an impact on the hospital and that these impacts have been left out of the thinking.  And we say that because of the various agreements that were acknowledged this morning and enumerated by Chair Margie Mejia, those being in agreement with the state, with Caltrans, with Contra Costa County, and the City of San Pablo.  We understand that the agreements haven’t been completed yet.  But what’s important here is that we were not part of any of those.  And therefore, we must be clear that we have to advocate on behalf of ourselves.

To give you little bit of background and the nature of the hospital, Contra Costa, West Contra Costa County Health District, is the owner of the hospital, and the Health District is a political subdivision of the state.  It is, as an elected board, five board members.  While the mission statement is fairly broad, due to the nature of things, the principal focus of the Health District is on the hospital.

The demographics of our community, first of all, the community, it is a district in the community.  It goes essentially from El Cerrito to El Segundo, Richmond, San Pablo, Pinole, Hercules, Rodeo, Crockett.  I’m sure I’m leaving out something here—Kensington is included in that.  But if you think about that community, a community of about 250, approximately 250,000 people, and elements of the community are especially needy.  And we see those people in our emergency room.

We currently have seen about 40,000 people a year in our emergency room.  We see about 100,000 people a year from the county in our various clinics and in the hospital.  We operate the only labor and delivery service in West County, and we operate one of two, but certainly the largest emergency room that’s available in the community.  Recently there was a study that was performed by the county, contracted, but the county paid for it, County Emergency Medical Services, indicating, that if our emergency room was not there, it would so overwhelm the other emergency room, that they would be forced to close because of the saturation.

The history of the hospital, very briefly, as it was one of the early healthcare district hospitals in the state, it goes back to the 1950s.  And the Health District operated—West Contra Costa Health District operated—the hospital from about 1950 or ’54 until 1996.  The years ’94, ’95, ’96 were especially difficult on hospitals in the Health District, basically, Hospital District came to believe that it financially could not sustain itself, sustain the organization any longer.  And they leased the hospital, on a 20-year lease, to Tenet Health Services.  Tenet operated the hospital.  We know that for the last several years, they lost several million dollars a year in their operations, experienced a 13-month strike, settled the strike, and forthwith thereafter announced that they were leaving the community, giving the health district a six-months’ notice on January 31 of 2004 that they were going to be leaving.  The district then hired me, and I hired a group of others to join me, and we put together essentially a workout plan and a financing plan that included a parcel tax.  We put the parcel tax in front of the voters and received an 84 percent support for the parcel tax, which we thought was remarkable, given the fact that we were really asking the community to become our financial partner.  I know that there were questions earlier about who the financial partners were.  Our financial partner is our community.

So we are just now, since the first of August of last year, under an effort to stabilize the hospital and turn it around.  We have a strategic plan that essentially calls for an increase of services of magnet programs, and we are in discussions with the county that were going to lead to a proposal yet, I think, this month, from us to the county, we’d be considered for a second trauma center, to become a second trauma center, in Contra Costa County,

We think all of these things need to be considered.  I’ve asked Susan Ancel who is really front lines with the patients, 40,000 patients a year.  And I’ve asked Susan to give a little bit of a description of her thinking on where this might lead us.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.

MR. HANSEN:  Susan.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you for joining the Committee.

MS. SUSAN ANCEL:  Thank you.

The reason that I’m here today is to ask you to seriously consider the impact on patients and their families when they drive to our hospital and they encounter the traffic congestion that could occur with the casino expansion.

Please don’t hear me say that I’m against the casino.  I walk across our parking lot—or used to walk across our parking lot—to go to the casino for our rotary meetings.  And for several years, I went to the casino and gave the employees of the casino flu shots.  So I believe that we all want our community to thrive and be great.  I believe that we all want the same thing, but I don’t see how we can be responsible public servants if we hinder the access to our community hospital.

As Mr. Hansen said, approximately 100 patients a day come to our cancer center for cancer treatment with their families.  Our emergency department does see 100 to 120 patients a day which translates to 40,000 patients a year.  And we’re the largest hospital in West Contra Costa County.  And according to the EMS data, we are second in volume for ambulance traffic to come to our emergency department.  So I’m here today because I ask you to please keep in the forefront of your consideration the public being able to get to our hospital.  Thank you.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Great.  Thank you very much.

Members, are there any questions?  Yes.  Senator Cox.

Oh, go ahead.  Go ahead.

MR. HANSEN:  So once again, thank you for that.  I would like to just share the map.  There is a map, I think, in a letter that we did.  But for the benefit of the group, this is where the hospital is located—it would be here—and the casino will be located, on this property.  As you can see, we adjoin on two sides of the property.  The major access from the highway would come through here, and I think everybody knows that there’s already—that’s a difficult area for traffic already, and our concern is that being behind the casino, that it would just be an even more difficult place.

SENATOR COX:  Do you use a helicopter now?
MR. HANSEN:  I’m sorry?

SENATOR COX:  Do you use a helicopter now?

MR. HANSEN:  Yes.  We do.

SENATOR COX:  Do you see that the casino, the expansion, though, do you think this impedes your ambulances and your emergency, your ground vehicles?

MR. HANSEN:  Well, what we know is that, what we heard today, for example, is that there’s going to be 6,600 employees at the casino.  And it’s also going to be probably tens of thousands of people that come through as patrons.  We just believe that that’s an awful lot of traffic and a lot of density, two big organizations.  It’s clear that we have issues that are confronting us in the future.  We have seismic issues that we’re going to have to deal with from a state point of view.  It means that there’s going to be construction on our site; there’s going to be construction on their site; there’s going to be all of this traffic.  We haven’t had any capability at this point of doing any research on this, so I can’t specifically answer it.  Intuitively, there’s a lot of activity here.

SENATOR COX:  With respect to your visceral reaction, do you believe that adequate mitigation can be put in place?  Do you believe that?

MR. HANSEN:   Well, yes, I believe adequate mitigation can be put in place.

SENATOR COX:  So you believe you can mitigate it?

MR. HANSEN:  It can be mitigated.  I believe so.

SENATOR COX:  Okay.  I guess maybe the next question, Mr. Chairman, is simply this:  So as you sit here today, tell us what you believe that mitigation’s going to cost.

MR. HANSEN:  I have no idea.

SENATOR COX:  But you’re looking for a piece of the pie. 

MR. HANSEN:  I am?

SENATOR COX:  But you don’t know what it costs.

MR. HANSEN:  That’s right.  I’m in the same situation the county’s in.

May I speak to that?
SENATOR COX:  Sure.
MR. HANSEN:  Our concern right now is that we know there is a cost, but we are not included in any of the negotiations directly.  And while we know that there’s a good deal of goodwill—we know that the county has expressed goodwill toward us, the tribe has expressed goodwill—we believe the city has goodwill toward us—I can’t take that good will back to my patron, back to my patrons, the community, and can’t goodwill to the bank, so to speak.  And the difficulty is that we’re not in any place where we can be participating in the negotiation simply because we think that we’ve been left out because we’re a political subdivision of the state.  We’re not part of the county; we’re not part of the city; we’re not part of Caltrans.

SENATOR COX:  Well, my guess is, you’d have to get the federal law changed in order to get a seat at the table.

MR. HANSEN:  Well, we don’t know about that.

SENATOR COX:  Okay.  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  You’re welcome.

Any other questions?

Thank you all.  Very much appreciate it.

MR. HANSEN:  Thank you.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Let’s get the Economic Impacts.  We have Joe Gomes, mayor, City of San Pablo; Brock Arner, city manager, City of San Pablo.  Let’s start with San Pablo and then Doug Krathwohl, chief of police, City of San Pablo.  Let’s just start with those three, and then we’ll proceed onto the next folks.

Mr. Gomes, hi.  Thank you for joining us.  Why don’t you give us your perspective as the mayor of San Pablo on this particular endeavor?  There you go.  Thank you for joining us.

MR. JOE GOMES:  Okay.  I am Joe Gomes, and I am the mayor of the City of San Pablo, and I’ve been on the city council now since 1977.  Contra Costa is an extremely diverse county, including demographics, generational class, and geographic differences in the communities and constituents.  While some communities would be considered wealthy, others are struggling.

As mayor of the City of San Pablo, I have seen firsthand the benefits of the casino for our community.   The City of San Pablo has enjoyed a partnership with the Lytton tribe and the opportunity to improve our respective communities with the City of San Pablo.  Before the voters overwhelmingly approved the casino in 1994, the city was suffering from dire financial stress.  There were even preliminary conversations that we would be forced to unincorporate, which, as you know, would have created significant strain on the county.

Since approval of the casino in 1994 and the time that the Lytton tribe assumed control in 2003, the project has continued to reap significant benefits to the city through the Local First Hire Program, funding support to the San Pablo Community organization through the San Pablo Foundation, and economic benefits to the local businesses.

Currently, the city and the casino operate under a municipal service agreement that provides for many specific benefits to the city.  For example, the current MSA outlines contributions to the San Pablo Community Foundation and a nonprofit organization that funds the Big Brothers/Big Sisters, Rape Crisis Center, the West County Adult Care, and others.  The specific others that I want to refer to is the Brookside Community Health Center which provides healthcare for the underprivileged and the noninsured.

These contributions are extremely important to many of the community organizations and nonprofits in our city.  Without this financial support, many critical programs would be at risk in our city.

Economic studies estimate that ongoing revenue to the city and immediate local regions generated by the new facility will be $49.6 million.  This would be an enormous boost to our local economy and development.  Unemployment in our county is very high.  This project is projected to create thousands of ongoing new jobs locally, not to mention the one-time construction jobs that will be created in the area.  For a project like this, one-time jobs will be expected to last for one to three years, which would be of significant benefit to the regional economy.
Currently, the Lytton tribe honors a union contract at the Casino San Pablo that provides many good jobs with good wages, family health benefits, and a retirement plan in a community with high unemployment, in many cases, the best jobs in the City of San Pablo.  The new casino will provide several hundred more good jobs for the local community.  We look forward to continuing to put our residents to work.  The new casino will mean more opportunities for local business and in the city and surrounding area to supply goods and services.  This will help our efforts to continue to revitalize the city.  The compact promises benefits for our local community, the state, and the Lytton tribe.  We urge the legislators to ratify the compact.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you very much, Mr. Joe Gomes.  Very much appreciate that.

Mr. City Manager.

CITY MANAGER BROCK ARNER:  Thank you, Mr. Chair, and thank you, Members of the Committee.  I might digress a little bit and compliment you on our stamina today.  This has been a long hearing and the depth of the questions and the knowledge that the Committee has exhibited.

My name is Brock Arner.  I am the city manager in San Pablo.  I have been since 2001.
I’d like to paint the story of San Pablo and the context of why the city council unanimously supports this compact and the Lytton Rancheria Casino in San Pablo.  Candidly, San Pablo is the poorest city in the region.  Eighteen percent of our population in San Pablo live below the poverty line which is 237 percent above the county average in that regard.  Our unemployment rate is 5.3 percent or 171 percent of the county average.  The West Contra Costa Times has reported that the number of people living below the poverty level in West Contra Costa County is at an all-time high, is at an all-time high.  In addition to that, 91 percent of our residents commute out of the community to seek employment.  There is not an employment base within this town of some 32,000 people.

The University of California did an analysis on this proposed casino and estimate that there’ll be—those folks who acquired these entry-level, union-wage jobs with health plans will increase their income by 350 percent.  As Mr. Gomes indicated, there have been studies that say that there’s a $49.6 million regional, positive impact from this proposal.
On a specific note as to how this relates to the City of San Pablo, currently, the casino generates $2.6 million to the city’s $12.5 million General Fund.  That General Fund employs 48 sworn officers in the high-crime area.  Candidly, we have the best crime and conviction statistics in West Contra Costa County.  Our neighbors are seeing things, seeing crime statistics similar to those in Oakland.  We don’t suffer from that because this council has put public safety at the forefront and has funded it.  Of that $12.5 million, $2.6 million comes from the casino.  That’s about 15 percent.  Without that money, that department would disappear.  That department eats up about $9 million.  The police department by itself eats up about $9 (million) to $12.5 million that we have in our General Fund.

We’re going to receive $250,000 in property taxes in our General Fund this year.  And Mr. Chair, we’re going to send $190,.000 to the State of California under the Education Revenue Augmentation Fund Program.  Simply stated, the city’s in dire financial straits.  This will be our major employer.  If this facility doesn’t come online, the City of San Pablo will most likely—and I’m available for questions—have a couple of digression remarks.  If I could help the chair, if there are other card rooms in Contra Costa County, other than Casino San Pablo, there’s one in Pacheco, just outside of the county seat, typically, the county charges on a per-table tax.  I haven’t seen—or that’s typically how that works, and I’d be glad to respond to any other questions that the committee might have.

SENATOR COX:  May I ask…

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Yes, Senator.

SENATOR COX:  ______ $2.6 million.  What do you anticipate that will go to, sir?

CITY MANAGER ARNER: The municipal service agreements calls for 5.4 percent of the Net Win.
SENATOR COX:  Is that in addition to the 25 percent that…

CITY MANAGER ARNER:  No, sir.  The compact that the governor has proposed calls for 25 percent of the Net Win to be divided between the state, those districts represented by the county, the county itself, the City of San Pablo, and Caltrans.

SENATOR COX:  And so you currently…

CITY MANAGER ARNER:  You asked me what I anticipate the state requiring?  I have indicated to you that our standard today is 5.4 percent.

SENATOR COX:  Five point what, sir?

CITY MANAGER ARNER:  Four.

SENATOR COX:  Four.  And so that’s what you’d be shooting for with this new compact then?


CITY MANAGER ARNER:  I hesitate to negotiate with a senator.  (Laughter)

SENATOR COX:  I understand.

CITY MANAGER ARNER:  You’re much too wily for the likes of me.

SENATOR COX:  You know, I’d be surprised if you’re trying to negotiate for less than that.  I’m just trying to get a handle on the number.


Assuming you get 5.4 percent, how much additional revenue does that generate for the City of San Pablo?


CITY MANAGER ARNER:  That revenue would allow for some…


SENATOR COX:  No.  How much?


CITY MANAGER ARNER:  I heard the question, sir.


SENATOR COX:  Thank you.


CITY MANAGER ARNER:  That revenue would allow for—we currently have a $3 million utility users tax on the poorest people in the Bay Area, so it would be used for that.  It would be used to fully fund community services.  We’ve laid off 15 percent of our workforce.  We need to expand the police department despite the accolades that I gave to it earlier.

I’m guessing, based upon the report that is available by ERA, that 5 percent would generate $20 million.

SENATOR COX:  Okay.  Thank you.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Any other questions?

Let me just ask a couple of them.  Just following along Senator Cox’s line of questioning, the additional impacts and costs associated, how positive are you that you’re actually going to see this money?

CITY MANAGER ARNER:  Sir, you’re talking to a local government official who’s looking at the state.  Our long-term history with you has been that you’ve won many more of these negotiations than we have.  However, I remain confident that the state recognizes that the Lytton’s approach to the City of Pablo in an effort to raise up both the tribal members and this community that I have described and that there will be sufficient remedy for that to occur.  Given the amounts of revenue that we’re speaking of and what will accrue to the state, I’m confident that we’ll be treated fairly.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  So you see this as a plus, in terms of additional public services, for your residents?

CITY MANAGER ARNER:  Yes, sir.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Not a decrease.

CITY MANAGER ARNER:  It will not be a decrease, and it will not be a tread-water situation.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Let’s go onto the chief, if we could.

Thank you for joining us.  We very much appreciate it.

CITY MANAGER ARONER:  Thank you for having us, sir.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Crime increasing or decreasing since San Pablo was first constructed, and then what do you foresee in the future, given this compact is approved?

CHIEF DOUG KRATHWOHL:  Good question.  I’d probably and laughingly will tell you that I think I represent the most heavily impacted operation out of everybody, no matter what anybody says.
I have been with the City of San Pablo of 15 years of my 38 years of law enforcement before the Casino San Pablo came in 1995.  We did quite a bit of research about gambling back then.  I wrote a position paper on it in ’93.  We went through quite a few public hearings, as Mr. Gomes could probably tell you, as well as me.  We had a lot of concerns about crime.  We had a lot of concerns about traffic, even then, although the proposed casino was smaller.  We found that most of those things did not come to.  It seemed that the casino in fact has been less of an intrusion on our department and our city than anyone of the strip shopping centers that we currently have.  It replaced a bowling alley—not a bowling alley—a motel—and a mobilehome park that had been there for sometime was substandard.  And we estimated by our statistics that crime went down about 30 percent directly following the redevelopment of the entire area.
I think it’s important to tell you that myself and my department are neither proponents nor opponents of gaming.  That’s not our issue.  Our issue is that we work for a city that needs this type of business and that it is our obligation to defend their good-faith contractual obligations and relations that they make in order to keep the city alive.  In 1995, we realized that was going to be an issue for this city.  So we took the point and became one of the highest profiled, regulated law enforcement agencies in the state, and I’m sure the Attorney General’s Office would confirm that.  So we became very proactive in terms of ordinance enforcement, gambling investigations, and other things—actually, enforced partners to divest, changed managers, made a lot of arrests.  They weren’t significant in terms of the number of people who came through there, and the dollar turned to the city, though.  But it was significant enough to do an increased regulatory job to ensure that it was that way.

So when the Lyttons proposed to take over the casino, in fact, it was not doing very well.  It was not competing well with other card rooms, partially because the former owners blamed us for too much regulation.  But for whatever reason, that was one of the reasons that the change came about.  We took a similar posture in reviewing this proposal.  We took a similar attitude in being open-minded and seeing what regulatory role, if any, we could play, realizing the federal government would preempt us.  And the tribe countered with several things that were of, I thought, significance.


One is that they insisted that a city official be appointed to the Gaming Oversight Board, and they asked for me, and that has been done.  I’m certified to be there by the National Indian Gaming Commission, and the Board oversees operations and personnel appointments.  The city already does backgrounds of all the people that are hired by the casino, an arrangement that is intended to continue, even when they go up to 2,500 employees.  Sixty-six hundred, I believe, was the number of jobs that are estimated to result, not actual employees of the casino.


So we’re estimating a crowd, a daily crowd, somewhere between 10,000 and 20,000.  If this goes as planned, we estimate a tremendous amount of traffic, which you’ve heard a lot about, probably to the point of nauseam.  We estimate that experts much more into the field than we are will probably come up with resolutions for that.  The casino is actually about 450 feet a way from the freeway that T-bones right into the street.  We think it can be done, although we’re not the traffic experts.  We estimate that we will have to sizably increase our force to deal with the number of patrons there since it’s a 24/7 operation, and they’ll be coming and going.  And our estimates for our cost impacts have already been presented and certainly will be considered, we hope, in the subsequent negotiations.


But if those measures are put into place, we believe, and we confidently believe, based on our experience, that we will be able to see that this business is a success, at least from the standpoint of minimal intrusion on the community for crimes or impact of people moving in and about.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Chief, let me just ask you a couple of questions.  How many, within the City of San Pablo, the population?


CHIEF KRATHWOHL:  It’s 30,000.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thirty thousand.  And you mentioned, you estimate a crowd of somewhere between 10,000 to 20,000.  So that’s quite a lot of folks versus what you have of your standard population as it is now.


CHIEF KRATHWOHL:  Yes, it would be.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And given that then, what do you estimate your force needing to be in order to manage that?


CHIEF KRATHWOHL:  I think our last estimate is, we would need at least 80 officers, 80 sworn officers.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Eighty.  And you have now again?


CHIEF KRATHWOHL:  I have 48.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Forty-eight.  So you’re looking at a doubling, roughly?


CHIEF KRATHWOHL:  At least, I would say, yes.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And in terms of just the overall question, you mentioned positive and negative of this particular endeavor, and you seem to be in the positive category; is that correct?


CHIEF KRATHWOHL:  That’s correct.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Great.


Members, any other questions for the City of San Pablo?


Gentlemen, while you’re sitting there, let’s have Mike McGowan come up.  He’s with the board of Supervisors, Yolo County.  I guess we just missed him in terms of timing.  And the penalty issue, you get to sit between the City of San Pablo chief and the city manager.  Maybe you can give us some perspective, if you will, on CSAC’s role and your thought process in terms of this particular endeavor.


SUPERVISOR MIKE McGOWAN:  Thank you.  I do apologize for being late.  I got an Air Quality Board meeting I had to be at, so I rushed over here.  I apologize.  I’m not sure how much ground has been covered, and I don’t want to take the committee’s time with going over old ground.  But Mike McGowan,  I’m a Yolo County supervisor and chairman of the California State Association of Counties Indian Gaming Working Group.

For the last couple of years, we have been endeavoring to get policies adopted into the various compacts that the governors, both Governor Davis and Governor Schwarzenegger, have been considering over the course of the last couple of years which would protect some fundamental interests of local government.  Candidly, this came about primarily as a result of some various counties that have rural casino settings.  They are concerns that we’ve had through the years over a number of environmental and really social service impacts.  The policies that we were seeking to have included or the principles that we were seeking to have included really go towards mitigation of the impacts.  We essentially wanted to have the impacts to local government be treated by the tribes similarly to, if not the same as, impacts of any other economic development or construction development.  To that end, their basic principles are that the off-reservation impacts or the on-reservation activities really be mitigated, be dealt with, or the consequences be dealt with, that there be a meaningful negotiation between the tribe and the local jurisdictions that the agreement that comes about as a result of those negotiations via document that can then be enforceable, either as a court of law or some other fashion.  For the most part, the more recent compacts that we’ve seen come out of the Governor’s Office have embraced certainly the spirit if not the actual terms of those policy concerns.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Have any of you had a chance to review the Lytton compact?


SUPERVISOR McGOWAN:  I’m familiar with it.  I couldn’t speak specifically or technically, but it does appear to have, it does appear to embrace for us the important ingredient that the tribe sit down with the local jurisdictions—the city, in this case, and the county—to hammer out what the impacts are to local jurisdictions and how those impacts then will…

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  So you’re saying they pretty much model what you’ve been seeking?


SUPERVISOR McGOWAN:  Yes, sir.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  How do you explain the discrepancy when CSAC’s task forces were heading in the right direction?  This looks like what we need to do in this particular compact, at least.  And then you have a real practitioner county person come up and say this is not—we just don’t know enough to make a good, viable support position on this.  I mean how does—where’s the mismatch there?

SUPERVISOR McGOWAN:  I’m not so sure there is a disconnection.  It isn’t our—as you well know, there are 58 counties getting us to agree, in toto, on anything is damn near impossible.  That’s certainly the case here.  So we strive to get some basic principles adopted, and those principles, I believe, hold true for San Pablo, nor is it CSAC’s position to endorse or oppose a particular project.  Its our intention to support Contra Costa County and San Pablo in this case for them to have those issues met.


It’s not for us to say whether or not there should be this particular operation in their jurisdiction.  And if they feel that the terms under which that particular casino and that particular compact terms are just not sufficient for them, we would probably urge those concerns be dealt with and they be met.  My personal situation, Yolo County situation, is with a rural casino.  That brings with it a certain set or host of issues that we have attempted to deal with.  Those issues certainly may not be the same as the issues that are alive and well in an urbanized areas.  So we are trying to at least get more than we had before, as you’re well aware.

As you’re well aware, the earlier compacts left no opportunity for local jurisdictions to have any meaningful input.  We were simply really almost vital and frustrated by standards of the process.  At least we’re trying to get in the door.  Perhaps we’re not completely at the table yet in all regards, but it’s been our efforts to make progress in that way.  So I’m not so sure that there’s a true disconnect between the CSAC policy and what is alive and well here today for either San Pablo or Contra Costa County.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Members, any questions for this panel?


Thank you, gentlemen, very, very much.


SUPERVISOR McGOWAN:  I appreciate your indulgence.  I do apologize for being late.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  No problem.  Thank you.


CITY MANAGER ARNER:  Mr. Chair, you asked a question earlier this morning.  I think I might be able to respond to you.


You asked about San Pablo Dam Road and the interchange there.  Just as background, for the committee, there are three concepts in how to improve that interchange.  There is local funding through a sales tax measure approved by the voters of Contra Costa County.  In the City of San Pablo’s opinion, the compact and the Lyttons will accelerate the implementation of those traffic improvements.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Great.  Thank you very much.


CHIEF KRATHWOHL:  Mr. Chairman, can you indulge me one second?


One thing that occurs to me—and I’ve said this to many people, including the media, or our part of it, the law enforcement view of this—if we were building a Marine World in this place instead of the Lyttons, I would be facing many of the same issues that we’ve just discussed, except we probably wouldn’t have as much scrutiny and second guessing and review.  I mean that’s just part of the process.  But we would still have the same large grounds of recreational, motivated people.  We’ve probably be more in conflict with peak traffic as opposed to those folks that you just mentioned spread out over 24 hours a day and hopefully more manageable because of that flexibility.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  So you’ve never dealt with the animal lobby?  (Laughter)


CHIEF KRATHWOHL:  I’ve never dealt with the animal lobby.  (Laughter)  Good point.  Thank you, sir.


SENATOR FLOREZ:    Thank you very much.  Appreciate it.


CHIEF KRATHWOHL:  Thank you.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Let’s move on.  Let’s get, if we could, Mark Dvorchak, Economic Research Associates.


We have a panel of workers—Jack Gribbon, Hotel and Restaurant Employees Union.  If you folks can come up, that would be great.  Yes.  We will finish on time.  Come on up.  And after that, we’re going to hear from Ronald Schmidt, Richard Siegel, in terms of LEGC [sic], Economics & Finance.  And we’re then going to take one more panel after that—Rod Blonien, and Alan Edelstein—and then we will take public testimony.  So we’re two panels away from where we should be.

Okay.  Thank you for joining us.


MR. JACK GRIBBON:  Good afternoon, Mr. Chair and Members.  My name is Jack Gribbon.  I represent Unite Here, the union that represents over 100,000 workers in the gaming industry nationally, both tribal and commercial.  You’ve heard quite a bit about the jobs that may well be produced by the Lytton casino and currently exists at the Lytton casino.  What we want to add is some of the practical and personal realities regarding those jobs.


Two things I’d like to say, though, first.


One is that currently the Lytton Band of Pomo Indians provides one of the best packages in the gaming industry in terms of wages, benefits, working conditions, retiree benefits as well, as any other enterprise in the gaming industry in California.  That’s tribal or commercial.  And this is a very, very, very important point here because the one thing I would take issue with respect to what Cathy Christian said earlier regarding there’s no really net positive to the county as a result of mitigation of negative impacts, the bringing in of new jobs to the county that create a real level of wages, benefits, and working conditions is a real plus to the county.


In addition to that, the concomitant reduction in cost to the state and the county in terms of emergency medical services—Medi-Cal, Healthy Families, et cetera, et cetera, et cetera—is also very positive.  But to move quickly here, I’d like to introduce Natalia Chacon who is one of our members and a current worker at the Casino San Pablo.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you for joining us.


MS. NATALIA CHACON:  Hi.  Bear with me.  I’m a little nervous.


My name is Natalia Chacon.  I was born and raised in Richmond.  I’m currently living in San Pablo.  I’ve been at the casino since it’s opened nine years ago.  I was a mother on welfare with my first child at age 15.  By the time the casino has opened, I have four kids.  My youngest one started kindergarten.  I’m nervous.


I decided to go to work because welfare wasn’t working for me.  It was time to get off.  I happened to come upon an application for the casino and I got the job.  I passed my 90 days’ probation.  I called my caseworker.  I notified her I no longer needed their services because I was able, finally, to provide my family with medical insurance, a paycheck every two weeks, and health insurance.  As for today, I’m proud to say I’m a lead housekeeper.  I’ve been employee of the month.  I have been employee of the year.  I have a son who owns his own business here in Sacramento.  I have a daughter who’s in grad school.  She graduated from Saint Mary’s College with a BA.  My youngest son is sitting in the audience.  He’s a little big, but he’s 15.  And I’m able to provide him with health insurance at $11 a month.  Unfortunately, I have a son that has already passed away.


I would like to say that I’m grateful for the casino.  I’m going on my ten-year anniversary at the end of this year, and they helped me turn my life around and get up off welfare.  Thank you.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you.


MR. GRIBBON:  Leroy Burford ?? is also a worker at the Casino San Pablo.  Leroy.


MR. LEROY BURFORD:  My name is Leroy Burford, and I have worked at the housekeeping department at the Casino San Pablo since it opened in ’95.  My wife and I have lived in San Pablo for 18 years and have raised three kids there.  My job at the casino gives me critical medical benefits and decent wages.  My casino job allows me to own my own home and make my mortgage payments on time.  That is why I have worked here at the casino for the past ten years.  The wage I earn at the Casino San Pablo helped me to qualify for a loan from the City of San Pablo for homeowners to help remodel homes.  My wife and I made use of this program in July of ’99 when we put a new roof on our house.

As a longtime resident of San Pablo, I have seen a lot of improvements since the casino opened.  We have nicer streets and a new police station.  I am glad to not only work at the casino but also enjoy the benefits it gives me as a member of the community.


MR. GRIBBON:  And, finally, Al Garner.


MR. ALAN GARNER:  Hello.  My name is Alan Garner.  Okay.  I work at the Casino San Pablo in its catering department.  I’ve been there three years.  I have lived in San Pablo for 48 years.


One of the best improvements in the city that I have seen since the casino opened was the crime rate went down.  I used to be a counselor to homeless people, and the main thing they asked me was always making a decent wage so they could afford a place to live.  With the casinos, these jobs still provide an income that we need to be able to work and keep a place, and it gives us good benefits and wages and the businesses and wages, as far as people having, knowing that they could take the kids to the doctors, and this casino provides for us, is that.


Myself, I’m proud to be a part of Casino San Pablo, and I want to thank you.


MR. GRIBBON:  Currently there are 200 members there, and the expansion obviously would create other opportunities for workers in the area as well.  Thank you.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.


MR. MARK DVORCHAK:  My name is Mark Dvorchak with Economics Research Associates, and I was the author, principal author, of the Economic Benefit Study for the proposed San Pablo Casino.  I believe there’s copies here.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Before you start, let me say to all of you who came up and testified now, you guys are excused and thank you very much.  You did a great job.


And before, Mark, you start, let’s get Ronald Schmidt and Richard Siegel up here, if we could, and then we can hit this panel.  And then, as I said, we’ll go onto Mr. Blonien and Mr. Edelstein.


I’m sorry to interrupt you.


MR. DVORCHAK:  I hadn’t really started.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  You can continue.


MR. DVORCHAK:  Thank you.  What I’d like to do is just kind of go through a quick overview of ERA, in case people are not familiar with us, and a little of the methodology.  And I’ll get right to the numbers of the results of the study, and then we can go back and address any questions you may have.

Economics Research Associates is an international consulting firm.  We were founded in 1958, and we focus on the economic analysis, particularly in the recreation and real estate industry.  We have extensive experience analyzing the gaming industry, including casino projects in California, Nevada, et cetera, and, obviously, the economic impacts.  The scope of our analysis was limited to an estimation of the economic benefits that could be reasonably expected from the construction and operations of this proposed casino.


The benefits are divided into two major categories—first, one-time economic benefits which only happen once at the outset and during the development phase; and then ongoing benefits which you could expect to see year after year.  Within these categories, obviously, there’s the direct impacts, the first order of benefits.  And then those benefits will then get re-spent in the economies so there’s multiplier effects.  We call those induced and indirect effects.  We’ve termed them additional benefits in the report.


The total economic benefits we come up with are the sum total of those two.  And in this case, we’ve taken considerable care to make sure that we go and look at the net benefits, so we’ve adjusted out the current existing card club and any revenues and any employment from that within those numbers.


To address a lot of the indirect impacts, we used an economic modeling software package called IMPLAN.  We’ve got an appendix in the report which describes a little bit about it and the users of it.  It’s a fairly well-known and respected software model and program that looks at input/output patterns in a region.  It can then infer potential, induced, and indirect impacts.


Basically, what we’ve done too is we’ve been very careful to try to make sure that we have a bias toward not overstating the economic impacts.  A lot of times you just find that economics impacts, they don’t have a component which we call substitution or money that was potentially going to be spent in the area that’s now shifting over to the new facility.  We want to make sure that we really are looking at only what would be a new economic impact.  And to do so, we’ve actually looked at a fairly conservative, 100 percent substitution ratio on money that we cannot place coming from outside, that’s not being spent outside of the state.

Okay.  And just to remind everyone of the analysis we looked at, we’re presented with an operating pro forma.  Our job was to look at the economic benefits of that.  The proposed casinos, 2,500 slot machines, 200-table games, with additional facilities, up to 1,500 seats in restaurants and lounge, there would be potentially other revenue there.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  You’ve got the ball on the tee now, right?  Okay.  Go ahead.


MR. DVORCHAK:  Now it’s the numbers.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Go ahead.  We’ve got it.


MR. DVORCHAK:  Okay. The overall generated, one-time benefit to the state economy, we estimated, at $663 million.  It would create approximately 6,830 jobs, and those are full-time, equivalent jobs, obviously, the one-time benefit.  They’re not ongoing, but that’s basically the overall effect.


On an ongoing basis, the casino would generate a total estimated 6,635 jobs.  Direct jobs within the casino, 2,940 as pointed, the operating model for the casino.  And these are full-time equivalent jobs with benefits and health coverage, et cetera.  Financially, the annual economic benefits of the proposed casino are estimated at $618 million a year to the State of California economy as a whole.  This includes the direct payment that we’ve spoken about at length in some of the other testimony of $155 million.  Again, one of the things we’ll clarify is that we know that that is going into the California economy.  We don’t have an estimate of specifically whether it’s going to any fiscal body, any jurisdiction.  But we know that that is an economic impact to the state as a whole because we know it’s going to be either to the State of California, Caltrans, the county, or the local government.


With respect to specific regions, we also took a look at the San Pablo/Richmond area and trying to figure out the direct impacts within that smaller region.  We estimated a $46 million annual impact.  For Contra Costa County, we estimated a $59 million net benefit annual impact.  In particular, know one of the reasons why we can come up with a net impact is that we did make an estimate of what the potential shift of spending would be, that might have left the region—going to Reno or Las Vegas or out of specific regions.  Approximately $350 million, which we came up with, so this is an example of the substitution.  In fact, obviously, some are substituting gambling experience locally as opposed to Las Vegas.  But in this case, obviously, it’s a benefit to the economy.


So to recap, the proposed casino would create a one-time benefit of $663 million and an annual estimated benefit of $618 million a year.  Again, the payments to the state and local government, approximately $155 (million) based on the revenue estimate.  Again, this would be 683 full-time equivalent, one-time jobs during the construction phase, and approximately 6,635 jobs on an ongoing basis, of which the casino would have directly approximately 3,000.  That is the summary.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you.


Did you look at, in essence, where some of these new employees are?  Are they going to be residents of San Pablo, residents of the county?  Is there a certain mile of radius you looked at?

MR. DVORCHAK:  Yes.  Actually, what we did, literally, even more complicated than that, we took statistical distribution patterns from the current casino.  We also looked at other California casinos and basically estimated by distance away from where the facility is, what’s the likelihood of them participating in employment of the facility.  And then we also made another adjustment based on the estimated wage level of jobs because, obviously, if it’s a low-wage level job in a high-wage level area, that person may not be coming from there.


We actually did that gravity mile, presented it, and were able to look and make a pretty fair estimate of where the employment might be coming from, where the people would be living.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And given that you kind of went out a distance, did you also take into account any jobs lost based on this particular type of employment?  Any other impacts on any other industries?


MR. DVORCHAK:  Our focus was to try to look at the macro effects.  We did include by substitution…


SENATOR FLOREZ:  That’s the macro effect, definitely.


MR. DVORCHAK:  Yes, and adjustment of what may be lost.  Our numbers are net-positive after that substitution.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.


MR. DVORCHAK:  Now within that, we didn’t specifically look at any particular industry and say what may have happened to this or any particular facilities.  So we don’t have that level of detail.  But we know that the overall pie is getting there.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  So this net, not net-net, meaning, if there are people that lived in your particular area and people who may be in other industries that may not have jobs then, that wasn’t taken into account, given that you said you were just basing it on additional, correct?  Additional increase?


MR. DVORCHAK:  Well, it is net-net.  In other words, we made an estimate of what new jobs exist, and then we made an estimate of what jobs might be shifted out of, and then we took that out.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Oh, you did?  Okay.  And to get to that net-net, what industries did you look at to take out the jobs?


MR. DVORCHAK:  Again, that was within the details of the IMPLAN model.  The IMPLAN model essentially has every category—it gets a little bit complicated—but every category of bureau of economics defines all these categories.  And it understands, like if you spend a dollar in this industry, how it flows out to all the different other industries.  So the model actually calculated the overall benefits.  So we can’t go back and track and say, Well, this facility would lose this or that, but we know the overall net effect based on the trade close ??.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  So the model knows whether or not there’s a racetrack in the vicinity, all on its own?


MR. DVORCHAK:  It’s based on current economic patterns.  So in some sense, the answer to that is yes.  I can’t speak directly to that.  But it is already in the flow of the economy.  So if you’re looking at our specific economy, the region, those trade flows are inherent in that ____.  So somewhere in there, there is some level of understanding of that.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  That’s a very interesting program.


MR. DVORCHAK:  Now also understand that we did the net benefit.  We also assumed 100 percent substitution of anything that wasn’t going to Las Vegas or Reno or Nevada.  Therefore, our numbers essentially covered that.  We don’t believe it’s not necessarily 100 percent is going to be substituted but to make sure that we do not have a bias to overstate.  We assume that every dollar spent by somebody who was in that substitution ____________.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  I guess I was talking about the jobs calculation.


MR. DVORCHAK:  What jobs do.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Jobs do.


MR. DVORCHAK:  Jobs flow from the economic…


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Senator Cox.


SENATOR COX:  I heard your numbers relative—those are fairly close to the—which is a proposal regarding the net, the net drop, correct?


MR. DVORCHAK:  I’m sorry?


SENATOR COX:  Your numbers are fairly close to the net drop that we’re talking about, the 25 percent of the net drop, correct?


MR. DVORCHAK:  Yes.


SENATOR COX:  What’s the cash flow in that casino on a 12-month period of time?  It’s not just the net drop.

MR. DVORCHAK:  Well, again, just to say that our role was to look at a given scenario.


SENATOR COX:  I appreciate that.


MR. DVORCHAK:  Now the given scenario was approximately $650 million of revenue.


SENATOR COX:  You’re saying the cash flow in the casino is only $600-and-some-million dollars, and the net drop is $600 million?


MR. DVORCHAK:  The gambling winnings, the gambling revenue?  The assumptions that we use, the gambling revenue, is approximately $650 million, and 25 percent of that is how you get to…


SENATOR COX:  And you’re testifying to this committee today that the cash flow or the money that goes in the door is only $600 million, between $600 (million) and $700 million, not that that’s an insignificant amount.


MR. DVORCHAK:  Actually, I would say that our economic benefits reflect the assumptions that $650 million is the revenue in the casino.  Now how those break out, those obviously are numbers that we did not produce.  But they are in reasonable industry standards.


SENATOR COX:  Is there a difference between the net drop and cash flow?


MR. DVORCHAK:  Net drop and cash flow, terminology difference.  I mean cash flow to the whole casino, revenue to the whole casino, is the gaming…


SENATOR COX:  How about gaming revenue for the…


MR. DVORCHAK:  The gaming win.


SENATOR COX:  Gaming revenue relative to cash flow?


MR. DVORCHAK:  You’re talking about total revenue to the gaming win?  In other words, what other revenues are possible?


SENATOR COX:  I’m not talking about food and beverages and all that sort of thing.


MR. DVORCHAK:  The terminology I use is net win is the revenue won by the casino games.  So that’s, in your definition, cash flow, I think.


SENATOR COX:  No.  My definition of cash flow—see, my understanding of the net drop is that it doesn’t consider the money that has come in the front door and the casino gets to keep.  Maybe I just don’t understand the definition.


MR. DVORCHAK:  There’s a handle which is how much is bet, how much comes in and is re-bet ??.  The key factor is revenue, how much is won by the casino in the games.  For every dollar bet, let’s say, in a slot, on average, the casino may keep 5 cents or 10 cents on average.  At the end of the day, what those collect up to is the net win.


SENATOR COX:  Okay.  Thank you.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Any other questions, Members?


Mark, thank you very much.  Appreciate it.


Let’s go, if we could, to Ronald Schmidt and Richard Siegel.  Thank you both for joining us.  Your impressions.


MR. RONALD SCHMIDT:  Let me first begin—I’ll just tell you briefly—we’re with LECG.  It’s also a—it’s another consulting firm that’s also international in scope.  The lead person on this study was Bill Hamm, who some of you may remember was the former legislative analyst for the State of California for a number of years.


Would you like to go ahead and…


MR. RICHARD SIEGEL:  Hello.  I’m Richard Siegel with LECG.  What I’d like to do is just give you a brief overview of the analysis that we conducted which was essentially the impact of the San Pablo Casino as it’s been proposed on the horseracing industry in the Bay Area.  We applied a very data-driven methodology to this based on the facts as outlined in the travel compact and based on the economic data that was available both publicly and provided to us.


Before I do that, I’d like to give just a high-level summary of the horseracing industry as we analyzed it, since it’s beyond what the immediate effects of the local track and it’s approximate to the San Pablo Casino.


In Northern California, there is a track within about ten miles of the proposed casino which is Golden Gate Fields.  Further south in the Bay Area is Bay Meadows, another very large racetrack, about equal in size to Golden Gate Fields.  And then all around Northern California there are another ten fairgrounds which also operate horse races during different times of the year.  These various venues essentially form an ecosystem, an economic ecosystem, which operates racing throughout the year.  They’re typically non-overlapping dates at all these different races.  Likewise, these various tracks share horses, and horses travel to the different tracks during the course of the year that participate in races.  Therefore, part of our analysis involved understanding what the impact on not just Golden Gate Fields but the overall horseracing industry was.  Beyond the tracks themselves, there’s also a whole secondary set of suppliers and service providers which service the horses, which race the horses, and manage and support the tracks.  So we conducted an analysis of that.


Fundamentally, what we found was, number one, the horseracing industry is an industry that’s been under a lot of pressure in the past few years by the encouragement of the lottery and of other gambling products that are alternatives.  And as such, they’ve seen a decline in handle, which is the amount bet, over the past number of years.


I’m going to turn this over to Ron to talk about the specific financial impacts on the racetracks and on the ecosystem.  But they are both direct onto the proximate track as well as secondary effects on the surrounding tracks.


MR. SCHMIDT:  Thank you.


What we tried to employ—we didn’t have any detailed information from the tracks themselves.  Such information would have been proprietary and, not surprisingly, they weren’t interested in having that published.  What we did look at, though, was the economics that we could derive from Magna Entertainment Corporation which, at least in 2003, was operating both Golden Gate Fields and Bay Meadows.  And what we applied was standard financial modeling that is typically undertaken by people in trying to figure out how profitable is a particular organization.  And what we did is we did a simulation to see what would happen.


First of all, to begin with, Golden Gate Fields and Bay Meadows, from what we can ascertain, is running at about 3.5 percent gross IBDA rates.  So its profitability is about 3.5 percent.  What we found, though, is that they’re driven.  Most of the revenues to those tracks come from handle raised from races conducted there or that they’re—and as a result, what we found in the literature, which seems to be supported in a number of cases, is that when you build a casino close to a horse track, it has a direct impact on the handle received at the horse track.  This is despite the fact that people will say it’s a different kind of better and so forth.  That’s just been the experience.  You build a racetrack—you build a casino close to a racetrack, you see a decline.

What we did is we modeled the impact, and the immediate impact on Golden Gate Fields, we found, probably turns the operation negative.  And given that Golden Gate Fields already is in a very, very high-valued portion of the Bay Area, it was our assessment that this sort of an impact would probably drive Golden Gate Fields out of business.  It certainly would turn the economics negative.  And given the trends and handle that we’ve observed in the last several years, it’s unlikely that a business person looking at this enterprise would say this is a really great place to keep investing.


The impact of that closure of Golden Gate Fields so it begins kind of a domino effect throughout horseracing in Northern California.  And that has to do with the fact that you have cross-stabling of horses and you have betting on other venues at the other location.  Just think about it.  If you shut down Golden Gate Fields, you eliminate effectively 40 percent of the racing days in Northern California.  That has impacts throughout the rest of the system.  It’s our impact that we estimated was that just the initial impact of the casino, even that alone would drive Bay Meadows very close to the edge.  The fact of Golden Gate Fields also dropping off the picture would in turn make the economics facing Bay Meadows very negative again.  Again, they face, they’re in an area where there are a lot of high opportunities for that land, and it’s quite likely that you would see both Bay Meadows and Golden Gate Fields go out of business as a result of the expansion of the casino.


What we also did is we said, Well, okay.  How important is this?  Oh, one additional point.  There’s a very close relationship, as Richard mentioned, between the fairs and the two tracks.  Not only do they share revenues; but probably more importantly, they provide stabling facilities.  What this would effectively do is make thoroughbred horseracing, at least at a high level, would make it nonviable in Northern California.  There just would not be enough venues, if you think about the perspective of an owner.  The only way in which you can recoup your investment is by racing and winning while your opportunities just disappeared in Northern California.

So what we did is we also went ahead and just estimated, all right, what is the impact if you were to lose horseracing in Northern California?  What’s the value of just that industry to the state, at least in Northern California?  And basically what we found, in terms of an output effect—and again, we used models again, relying on input/output.  That’s about the only thing that’s out there to do this kind of local, detailed analysis.  We came up with a range of $450 (million) to $600 million in losses to the state as a result of the loss of horseracing and we found…

SENATOR COX ??:  What’s the number again?


MR. SCHMIDT:  Four hundred and fifty to $600 million.  We found that in terms of jobs lost in the horseracing industry, it would be somewhere in the $10,000 to $13,000 range.


And in terms of lost revenue to the state from the take that the state gets off of the handle, we estimated that’s somewhere in the $8 (million) to $11 million range be lost to the state on an annual basis.  I think that concludes sort of our…


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And in terms of the immediate area, though, you went kind of macro.  But in terms of that particular area—San Pablo, Contra Costa, the county—what do you foresee?


MR. SCHMIDT:  We did not do an economic assessment of the impact of San Pablo on the region.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Members, any questions?


So, you know, from a guy from Bakersfield, simply put, this is going to put one of these tracks out of business?


MR. SCHMIDT:  Well, it’s going to put—it would basically eliminate horseracing in Northern California.  And one of the things you have to keep in mind is that that the impacts of this are statewide.  You’re dealing with Bakersfield.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  I’ve got that.  I’ve got that.  But I’m just asking, you know, the practical aspect from your analysis is that.


MR. SCHMIDT:  Yes.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Gentlemen, thank you very much.  Appreciate it.


Mr. Blonien and Mr. Edelstein.


After that, as you folks are coming up, I’d like to have James Deshesier, a resident of San Pablo; Arnie Casandorf, a citizen from Richmond; Janisha Solanani from San Pablo; Andres Soto from Richmond; and Ben Lubbon from—I could not read the writing.  But all of you, right after this, could you please proceed up.  We will hear your testimony in terms of public comment, and then we will close the hearing.  Okay.

SENATOR EDWARD VINCENT:  Mr. Chair, if I could say…


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Yes, Mr. Vincent.

SENATOR VINCENT:  You know, when I was sitting up here dreaming—when the guy was talking about horses, I woke up.  (Laughter)


You know, the gentleman stated it made a tremendous impact on horseracing in Northern California.  It’s going to be—not going to be—there is a tremendous impact on horses all over the State of California, horseracing tracks.  And what you find, you’ll find what we call wind palatial ?? or scratched—we didn’t really get scratched—within the whole state. What we find is that we have smaller purses, we have smaller fields.  When I say fields, I’m talking about the number of horses in a race.  So therefore, you cannot do ____ and exotic betting.  You can’t do it because some of the races have five and six horses in a race.  You can’t do anything with that.  You have to have more.

Since you have that happening, we have world-class trainers leaving the state, going to places back east where they do have slot machines at racetracks.  So they have bigger purses, they have bigger crowds, and they have bigger fields.  At one time, we were the horseracing capital in the State of California.  And we still have the best tracks in the world here—in the world—in California.  We’re the fifth largest—sixth largest—economy in the world here in California.  We’ve got the best weather here in California.  And we’re supposed to be the entertainment capital of the world.  And with the governor now, it makes it a little sweeter, okay?  So we’ve got all these things going for us, but we’re losing out, and we should take a look at that.


Now I know this is very controversial.  But what it is, it is.  I graduated from the University of Iowa, played football there, did a pretty good job.  They had a racetrack called Prairie Meadows.  Prairie Meadows was going out of business.  But the people in Iowa had slots, put slots on their track.  Prairie Meadows is rolling now, big time, big time.  If you go to Florida, if you go to Kentucky, and now Indiana has slots at their tracks.  And I’m not even bringing it up as an issue at this time.  But I’m saying, we in California have a lot of things going for us.  But that’s what’s going to happen.  It’s going to be going to other places where there’s more convenience, there’s more situations that happen there.  And I didn’t want to interrupt the gentleman when he said it’s going to be bad for Northern California.  It’s going to be bad for California, period.  That’s all I have to say.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you, Senator Vincent.  I know Mr. Blonien is going to be in opposition to everything you just said.


MR. BLONIEN:  (Laughter)  I don’t think so.  Mr. Chairman and Members, good afternoon.  My name is Rod Blonien.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you for joining us, both of you, by the way.  Appreciate it.


MR. BLONIEN:  My pleasure.  And thank you for having this hearing.  I’m here today on behalf of the Alameda County Fair and Bay Meadows Racetrack.  And I want you to know that I am not here—not here—on behalf of the thoroughbred owners of California.


You know, I’ve got to say that we have no ax to grind against the Lytton Band of Pomo Indians.  We wish they would make a jillion dollars and be very, very successful but not next door to Golden Gate Fields.  There has been no history in this country where a racetrack and a casino have been able to coexist.  The result has always been that the racetrack has gone out of business and has suffered.  And in the economic report that you’ve received, there’s indications talking about Canterbury Downs in Minnesota.  We also talk about the Woodlands in Kansas City.


When the Woodlands opened in Kansas City, which was less than 15 years ago, it was an immense success.  There were people standing in lines to get into the racetrack.  They were doing banner numbers in terms of handle and attendance.  And then the riverboats opened across the state line in Missouri.  And in less than five years, the racetrack was bankrupt, and there was no longer horseracing conducted there.  In terms of Golden Gate Fields, Golden Gate Fields is less than seven miles from San Pablo Dam Road.  And Golden Gate Fields is not a shining success today because we really haven’t done a good job of attracting new fans.  You go there on a racing date and you’ll see a lot of people with gray hair and older people.


We have trouble in the northern circuit getting full fields because we aren’t able to pay the same-size purses they are down south, but we’re struggling mightily.  And the track executives are trying to find ways to get more people to come to the racetrack.  Putting a casino with 2,500 slot machines seven miles away is signing the death certificate for Golden Gate Fields.  If Golden Gate Fields goes down, it has an impact on Bay Meadows because the same horses, the same trainers that race at Golden Gate Fields go to Bay Meadows and race there.  They just shift from one place to another.  It’s going to have an impact, according to our study, of at least 15 percent, in terms of Bay Meadows.  The economics, return on investment, for operating Bay Meadows as a racetrack is extremely marginal, as they indicated, about 3 percent return on investment.  If we lose 15 percent of our on-track handle, it’s going to make it even less than 3 percent.  Also, it’s going to impact on the fair satellite facilities at the fairs.


I represent the Alameda County Fair.  About the same distance away is the Solano County Fair.  Their handle is going to be affected as well.  I just handed out to you an article that ran in the San Diego Union within the last two weeks talking about the satellite facility at Del Mar that’s operated by the 22nd Agricultural District.


Five years ago, they netted $2.7 million to the fair.  This last year, they netted $700,000.  Five years ago, they paid the state $5.1 million in license fees.  This last year, they paid the state $1.7 million in license fee.  They are being substantially affected by the casinos in San Diego County.  The closest casino in San Diego County is over toward, beyond Escondido, probably 30 miles away.  Here, we’re talking about a facility in terms of Golden Gate Fields that’s about seven miles away.

I agree with Senator Perata when he said he could not imagine a worse place to put an Indian casino than at San Pablo Dam Road.


I also agree with George Miller, the congressman, who put the language in the bill, and sort of snuck it through for this land to be taken into trust  George Miller said, I never intended this.  I never thought they’d build a casino of that magnitude.  And that’s at 2,500 slots.


I would love for this tribe to prosper but not at the price of losing the northern circuit for California thoroughbred racing.  If it impacts Golden Gate, it impacts Bay Meadows.  If it impacts Bay Meadows, it impacts the fairs.  And talk about the Alameda County Fair.  The money that the Alameda County Fair makes from satellite wagering and makes from conducting live racing for two weeks during the summer goes through all sorts of ag programs and youth programs to help people involved in 4-H and other great projects and programs.  If you take away the profit from horseracing, you take away the profit from satellite wagering, it impacts a whole bunch of other things that are downstream.


In the report that’s done by Economic Research Associates, they site the Thalheimer report that talks about a 25 percent sub-suitability ?? if there is a racetrack coincided with a casino, indicating there’s a 25 percent substitution of people from one place to another.  Then they go on and they talk about Del Mar and they say that, however, at Del Mar, there has been no indication that the Native American casinos in San Diego County have had an impact.  Well, that’s because, one, of distance.  The closest casino to Del Mar is more than 30 miles away.  Secondly, Del Mar is a happening, like Saratoga.  It is an event.  It’s a destination.  People come from Texas, from Arizona, from Nevada, to go to the races at Del Mar.  It’s much more than just a racetrack, and there is racing there for only seven weeks a year.  Talking about Golden Gate Fields, 20 weeks a year.

As Cheryl Schmidt indicated this morning, this is one tribe.  We have 108 or 110 tribes in the State of California.  We have numerous tribes that are without reservations, that are landless, who are hop-scotching around the state looking for a place to land where they can make the most money for their tribal members, and I don’t begrudge them that.  But we need in this state to develop a gaming policy.  We are saying, we’ll put a casino here, we’ll put a casino there.  No one is developing a policy in saying, What is in the best interest of the people of this state?  It’s worse than hodgepodge.  We’re looking today at San Pablo.  Three weeks or five weeks from now you may be asked to look at two or three or four other casinos, three or four other compacts.  Is anybody really sitting down and looking at what the federal code provides?  Twenty-five CFR (d)(7)?  The state may take into account the public interest, public safety, criminality, financial integrity, and adverse economic impacts on existing gaming activities.  Is anyone doing that?


I mean I’ve been here 30 years, and I’ve been through every compact that comes through this Legislature.  Some of them didn’t even have an informational hearing.  They just went through.  But no one is really sitting here and saying, What is the best interest of the people?  Not today, ten years from now, 20 years from now?  Because once a casino gets sited, it doesn’t go away.  We’re talking about profitability.  I’m sorry that Senator Cox left.  But out here, we have Thunder Valley which is probably the most profitable casino this side of Foxwoods in Connecticut.


Last year, the tribe netted—netted—over $300 million.  Stations Casinos, their partner, netted over $70 million.  Last year, we put through an amendment to that compact giving them 50 percent more machines.  So it’s likely that this year they may net something over $400 million, and Stations Casino may net over $100 million.  This casino is larger in terms of the number of machines.  It is closer to the Bay Area, and I’m sure it’s going to do much better.  So when people are up here talking about numbers, this place is probably, if it goes with 2,500 machines, it’s probably going to net somewhere in the vicinity of $600 million--$600 million.


It’s like when the Thunder Valley compact went through, I asked, Isn’t $300 million enough for the tribal members?  Do they really need $400 (million) or $450 million?  Maybe they do need $450 million.  I’m not sure.  But in terms of this compact, do we really need to take a baseball bat and knock horseracing on the head, put a casino seven miles away so that somebody can make $450 million for their tribal members?  I mean these folks were situated in Windsor, as the lady said this morning, seven or 12 miles north of Santa Rosa, prior to Congressman Miller putting a provision in this bill.  Now they’re located at San Pablo.  That’s spilled milk.  Let’s not cry over that.

But somebody needs to develop a gaming policy for the State of California.  It’s going to have dramatic impacts on the state.  We talk about a loss of 10,000 to 13,000 jobs in horseracing—people at the racetrack, people at the breeding farms, people at the alfalfa farms, people at the tracks where they break the horses and they train the horses before they get to the racetrack.  I mean you lose a northern circuit.  You’re going to lose 10,000, 12,000 jobs.  And it isn’t going to be in Senator Perata’s district.  It’s not going to be in Loni Hancock’s district.  It’s going to be in your district, Senator Florez, where they grow some of the alfalfa.  It’s going to be in other districts—Senator Denham’s district—where again they grow some of the oats and some of the other things that come to the racetracks.


It really seems to me that there should be a way, Senator Florez and Senator Denham and Senator Vincent, of giving the tribes a very, very nice income for themselves without devastating California horseracing, and I think that’s your challenge.  In terms of the governor and the governor saying, gee, he has to negotiate in good faith, Governor Davis negotiated in good faith.  He gave some tribes 349 machines.  He gave some tribes 750 machines.  You know, San Pablo doesn’t need 2,500 machines.  Again, if you take a look at the Thunder Valley experience, I think they can do very, very well with a much smaller number of machines or to find another location that doesn’t have this devastating impact on California horseracing.


You know, the history of this country, in terms of its treatment of Native Americans is something that we should really be ashamed of, and it’s a despicable history.  But that history does not justify putting through a compact that is going to have the impact that this is going to have on horseracing, let alone other aspects of society in terms of the San Francisco Bay Area.  It’s going to affect the Alameda County Fair, probably 20 percent the first year, we estimate, in terms of the handle that they generate at their satellite facility, probably 20 percent at the racetrack in the first year, and we suspect that the experience at Del Mar will be replicated here.  And you don’t need to take 100 percent of somebody’s revenue to drive them out of business.


I really hope that there is a way that we can help the tribes without hurting, in a very detrimental way, California horseracing.  I thank you for your attention.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Yes.  Senator Vincent.


SENATOR VINCENT:  You know, Mr. Blonien, you know, we’re talking about records and money in situations like this.  But I would say that California is one of the only states that I know of that presently have three million-dollar races—Hollywood Gold Cup, Pacific Coast Classic in Del Mar, and the Santa Anita Handicap in Santa Anita.  Incidentally, the people who own Santa Anita also owns Bay Meadows and Golden Gate.


MR. BLONIEN:  That’s correct.


SENATOR VINCENT:  But the thing about it too—but thoroughbred racing in California also subsidizes the fairs.  Now also in this state, most people don’t know, out of the 12 world records in thoroughbred horseracing, nine of them are in California, nine of the 12, from five-and-half furloughs to 1 ½ mile.  You know what?  We’re becoming our worst enemy, and the horseracing industry is suffering from it, and it will continue to suffer if the situation continues as it is.  I hope it doesn’t.  Thank you.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you, Senator.


MR. ALAN EDELSTEIN:  Mr. Chairman and Members, Alan Edelstein.  I represent a card room in San Bruno, California.  It’s called Artichoke Joe’s.  It’s just south of San Francisco.  It’s been owned by the same family for 80 years, third generation.  It has 300 employees.  If you walked in there, you’d see a very diverse workforce, and you’d see people who have been with the card room—it’s not unusual to see people ten, 15, 25 years.  These are people that, if they lose these jobs, which are good-paying jobs—benefits, pensions, and so forth—they’re going to have an awfully hard time finding similar jobs that pay and compensate with benefits, the way these jobs pay, and allow them to live in the Bay Area.


Artichoke Joe’s, when Proposition 1A passed, Artichoke Joe’s assessed the situation and made a determination, that as long as the tribes did what they said they were going to do when they proposed Prop. 1A, that is, keep the slot machines, the tribal gaming, on traditional Indian reservations in primarily rural areas, that Artichoke Joe’s could survive with playing the card games that it plays.  As you know, card rooms in California not only are not allowed slots, they not only pay federal and state taxes and local taxes, but they’re not even allowed house bank games.  They just basically rent time and space.


They made the determination, that while it would hurt, they could survive as long as the Indians kept their word, the tribes or the proponents of Prop. 1A kept their word.  It was only after the Miller amendment was passed and San Pablo was proposed or the newer amendment directed the Secretary of Interior to take it into trust that we became very, very opposed to this movement.


By the way, I should say at the time it was represented, that the Miller amendment would result in an urban casino with the same, basic footprint as the 70,000-square-foot card room that it’s currently located.  Now we’re looking at a proposal with about ten times the square footage, a much different animal.  And as I said, we’re looking at slots in the urban area on property that has none of the attributes of a traditional Indian reservation.  A traditional Indian reservation has people living on it, it has activities of life, of living and so forth.  It has things other than just the casino.  This is not traditional Indian reservation.  It’s certainly not rural, and it’s simply a casino that has no ties to the Lytton Band.


Another thing that we’ve all been talking about, 2,500 slots, you should know that there really is no cap.  That 2,500 is an illusion because another provision of the compact calls for renegotiation in 2008 without limit.  And since this casino probably will not be up and running until ’07 or ’08, we are looking at a casino that could have an infinite number of slots. We have no way of knowing.  There is no cap at all.

I’d like to address the traffic situation for a moment.  In a few days, we will have out a study by a very reputable, well respected firm, that does traffic studies by people who are experts in their field.  I can tell you that preliminarily there is almost no mitigation that you can do at that location, one of the busiest interstates in our country and one of the bottlenecks.  Anybody who drives down there knows the situation now.


Even to maintain without the expanded casino, to maintain the current traffic flow in the next two decades—and everybody who’s been there knows that the current traffic flow ain’t anything to write home about—but even to maintain where we are, you’re going to need several extra lanes of traffic there in the next two decades.  I don’t have to tell you about the state of transportation improvements.  It will take us—we should start planning now if we want two extra lanes.  What we do for the 10,000 to 20,000 people, additional, who will be traveling that every day beyond two extra lanes, I don’t know.  Just putting it in the interchange—an interchange these days take ten or 15 years—but just putting in an interchange is not going to do it, and we all know that.


The time spent in commute, in loss productivity, in backups at the 580 interchange, at backups at the toll plaza, as Mr. Blonien and as Senator Perata have said, this is about the worse place that you could ever put a 10,000 to 20,000 person additional casino, next to a hospital, by the way, and several schools, and within miles of many, many young people at U.C. Berkeley, at the public high school in the vicinity, at the Catholic high school in the vicinity.  And if you don’t think that this won’t have an impact not just on traffic but on those young people and perhaps on young athletes, it certainly will.  And none of that, as far as I know, has been considered yet.


Just to talk a few minutes about the economics, we too have commissioned an economic study, our card room and some others, and that will be coming out within a few days, and I would love to have our experts here to testify to that.  But just a couple of points on that.


You know, if you look at the casinos in Las Vegas, people fly into Las Vegas from all over the country, and they deposit their money and everybody goes home happy, and the people in Las Vegas are happy.  People are not going to be flying in to San Pablo to gamble.  The people who are going to gamble in San Pablo are the people around the Bay Area.  So we’re not going to be getting money from people flying in.  We’re going to be taking money from the people who live in the Bay Area, and we’re going to be sending it out.  We’re going to be sending it out to that elusive management company, management partnership, we heard about this morning.


Well, there are some tribes in that, a tribe that already has a casino. But there’s also the Maloof family, if you believe the Sacramento Bee’s articles in August, which ones a very popular hotel, casino in Las Vegas, and which owns the Kings.  They will be taking money from the Bay Area and sending it out, I assume, back to Las Vegas and maybe to some of their other investments in New Mexico and so forth.


In terms of the businesses in the area, we heard testimony about the jobs that are going to be created.  But we didn’t hear very much testimony about the jobs that are going to be lost, in addition to the track jobs.  What jobs are those?  Well, you have bowling alleys, you have many, many restaurants, and you have other small entrepreneurs.  Take a look at Atlantic City where restaurants have closed up over the years after casinos have opened.  Detroit, some of the riverboat areas.  The businesses surrounding it close up.  Why?  Because those businesses cannot compete.  They’re paying federal taxes, they’re paying state taxes, they’re complying with no-smoking laws, they’re complying with age limits, they’re complying with alcohol, they’re complying with health and safety, workers compensation.  They have many higher costs, and they cannot compete.  So you may have a few extra jobs at the casino.  Our study will show that you’re going to lose many, many jobs, in addition to the tracks, in addition to the card rooms in the surrounding area.


Also, the studies show, and we’ll provide you information on that, that who primarily engages in the use of slot machines?  Lower income and poor people, much different income level for card players than for slot players.  A 1994 survey found that 50 percent of the Wisconsin casino gamblers reported an annual household income below $30,000.  The American Journal of Economics and Sociology, July 1991, found that Las Vegas casino gamblers with household annual incomes of less than $10,000 lost 3.25 percent of their income.  By comparison, those with annual incomes between $50,000 ad $60,000 only lost .8 percent.  The National Gambling Impact Study Commission reports that children of compulsive gamblers are often prone to suffer abuse as a result of parental problems or pathological gambling.  It also reports that case studies of ten casino communities revealed that the majority of them witnessed an increase in domestic violence associated with the introduction of casinos.

So we would suggest that this is going to have a terrible impact on the businesses, and it’s not just going to divert money from restaurants and from other forms of recreation.  We contend it will divert money that should be spent on clothing, on healthcare, and on food.  So while we concede some with jobs in the casino will do better, we think on balance, the entire community, in addition to our industries, will do worse.


One thing that came clear this morning to me in listening to testimony is that the Department of Finance, with all due respect, really does not have a handle on how much all of the mitigation—traffic, economic, environment, social costs—will be.  We just don’t know.  It’s impossible to tell.  All I can tell you is that nobody can tell you that you’re not going to have 10,000 to 20,000 people, basically attendance at a smaller, slightly attended ballgame every day, 24/7, without having a severe impact.  And as Mr. Blondien said, some tribes, many partnered with outside investors, are making proposals throughout the Bay Area, throughout Los Angeles, all over.  If you allow this casino to go in, right in the heart of an urban area in California, you’re opening the floodgates.  You will not be able to stop it.  We will have urban gaming with all of its consequences in California.  For that reason, we urge the committee not to approve this compact.  Thank you.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you very much.  Thank you, both.


Let’s have those I mentioned earlier, come up to close the hearing—James, Arnie, Janisha, Andres, and Ben.  If we can try to keep this portion of the hearing to about two minutes, that would be very much appreciated.


Let’s go ahead and get started.  Anybody.  Go ahead.


MS. JANISHA SOLANANI:  Hi.  I just wanted to thank you for this opportunity to speak.  My name is Janisha Solanani, and I’m a recent Cal grad.  I’m a resident of Berkeley from the East Bay.


From the moment I learned of this compact, I was very concerned over it.  I’ve been a student at Cal for the last three years, and I’m concerned about the large, you know, the invasiveness of such an establishment just a few miles away from the Cal campus and within the East Bay itself.  I began to contact local organizations and realized that there was a need to organize all of the opposition that was within the community; and from that point on, decided to take it upon myself to kind of start coordinating the opposing people—the citizens of the community, the residents from surrounding cities, the residents within the cities—to voice their opposition towards what’s going on because I hadn’t really heard of, you know, coordination happening but a lot of opposition,  you know, from people that I was talking to and people that I was learning information from.


My concerns with the impact of the casinos and my interest in preserving the health and well-being of the community and the Bay Area if I want to reside here and raise a family here in the future, I would not want such an invasive establishment just a couple of miles away or to affect the whole Bay Area at large.  And so with that, the impact with traffic and crime and gambling addition and drunk driving, especially with such a large college campus—Contra Costa and UC Berkeley—in such close range to the casino, you know, drunk driving is a big issue that I don’t know if anyone has taken into consideration.


Within the last couple of days, I’ve been going to farmers markets, supermarkets, trying to talk to people within the community, within Hilltop mall, surrounding communities, the safe communities ___ in the area, and have been within the last couple of days received 500 letters of opposition, and that’s in two or three days at most, a few hours of collecting letters in opposition of the invasive establishment that would be going up.  A lot of people don’t know how big it’s going to be.  They don’t even know that it will exist, and they’re living within, you know, one or two miles, a mile-and-a-half away from where it is supposed to exist.


So with that, I think that, you know, I’ve taken it upon myself to have this responsibility in trying to educate people and trying to coordinate people in opposition of it because it’s their backyards that it’s going to affect.  It’s their homes and families that this is going to come into.


Earlier, Michael Cox, from the former general counsel of the National Indian Gaming Commission, he mentioned that, you know, it’s such unusual circumstances in an urban environment, but they would not approve an establishment that did not have local support.  And clearly, I have not found that local support in talking to people coming out of the local communities and to the farmers markets and to these surrounding areas in communities like UC Berkeley, Contra Costa, and the local residents that live next to me.

So  just wanted to let you guys know, and I thank you again for this opportunity to speak.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you very much.  Appreciate it.


Yes?


MR. JAMES DESHESIER:  Chairperson Florez, my name is James Deshesier.  Thank you for hearing me today.


I want to say that we’re all proud of the other members from Casino San Pablo.  I’m an employee of Casino San Pablo and a resident of San Pablo.  We’re proud of what Natalia and Leroy offered, how they changed their life around.  However, to be honest, they’re the minority in the casino.  They are union represented, but the majority of people there aren’t.


I was disturbed by the testimony by Margie Mejia today.  The promises that she gave were very similar to the promises that were given employees when they took over—promises of community support, community benefits, welfare of the employees, health issue concerns, promises that they would increase our health and welfare, the safety and quality of life that she quoted today, commitment to the employees.

Since the Indians have taken over, it’s nearly the opposite.  Our benefits have decreased, our premiums have increased, our deductibles have increased.  We have no union support.  The day they came in and announced that they were the new managers, the new owners of the San Pablo, they made us sign forms that we were at-will employees.  Technically, we could be terminated any time without cause.  They don’t follow state law.  I pay state tax.  They smoke at Casino San Pablo.  Our health is affected there.  We have pregnant people there at Casino San Pablo.  We weren’t told that this was going to be an issue.


When the disregard for our safety and health as employees of Casino San Pablo is a big concern, and for them just to disregard the state laws—they’re defiant—it’s a strong concern of all of us.


I would be happy to entertain any questions you would have.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Great.  Thank you very much.


MR. ANDRES SOTO:  Good afternoon, Chair Flores, and thank you very much for the opportunity to speak.  My name is Andres Soto.  I’m a lifelong resident of the San Pablo/Richmond area.  I attended Bayview Elementary School, Helms Junior High School, and San Pablo and Richmond High School.  So I’m talking about this from a lifelong resident who remembers when the site of what is now Casino San Pablo actually used to be Peekaboo Park before they even put up the bowling alley that it replaced.


So what I’m here to say is, that with all due respect to my friends in the City of San Pablo, particularly dealing with the issue of traffic, when we look at the intersection of 23rd Street in San Pablo Avenue, the traffic related to the town center, shopping center and development, which is right across the street from the casino, it clearly indicates that the engineering department and the planning process in the City of San Pablo is less than completely competent because these are consistent bottlenecks in our region on the streets, not to mention the freeway.


One of the questions that I’ve always had—and I’ve never heard anybody really bring this forward is—we know that when the casino first opened up, there was a major recruitment effort to try to hire locals.  But my question would be, what percentage of the current employees of Casino San Pablo actually live in the City of San Pablo and/or Richmond?  Because as you all know, the City of San Pablo is literally an island surrounded by Richmond.


Then I guess one of the other things, because I live in Richmond, and we’ve just gone through the debacle of dealing with the Point Molate Casino proposal, was that the City of San Pablo, the City of Richmond, and even to some degree, the economy of Contra Costa, all seem very greedy when it comes to taking care of themselves and the revenues that are projected from these casinos.  No one has ever—not now, not in the past—suggested there would be any money that would be going to our school district that is on the verge of a secondary bankruptcy.  We were the first district to go bankrupt, and yet nobody is talking about taking care of the kids in our school district.


Similarly, as they said, the hospital’s right next door, and our hospital district is on the verge of bankruptcy.  And the people just ponied up a new bond measure to help keep it afloat temporarily; and yet, none of these people—the City of San Pablo or Richmond or anybody—is talking about taking care of the hospital district.

When we talked about the social cost, when you look at the EPA report on Page IX, one of the things that struck me here when they identified the scope of their study, they say very literally:  “Because of the expertise required to analyze these social issues and their profile in the greater public debate concerning gambling, social costs are not included in ERA’s study scope.”  So I would think that this would be, just on the face of it, very limited in its veracity.


So let’s talk about the social impact.  Well, you know, because nobody’s really tracking it, we don’t have complete numbers.  But I can tell you, this casino was started to attract Asian gaming clients because we have one of the largest Asian immigrant communities in California, particularly union, and it’s been devastating to their community.  People have lost their homes, people have gone into bankruptcy.  We know that kids have gone into gangs and prison because of neglect in their families.  Just like in Las Vegas, the commercials that say, What happens in Vegas, stays in Vegas, and it’s clearly talking about things like the sex industry which are a hidden crime because it goes on behind closed doors.


Growing up in this region with no sympathy in particular to the track owners around here or the people promoting racetracks, when I went to Richmond High School, I knew high school students who left Richmond High to go down to the track.  Nobody was checking their IDs, and I don’t think that’s going to happen here either.


One of the things that was interesting about the track promoters who was talking about their analysis that the bottom line is the pie is only so big.  There’s only so much money that’s going to be generated from gambling.  I don’t have a moral problem with gambling.  But we know about gambling, it does not generate capital.  It only redistributes capital, and it is redistributing it out of our community.


Then when we look at the compact itself, and when I looked at Section 4.4(d) and (e), it sounded to me like there was pitch going on here to expand slots into the tracks.  And if that was the case or any other kind of gaming that would be a part of this, then all of a sudden, this tribe wouldn’t have to pay the amount of money to the state that they would be required initially, and I think that is basically an open door to expand gaming.  That way, the people promoting this casino would have to pay less to the state because it would be subsidized by other people.


And finally, whether it’s a popular sport—I know in this last election in Richmond, because of the Point Molate issue, that a poll was done by Evans McDunna  that showed that the majority of the people of the City of Richmond, which is four times the size of San Pablo, are against urban gaming and casino gaming in our community.


Then finally, my parents, my grandparents, were immigrants from Mexico where we are descendent of the Otomi Indian people, and they settled in a town called East Chicago, Indiana, which is right next to Hammond where they have these riverboats that go out into the lakes.  And despite all the promises, East Chicago and Hammond are still ghettos.  Thank you.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you very much.


Okay.  Last witness.


MR. BEN LUBBON:  Can you hear me?  Thank you.  It’s been a long day for you, so I’ll be short.



My name is Ben Lubbon.  I’m a managing partner for a new lobbying firm called Jude Benedict and Associates.  I was founding secretary of the World Hispanic Chamber involved with…

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  ________.

MR. LUBBON:  So we’re seeking a regional solution, and we’ll be reporting to our clients and also submitting a report in conjunction with EIS scoping at Oakland, and we see many different solutions _____, and I’ll submit a report…

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Great.  Thank you.


Okay.  That will conclude the hearing;  I do very much appreciate people spending the time and particularly, we would like to see the economic analysis folks, the background sheets at some point in time, so please contact the committee staff.  So thank you all very much.
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